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Forward Looking Statements

This Annual Report on Form 10-K contains forward-looking statements within the meaning of the Private Securities

Litigation Reform Act of 1995 which are subject to the safe harbor created by this legislation
The forward-

looking statements regarding future events and the future results of XRS Corporation are based on current

expectations estimates forecasts and projections about the industries in which XRS operates and the beliefs and

assumptions of the management of the Company In some cases forward-looking statements can be identified by

terminology such as believes anticipates expects intends targeted should potential goals

strategy and similar terms and expressions These forward-looking statements involve certain risks and

uncertainties that could cause actual results levels of activity performance achievements and events to differ

materially from those implied by such forward-looking statements but are not limited to those discussed in this

Report under the section entitled Risk Factors and elsewhere and in other reports XRS files with the Securities

and Exchange CommissionSEC including subsequent reports and amendments thereto on Form 8-K and Form

0-Q These forward-looking statements are made as of the date of this Annual Report on Form 10-K XRS

Corporation assumes no obligation to update these statements for any reason including the occurrence of material

events The risks and uncertainties under the caption Risk Factors contained herein among other things should be

considered in evaluating our prospects
and future financial performance

PART

Item Business

Company History and Business Overview

XRS Corporation and its wholly owned subsidiary Turnpike Global Technologies Inc collectively XRS

Corporation the Company we our us delivers compliance and fleet management solutions to the commercial

trucking industry Our solutions enable customers to improve compliance with United States Department of

Transportation DOT regulations optimize the utilization of their assets and enhance the productivity of fleet

operations across the entire supply chain resulting in decreased costs

Founded in 1985 as Xata Corporation XRS Corporation has been an early leader in the development of trucking

intelligence solutions evolving from history of solutions employing traditional hardware-based on-board

computers to software-as-a-service-based SaaS solutions utilizing near real-time always connected in-cab devices

to todays solutions which operate on mobile devices such as smartphones tablets and rugged handhelds We were

the first company to provide completely paperless electronic logs exception-based management reporting and

learned standards for accurate business intelligence in fleet operations Our products combine enterprise software

mobile technology real-time communications and global positioning systems GPS to provide an enterprise

logistics management solution for fleet operators

Our first-generation products introduced in the early 1990s included our revolutionary touch-screen driver

computer and PC-based fleet management system software In 1999 we introduced customer-hosted system that

can manage multiple operation centers and users over wide area network

In 2004 we introduced XataNet software-as-a-service SaaS solution serving the needs of the private fleet

segment With the acquisition of GeoLogic Solutions Inc in January of 2008 we expanded our offerings to include

the MobileMax solution which provides wireless asset management solution to the for-hire segment of the over-

the-road transportation sector Our XataNet and MobileMax solutions both operate as traditional on-board

hardware-based solutions which include an embedded computer hardware system communication capabilities and

driver display

Focused on providing our customers with actionable intelligence from vehicle and driver data using the latest

available technology in December 2010 we acquired Turnpike Global Technologies leading provider of

compliance and performance software operating on mobile devices such as smartphones tablets and rugged

handhelds This acquisition
allowed the Company to address the needs of fleets of all sizes through the use of

mobile solutions with no upfront hardware costs



In 2013 we introduced our new mobile-based trucking intelligence solution XRS The solution combines the no

upfront hardware cost model of Turnpike with the enterprise real-time features of XataNet in cloud-based SaaS

solution Built leveraging the power of mobile social cloud and information platforms XRS serves to assist fleets

in maximizing performance making trucking easier for the driver as well as maintaining compliance with the

evolving regulatory environment

We are leading the commercial trucking industrys migration to mobile devices for collecting and analyzing DOT

compliance and management data through our continued focus on leveraging the latest technology with our

solutions Our strong foundation of providing DOT-compliant driver logs for the tracking of Hours of Service

HOS and performance metrics which enable customers to reduce operating costs has allowed us to establish

customer base of over 1300 customers and 110000 subscribers

Industry Background

The commercial trucking industry operating class through heavy duty trucks can be bifurcated into private and

for-hire fleets Private fleets include distributors manufacturers wholesalers retailers and other companies that

transport their own goods using equipment they own or lease For-hire fleets include truckload less-than-truckload

and intermodal carriers whose primary business is the transportation of freight that belongs to others

Both types of commercial trucking fleets are incentivized to deliver in an efficient and effective manner to increase

customer satisfaction in the face of burdensome regulations and rising costs Therefore both types of fleets have

need for performance metrics related to fuel labor equipment safety and maintenance that will assist customers

with reducing expenses while continuing to allow them to maintain regulatory compliance Consequently all

companies that utilize heavy duty trucks in their operations are facing the following operational trends and

challenges

Industry Trends and Challenges

Consumerization of Mobile Technology

The adoption of mobile devices has increased dramatically in the past decade Analyst firm Forrester Research notes

that over 257 million smartphones and 126 million tablets will be in use by U.S consumers by 2016 The adoption

of mobile solutions is undeniable for all businesses including fleets who continue to adopt mobile technology to

increase driver performance and compliance all while making information available throughout their customers

supply chain as well as available for internal fleet operations Specifically the adoption of mobile devices by the

commercial trucking industry allows for fleets to collect real-time information for customers connect with drivers

while on the road and automate workflows As result continued adoption of mobile solutions enables fleets to use

many of the devices they have already deployed in the field allowing for faster and greater returns on investment

This trend signals move from traditional on-board computers to mobile solutions that are easier to use for drivers

fleet managers safety personal and owners furthering adoption throughout the fleet

We believe that by developing applications that run on mobile devices used in various aspects of fleets operations

our solutions will ensure fleets realize returns on their investments in technology in ways that investments in single-

purpose hardware used in legacy solutions could not provide

Regulatory Concerns

Fleets are facing tremendous pressure from regulatory entities including the Department of Transportation Federal

Motor Carrier Safety Administration FMCSA the International Fuel Tax Agreement and state and local law

enforcement personnel These governing bodies are tasked with road safety and enact regulatory standards which

commercial trucking fleets must operate within The Companys solutions with compliance offerings assist fleets in

addressing the following regulatory standards

Electronic Logging Mandate In June 2012 the U.S Congress passed the Moving Ahead for Progress in

the 21St Century Act MAP-2 which allocated funds for improved highways throughout the U.S As part of this

bill the FMCSA has been directed to write rule mandating the use of electronic logging devices ELD for all

drivers required to keep Record of Duty Status RODS This mandate will force many fleets to replace paper log



books with electronic logging solutions The FMCSA estimates the provisions
ofMAP-21 will impact 3.1 million

commercial trucks and 3.4 million drivers The Company estimates 0.5 million vehicles are using electronic logging

devices today leaving 2.6 million commercial trucks needing an ELD when this regulation becomes effective

Hours of Service Based on the complexity of the FMCSA regulation 395.15 rule set commercial

trucking fleets are expanding their voluntary adoption of electronic logging devices to track RODS and other driver

time activity in order to remain compliant Our solutions allow trucking fleets to electronically record drivers

hours of service based on the FMCSA 395.15 rule set

Driver Vehicle Inspection Reports FMCSA regulation 396.11 requires every motor carrier to prepare

written reports at the completion of each days work on every vehicle operated documenting the proper

maintenance and working order of the vehicle Current paper-based methods for filing inspection reports can be

automated through an electronic Driver Vehicle Inspection Report DVIR process Our mobile solutions offer

DVIR application that streamlines communication between driver and fleet maintenance personnel allowing for

greater uptime and utilization of vehicles

International Fuel Tax Agreement The International Fuel Tax Agreement IFTA requires commercial

trucks to remit fuel taxes based on the amount of fuel consumed in their jurisdiction To comply with the IFTA

regulations drivers must record miles driven in each jurisdiction and fuel purchase information Many heavy duty

vehicles cross numerous jurisdictional borders each week resulting in significant paperwork for the driver the

clerical staff of the carrier and the processor of the fleets fuel tax returns In addition in order to comply with these

requirements fleets must maintain records at their home domicile as well as at the carriers headquarters thereby

ensuring the records are readily available for regulators to review for fuel tax compliance Our solutions automated

IFTA service provides fleets the ability to print sign and send filings which greatly reduces the administrative

burden associated with fuel tax compliance

Compliance Safety Accountability Enacted in 2010 the Compliance Safety Accountability CSA
program from the FMCSA applies to all commercial trucking fleets registered with the DOT Designed to improve

the safety of large trucks and buses and ultimately reduce commercial motor vehicle-related crashes injuries and

fatalities CSA increases visibility into truck safety operations by making all vehicle inspections and compliance

violations available to the public for period of two years In addition CSA ranks commercial trucking fleets

against their peer group based on set of seven Behavior Analysis and Safety Improvement Categories BASICs
As of September 2013 more than 63000 carriers exceeded the acceptable threshold level for at least one of seven

BASICs trigging an intervention process by the FMCSA including warning letters targeted roadside inspections and

on-site reviews Our solutions assist companies in improving CSA scores in the unsafe driving HOS compliance

and vehicle maintenance BASICs through safety measurement and monitoring functionality

Operational Efficiencies

Increased regulatory burdens higher fuel prices and shortage of qualified drivers continue to place upward

pressure on operational costs forcing fleets to seek solutions for maximizing vehicle driver and overall fleet

performance In fact based on study from the American Trucking Research Institute ATRI fuel and driver

wages and benefits continued to be the largest operational cost for commercial trucking fleets constituting 72

percent of total operating costs in 2012 Consequently customers are in need of solutions that address the following

challenges

Fuel Costs Fuel is the largest operating cost for fleets representing an overall cost of $0.64/mile or 39

percent of total operational costs in 2012 based on ATRI reports thereby making monitoring of fleets fuel

consumption critical to success Commercial trucking fleets use XRS solutions to modify driver behaviors relative

to reducing idle time excessive speed aggressive driving and progressive shifting techniques thereby allowing

them to optimize fuel expenditures

Driver Wages and Benefits Driver wages and benefits represent an operational cost of $0.53/mile or 33

percent of total operational costs Our solutions provide real-time data that improves communication between driver

and fleet manager leading to efficient dispatch orders and optimization of drivers time within Hours of Service and

delivery constraints



Limited Availability of Commercial Truck Drivers

The commercial trucking industry continues to face shortage of qualified truck drivers required to address current

freight capacity According to the American Trucking Association the industry needs to recruit 96000 new drivers

annually to keep pace with the freight capacity demand An aging driver workforce lack of younger drivers entering

the profession and increased scrutiny of all drivers based on the tighter regulatory environment will expand the

driver shortage In addition to driver shortage driver turnover continues to be challenge with an industry average

annual turnover rate near 100 percent The combination of the high turnover and shortage of qualified drivers in

trucking is resulting in fleets spending significant resources to identifS and retain qualified drivers Our solutions

have an increased focus on continual driver training to ensure new drivers quickly adapt and receive value

Our Product Strategy

Our product strategy focuses on addressing the needs of private and for-hire fleets of all sizes that are faced with

compliance and fleet performance challenges Specifically the Company is pursuing the following strategies

Compliance as Core Focus

With over 25
years

of experience in serving our customer base we have the knowledge and experience to address

the ever-changing compliance requirements facing the commercial trucking industry including but not limited to

the MAP-2 mandate Specifically majority of our 110000 subscribers use our electronic logging solutions to

help comply with HOS regulations maximize efficiency of drivers time and promote safe driving

Our safety and compliance focus allows fleets to help improve CSA scores and reduce administrative burdens

associated with IFTA and DVIR regulations By maintaining this focus and adapting our solutions as regulations are

published we gain competitive advantage over new solutions in the marketplace and increase the value we deliver

to customers

Leveraging the Power of Technology Convergence

The commercial trucking industry has been pioneer in the adoption of new technology that assists them in

managing their business As result it is not surprise that fleets have begun to embrace and build on four

overarching components of technology which analyst firm Gartner calls the Nexus of Forces With this knowledge

the XRS mobile solution released into general availability in April 2013 was developed utilizing advance mobile

application technology allowing functionality to be added to meet the current and anticipated demands of our

customers while working to maximize the four components of technology which include

Mobile Technology Our XRS mobile solution is literally in the hands of drivers building off the ubiquity

of communication tools available today The power of open devices empowers everything we do as an organization

The XRS mobile solution was built on mobile for mobile

Social Interaction The XRS mobile solution opens the door to connected social ecosystem thereby

eliminating the historical isolation experienced by drivers Mobile and social technology allows drivers to connect

through social media platforms allowing fleets to build upon existing social infrastructures established through

current communication technology to maximize on the sharing of information and the creation of sense of

community

Cloud Computing The XRS mobile solution uses cloud infrastructure that has the capability to

dynamically scale to meet current and future customer needs This infrastructure also enhances disaster recovery

business continuity and higher availability levels for the XRS mobile solution

Information Data collected via the XRS mobile solution is used daily by fleets to make decisions on how

to improve various aspects of their operations such as increasing fuel efficiency maintaining vehicles and assuring

driver regulatory compliance



Integration

Our development efforts continue to focus on key integrations to strategic third-party providers including but not

limited to dispatch routing payroll and proof of delivery solutions We feel that continuing to align with strategic

third-party providers will allow us to broaden the capabilities of the XRS mobile solution to meet the more complex

demands of larger fleets

Capturing and Use ofData

Vehicles and drivers engage in activities that are capable of generating significant amount of complex operational

and behavioral data We believe this rich source of big data is growing at rapid pace and if collected harnessed

and analyzed can be used to further optimize fleet operations through comparisons to industry benchmarking As

such we continue to focus on the development of tools that would allow our customers to utilize this data in the

management of their operations

Our Business Strategy

Information provided by the FMCSA Motor Carrier Management Information System defines the total available

market for our solutions as 7.1 million trucks across 0.8 million active companies bifurcated into private and for-

hire fleets Both types of fleets have need for performance metrics related to fuel labor equipment safety and

maintenance We believe there is and will continue to be significant demand in the commercial trucking industry

for fleet management systems to address these needs principally to assist customers with reducing expenses

maintaining compliance standards and improving customer service As result the Company is pursuing five-part

strategy built on

Adoption of the Nexus ofForces and Leading Mobile Revolution in Trucking

The overall adoption of mobile devices with the continued adoption of smartphones affects all commercial

trucking companies including fleets that are equipping drivers with smartphones rugged handhelds and/or tablets

The adoption of mobile devices by the commercial trucking industry allows for fleets to collect real-time

information for customers connect with drivers while on the road and automate workflows As result our mobile

solutions enable fleets to use many of the devices they have already deployed in the field allowing for faster and

greater returns on investment

Making Electronic Compliance ccessible for All Sized Fleets

Fleets must maintain compliance with number of DOT and FMCSA regulations including HOS rules IFTA and

CSA Our mobile solutions provide simple installations and implementations for use in fleets of all sizes not

possible with traditional on-board solutions

Providing Performance Management Solutions

Fleets today are facing increasingly difficult operating environments that require innovative solutions to reduce

costs and increase customer service Our customers are able to gain efficiencies in fuel labor equipment utilization

maintenance of assets and increased safety across their fleets

Specifically with our solutions fleets are able to

Increase fuel utilization through minimizing idling and speeding of drivers

Better utilize labor through workforce management driver efficiencies and improved workflow

Improve equipment utilization through vehicle monitoring

Minimize maintenance costs through proper inspections and continuous vehicle fault code monitoring

Reduce crashes compliance concerns and related costs through safety and compliance monitoring

Making Lfe Easier for the Driver

Driving truck is difficult job and retaining the qualified drivers is continuous challenge for all fleets Fleet

owners are actively looking for ways to recruit and retain these drivers We are focused on making life easier for the

driver by reducing administrative work increasing safety on the road and empowering drivers with solutions that

improve their compliance with DOT regulations Through the power of mobile technology drivers will be able to



use business and personal applications with the same device further simpIifing the balancing of professional and

personal responsibilities

Successful Conversion ofLegacy Customers

The XRS solution utilizes advanced mobile application technology allowing us to add functionality to meet the

current and anticipated demands of our customers By focusing on further developing core functionality and

integration to third parties the XRS solution will provide functionality at level exceeding our legacy solutions in

business model that customers prefer Over time we expect our customer base to migrate to the XRS solution

allowing them to take advantage of advances in mobile technology product functionality and scalability and overall

ease of use However until we have successfully converted our existing customers to the XRS mobile solution we

will continue to support our legacy solutions to ensure they are compliant with changes in the regulatory

environment

Our Solutions

XRS Corporation provides solutions that address the performance and compliance needs of the private and for-hire

fleets All solutions obtain truck-related data through technology connected to the engine control module That data

is transmitted to portal for fleet managers to view truck and driver compliance and performance data

The Companys solutions can be separated into two categories Mobile and Legacy Solutions

Mobile Solutions

XRS Built leveraging the Companys industry knowledge and existing technology the XRS solution is an

application that operates on mobile device using no upfront hardware cost model XRS addresses the needs of all

sized fleets including owner/operators and small medium and enterprise-sized fleets Specifically small in-cab

XRS Relay device is unobtrusively attached onto the truck dashboard where it taps into the engine control module

with simple plug-and-play cable Data is transferred from the XRS Relay via Bluetooth to the drivers mobile

device and the data is then transmitted via cellular network to the web-based system for data collection and

analysis

Launched in fiscal 2013 the XRS solution delivers core set of functionality expected of fleet management

and compliance solutions including electronic driver logs driver vehicle inspection reports automated fuel tax

filings driver and vehicle performance reporting GPS tracking two-way structured forms fault code monitoring

and reporting alerts and scheduled stops reporting

Turnpike One of the first mobile fleet optimization and compliance solutions employing no upfront

hardware cost model Similar to the XRS solution Turnpike utilizes small in-cab XRS RouteTracker device to

collect engine and GPS data that is transmitted via Bluetooth to mobile device Drivers interact with the mobile

device for HOS vehicle inspection and stop-related data which is transmitted through cellular network to the

Turnpike SaaS platform used by fleet managers to access information used in managing their fleet Turnpike was

developed to address the needs of small medium and large sized fleets who need to comply with DOT regulations

and optimize vehicle and driver performance

Legacy Solutions

XataNet fleet optimization and compliance solution focused on addressing the needs of private and for

hire fleets who are focused on limiting compliance risks while also maximizing the performance of their fleet

XataNet utilizes traditional on-board computer integrated communications and SaaS platform used by fleet

managers

MobileMax mobile communication platform for the for-hire market with integrated back office

systems The MobileMax on-board computer system allows for high availability messaging forms automation and

fleet related data necessary for running profitable carrier operation



Our Customers

The Company has strong customer base with over 1300 customers representing over 110000 active truck

subscriptions Customers include individual owner-operators small medium and enterprise-sized fleets in the

private and for-hire commercial trucking markets As of the end of fiscal 2013 our customers represented over 33 of

the Transport Topics top 100 private fleets and over 20 of the Transport Topics top 100 for-hire carriers

Sales Marketing

Marketing

XRS Corporation uses combination of integrated marketing activities including email marketing media relations

social media and trade shows along with web-based campaigns to gain exposure and build awareness We promote

and exhibit at select industry conferences and actively pursue speaking opportunities at industry trade shows and

association forums for executives and managers

In connection with its various marketing activities the Company has formed partnerships with various

communications service providers including but not limited to ATT Sprint Verizon Wireless and original

equipment manufacturers OEMs such as Samsung and Motorola Solutions Our association with the

communication service providers allows us to solidify competitive device and data plans that will ultimately be

utilized by our customers in conjunction with our mobile solutions In addition our relationships with these OEMs

allow us to be on the forefront of device development ensuring our solution is certified on leading devices Through

these relationships with communication service providers and OEMs as well as other third-party resellers we gain

access to market development initiatives including product launches specific industry advertising target account

joint selling opportunities and market awareness for mobility-related solutions allowing us to reach more customers

and provide the customer with the widest choice of mobile devices necessary for an end-to-end solution

Sales

XRS Corporation sells its solutions using both direct and channel sales methods

Direct Sales XRS Corporation uses direct sales force that includes sales development representatives

inside sales national and regional sales account executives and client managers All members of these departments

are professionals with strong working knowledge of our solutions as well as in-depth knowledge of the

commercial trucking industry and related compliance regulations

Channel Sales We also work closely with ATT Sprint Verizon Wireless and other third-party resellers

to sell our XRS and Turnpike solutions In order to provide complete solution to our customers we work closely

with partner sales executives to sell XRS and Turnpike solutions bundled with mobile devices and data plans

ATT Sprint and Verizon Wireless are bill-on-behalf-of relationships that allow them to sell XRS and Turnpike

solutions directly to fleets expanding our overall presence in the marketplace In addition customers experience

improved back-office efficiency by receiving single invoice for mobile communications and XRS or Turnpike

monthly subscription charges These relationships also help mitigate customer credit risk

We believe the use of direct and channel sales forces in conjunction with communication service providers provides

us the ability to align our sales efforts to secure fleets of all sizes from large fully-integrated fleets with complex

needs to individual owner/operators needing only compliance solution In addition we focus our direct and

channel sales forces and our marketing efforts on companies operating fleets within vertical markets that have

experienced significant benefits from our solutions These vertical markets include food distribution petroleum

production and marketing automobile haulers manufacturing retail/wholesale delivery and general freight markets

Research Development

In fiscal 2013 and 2012 the Company spent $11.7 million and $14.8 million respectively on research and

development activities We concentrate research and development activities on the development of new solutions

and additional functionality on existing solutions in order to meet customers current and anticipated future needs



To enhance our existing solutions and to introduce new solutions to our existing and potential customers we focus

on the following key areas

Development of the XRS Mobile Solution Fleets continue to seek specific solutions that address

compliance and performance needs while making trucking easier for the driver The XRS mobile solution brings

new level of scalability reliability and functionality to market

Ensuring Compliance with Regulatory Standards During Fiscal 2013 the FCMSA enacted new Hours of

Service regulations that required all of XRS Corporations solutions to be modified to meet the new rule sets

Additional changes in HOS regulations including court ordered changes will have an impact on development

resources

Preparing for the Electronic Logging Device Mandate The Company has dedicated resources for

meeting not only the compliance changes needed for the upcoming ELD mandate but also platform scalability and

reliability to meet anticipated demand

Certification of Mobile Devices XRS Corporation works with manufacturers and communication service

providers to ensure smartphones tablets and rugged handheld devices work with our mobile solutions The

Companys mobile solutions are certified on over 50 devices and we continue to evaluate the market for best fit

partners and products that meet the needs of our customers

Development of Integration Methods The XRS platform utilizes web services and mobile-to-mobile

integration services to expand product reach and integration with third-party solutions By partnering with

Independent Software Vendors ISVs we are able to empower ISV partners with suite of compliance applications

and mobile-based application programming interfaces These third-party relationships also provide access to market

opportunities with fleets that have already installed third-party solutions and are interested in adding compliance

solutions without significant upfront costs

The Company has engaged third-party software development firms which have allowed us to scale development

efforts and increase functionality of our solutions These third-party software development firms have entered into

confidentiality agreements with respect to our proprietary technology

XRS Corporation has relationships with several manufacturing partners to provide the hardware components that

are required for our solutions All manufacturing partners have entered into confidentiality agreements with respect

to our proprietary technology

Intellectual Property

XRS Corporation owns portfolio of trademarks trade names and licenses including XRSTM Xata XataNet

Xata TurnpikeTM and MobileMaxTM which are scheduled to expire from 2017 through 2022 All of the Companys

software programs and report and screen formats are also protected under U.S copyright laws In addition the

Company owns several patents related to its fleet management solutions and has secured patents pending These

proprietary properties in aggregate constitute valuable asset although the Company also believes that its business

is not dependent upon any single proprietary property or any particular group of proprietary properties

Employees

XRS Corporation had total of 165 full-time employees as of September 30 2013 These employees none of

whom is represented by unions work in variety of functions including sales and marketing research and

development finance human resources customer service and support purchasing and warehousing



Item 1A Risk Factors

We operate in rapidly changing environment that involves numerous uncertainties and risks Investors evaluating

our Company and our business should carefully consider the factors described below and all other information

contained in this Annual Report on Form 10-K and subsequent amendments thereto and reports we file with the

SEC This section should be read in conjunction with the Consolidated Financial Statements and Notes thereto and

Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations included in this report

Any of the following factors could materially harm our business operating results and financial condition and/or

negatively affect our stock price Additional factors and uncertainties not currently known to us or that we currently

consider immaterial could also harm our business operating results and financial condition We may make forward-

looking statements from time to time both written and oral We undertake no obligation to revise or publicly release

the results of any revisions to these forward-looking statements based on circumstances or events which occur in the

future The actual results may differ materially from those projected in any such forward-looking statements due to

number of factors including those set forth below and elsewhere in this report

Future revenue growth and our ability to achieve future profitable operations depend on the market acceptance

ofour new mobile solution

In light of the continuing adoption of mobile technology the Company has invested in its next generation platform

XRS The XRS solution which uses readily available smartphones tablets and rugged handhelds devices will

eventually replace our XataNet Turnpike and MobileMax solutions In order to achieve revenue growth we will

need to sell and retain higher volume of software subscriptions as the XRS mobile solution will have lower

monthly subscription price than some of our legacy solutions In addition in order to achieve margin growth we

will need to successfully implement lower cost deployment and support strategies and effectively reduce

infrastructure costs of legacy solutions If the new mobile solution is not accepted by new customers and we are

unable to successfully convert our existing customers to the new solution revenues could decrease and our

operating results could be adversely affected

Failure to effectively and efficiently attract sell to and retain small and medium-sized businesses fleets would

adversely affect our operating results

We sell our solutions to fleets of all sizes However in the current year it will be imperative for us to drive near-

term mobile-based sales to small to mid-sized fleets with the XRS solution as we continue to align with strategic

third-party providers to broaden the capabilities of the XRS mobile solution to meet the more complex demands of

larger fleets Small and medium-sized fleets are challenging to reach acquire and retain in cost-effective manner

Selling to and retaining small and medium-sized fleets customers is more difficult than selling to and retaining

enterprise fleets as small and medium-sized fleets customers generally

have high failure rates

are price sensitive

are difficult to reach with targeted sales campaigns

have high churn rates in part because of the scale of their businesses and the ease of switching service

providers and

generate less revenue per customer and per transaction

If we are unable to market and sell our solutions to small and medium-sized fleets with competitive pricing and in

cost-effective manner our ability to grow our revenue and maintain and grow our profitability will be harmed

Our existing customers might cancel or fail to renew contracts or choose not to convert to our new mobile

solution

Certain of the Companys large customers that generate significant revenues may cancel or not renew their contracts

potentially causing significant adverse impact on our business In fiscal 2013 26 percent of our revenue was

generated by our top five customers The Companys XataNet and MobileMax customers have typically entered into



multi-year contracts with automatic renewal or in certain circumstances month-to-month contracts Historically

the majority of our Turnpike customers have operated under month-to-month contracts allowing them the ability to

terminate the agreement upon providing 30-days notice The XRS mobile solution will typically be structured on

multi-year contract basis

We will continue to have declining hardware systems revenue as customers shift away from hardware-based

solutions to mobile-based solutions that use mobile devices supplied by third parties Until we are able to generate

significant portion of our revenue from our XRS mobile solution and have successfully converted our existing

customers to the XRS mobile solution we will incur the cost of supporting our legacy solutions and related

hardware systems while attempting to maintain our revenue base from those solutions These combined support and

development costs will continue to adversely impact our profitability If our existing customers cancel or fail to

renew their contracts for our existing solutions or choose not to convert to our XRS mobile solution our overall

revenues and profitability may decline if we are not able to derive sufficient revenue from new customers There is

no assurance that we can successfully bridge the transformation of our customer base from our XataNet

MobileMax and Turnpike solutions to our XRS mobile solution

Our market is highly competitive and is subject to revenue fluctuations

Competition in the fleet management and electronic logging device space is highly fragmented with providers

offering products ranging in sophistication and cost from basic electronic logging devices to advanced mobile

satellite communication and information systems Our overall competitive position depends on number of factors

including the price quality and performance of our solutions our quality of customer service the development of

new technology the ability of new and existing solutions to meet compliance requirements and the ability of our

solutions to be compatible with solutions provided by others in the industry As the requirements for electronic

logging devices are defined by the Federal Motor Carrier Safety Administration FMCSA it is likely we will face

additional competition from current providers of on-board computing platforms and face additional pressure
from

other products from vendors outside the Companys traditional competitive landscape Competition in the future

may in some cases result in price reductions reduced margins or loss of market share any of which could decrease

our revenue and growth rates or impair our operating results and financial condition We believe that our future

ability to compete successfully against existing and additional competitors will depend largely on our ability to

execute our strategy to provide cost effective mobile solutions with significantly differentiated features We may not

be able to implement this strategy successfully and our solutions may not be competitive with other technologies or

solutions that may be developed by our competitors which may adversely affect future results of operations

Industry consolidation may result in increased competition which could result in loss of customers or

reduction in revenue

Some of our competitors have made or may make acquisitions or may enter into partnerships or other strategic

relationships to offer more comprehensive services than they individually had offered or achieve greater economies

of scale In addition new entrants not currently considered to be competitors may enter our market through

acquisitions partnerships or strategic relationships We expect these trends to continue as companies attempt to

strengthen or maintain their market positions The potential entrants may have competitive advantages over us such

as greater name recognition longer operating histories more varied services and larger marketing budgets as well

as greater financial technical and other resources The companies resulting from combinations or that expand or

vertically integrate their business to include the market that we address may create more compelling service

offerings and may offer greater pricing flexibility than we can or may engage in business practices that make it

more difficult for us to compete effectively including on the basis of price sales and marketing programs

technology or service functionality These
pressures

could result in substantial loss of our customers or reduction

in our revenue
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The commercial trucking industry is subject to significant and increasing regulations that could affect our

solutions

The commercial trucking industry is subject to numerous regulations that place mandates on many aspects of the

businesses operating in the commercial trucking industry including the collection and maintenance of data

operational and safety requirements of products and methods of reporting driver and vehicle information In June

2012 the U.S Congress passed legislation that will eventually require the use of an electronic logging device to

track hours of service for truck carriers that are required to file record of duty status under the rules of the

FMCSA This new legislation will require truckers to move away from paper logs to an electronic logging solution

Because this new legislation could expand the marketplace for our types of products it should increase our market

opportunities but could also attract increased competition from existing or new competitors If this new legislation is

repealed or if the mandate to use electronic logging solutions is significantly delayed we will lose these new market

opportunities

If new laws or regulations are created that make our solutions less valuable or unauthorized relationships with

current customers could be damaged and we could lose prospective customers In addition an inability to offer

compliant solutions cost effectively could harm our reputation and brand adversely impact our operating results and

may require us to spend additional capital to gain compliance

We have limited number of solutions and those solutions are concentrated in one industry

Our solutions target only the commercial trucking industry in the U.S and Canada If this market segment

experiences downturn that decreases our sales the development of new solutions and expansion into new markets

could require significant time and substantial funding We must continue to make significant investments in research

and development in order to continue to develop new solutions enhance existing solutions ensure solutions remain

updated with changing compliance regulations and achieve market acceptance of such solutions We may incur

problems in the future in innovating and introducing new solutions Our development-stage solutions may not be

successfully developed or if developed may not achieve significant customer acceptance The timely availability of

these solutions in volume and their acceptance by customers are important to our future success If we are unable to

successfully define develop and introduce compelling new solutions if other companies develop similar solutions

or if we do not enhance existing solutions our number of customers may not grow as anticipated or may decline

which would adversely affect future results of operations

Our solutions may quickly become obsolete

The field of technology is constantly undergoing rapid change and we may not be able to react or adapt as quickly

as necessary Moreover development efforts by our competitors could make our solutions less competitive or

obsolete We believe that advancements in mobile technology provide opportunities for us to partner with number

of independent software vendors ISV5 offering products complementary to our solutions to enhance customer

productivity We cannot be assured that we can form alliances with such companies or that any such alliance will be

successful Our success depends in large part on our ability to anticipate changes in technology and industry

requirements and introduce new features and enhancements to our mobile solutions on timely basis through our

own product development and through alliances with ISVs If we are unable to do so for technological or other

reasons or if new features or enhancements do not achieve market acceptance our business operating results and

financial condition could be materially and adversely affected

Our XRS mobile solution must successfully function using cloud technology

Unlike our existing solutions which use private data center dedicated to our customers the XRS mobile solution

uses public cloud technology Because our customers will pay fixed monthly fee for our cloud-based service we

must successfully manage the variable cost components of our contract with the cloud provider to achieve

sustainable profit margins Our contract with the cloud provider which is standard customer contract allows the

provider to change pricing or modify or terminate their customer contracts at any time Because the cloud provider

has large number of customers using its public cloud services we believe that adverse contractual changes are
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unlikely If those types of changes occurred and we decided to use different cloud service platform or vendor it

would take time and investment to make that transition which could materially adversely impact our business

We utilize third-party resellers to sell our mobile solutions

Many of our mobile subscriptions are sold to customers through ATT Sprint and Verizon Wireless and other third-

party resellers Our current reseller contracts with these third-parties are non-exclusive and do not contain any

minimum sales commitments to us Because we do not control the sales activities of these third-party resellers our

future success will depend in large part on whether these parties can effectively sell our solutions to the commercial

trucking industry Future sales through these third-party resellers are also difficult to forecast because we do not

have complete visibility to the activities of their respective sales organizations Our future operating results will be

adversely affected if we do not generate sufficient sales leads these third-party resellers do not sell our solutions to

sufficient number of truck owners or operators or if these third-party resellers choose not to renew their reseller

contracts

We depend on proprietary technology

Our success is heavily dependent upon proprietary technology We have been issued patents by the U.S Patent and

Trademark Office that cover certain aspects
of our MobileMax solution We have applied for software-related

patents for our Turnpike and XRS solutions but there is no assurance those patents will be granted We rely on

combination of copyright trademark and trade secret laws confidentiality procedures and contractual provisions to

protect our proprietary rights These measures afford us only limited protection Despite our efforts to protect our

proprietary rights unauthorized parties may attempt to copy aspects of our systems or obtain and use information

that we regard as proprietary or our competitors may independently develop similar technology Either of these

events could adversely affect us

We depend on key software development firm and key contract manufacturei

We retained third-party software development firmto assist us with developing our XRS mobile solution as well

as future enhancements If this firm does not satisf our delivery requirements functionality of our XRS mobile

solutions may be compromised

We also use contract manufacturer to build the Relay and RouteTracker devices that connect to trucks engine

bus and communicate engine and truck data via Bluetooth to the mobile device running our mobile solution If this

contract manufacturer does not satisf our delivery requirements for these Relay and RouteTracker devices sales of

our mobile solutions could be adversely affected

We depend in part on confidentiality agreements that may not adequately protect our trade secrets and

proprietary information which could adversely affect our business

We have devoted substantial resources to the development of our proprietary technologies and related processes In

order to protect our proprietary technologies and processes we rely in part on trade secret laws and confidentiality

agreements with our employees independent contractors and other advisors These agreements may not effectively

prevent disclosure of confidential information and may not provide an adequate remedy in the event of unauthorized

disclosure of confidential information In addition others may independently discover our trade secrets or develop

similar technologies and processes and in either event we would not be able to assert trade secret rights Further

laws in certain jurisdictions may afford little or no trade secret protection and any changes in or unexpected

interpretations of the intellectual property laws in any country in which we operate may compromise our ability to

enforce our intellectual property rights Costly and time-consuming litigation could be necessary to enforce and

determine the scope of our intellectual property rights and failure or inability to obtain or maintain trade secret

protection or otherwise protect our intellectual property rights could adversely affect our business
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We depend on wireless communication networks owned and controlled by others

Our legacy solutions are dependent on continued access to wireless communication networks and satellite providers

collectively wireless communication networks with sufficient capacity Our ability to maintain our legacy

customer base and related revenue depends on the ability of these wireless communication networks to provide

sufficient network capacity reliability and security to our customers Even where wireless communication networks

provide coverage to entire regions there are occasional lapses in coverage An inability by wireless communication

networks to provide uninterrupted coverage with sufficient capacity to capture and transmit data could make our

services less reliable and less useful which could have material adverse effect on our business results of

operations and financial condition In addition our financial condition could be seriously harmed if the wireless

communication networks we rely on were to increase the price of their services or suffer operational or technical

failures

Our mobile solutions are not compatible with every model or type of smartphone tablet or rugged handheld

device and we must continually adapt our software for new mobile devices

Our proprietary mobile software is not compatible with every model or type of smartphone tablet and rugged

handheld The marketplace for mobile devices changes rapidly with periodic updates to operating systems and

frequent introductions of new devices and discontinuation of older devices We have currently certified over 50

mobile devices for use with our mobile solutions which represents only portion of those types of devices available

in the marketplace Because it is not economically or technically practical to certif every mobile device we must

focus our certification efforts on the most popular mobile devices used in our target markets If we are unable to

certify our mobile software for use with popular smartphones tablets and rugged handhelds we risk losing that

market opportunity which could adversely affect future results of operations

Third parties may claim we infringe on their intellectual property rights

Many participants in the technology industry as well as third parties that have obtained patent rights have regularly

demonstrated readiness to take legal action based on allegations of patent and other intellectual property

infringement Accordingly we may be subject to claims that our solutions infringe on the intellectual property rights

of others Any such claim whether valid or not could become significant expense Any such claims or litigation

could require us to incur substantial costs and divert significant valuable resources including the efforts of our

technical and management personnel which could harm the results of our operations and our financial condition

Specifically such claims or litigations could require us to stop selling the affected solutions redesign those

solutions to avoid infringement or obtain license all of which could be costly and harmful to our business In

addition if claims are brought against our customer for infringement relating to our solutions we may incur costs

indemnifying our customers and our relationships with our customers may be harmed

John Deere Special Technologies Group Inc JDSTG entities affiliated with Technology Crossover

Management VII Ltd collectively TCV and entities affiliated with Trident Capital Management- LLC

collectively Trident Capital are represented on our Board ofDirectors and individually and collectively own

enough capital stock to exert significant influence over XRS Corporation

As of December 13 2013 JDSTG was the record holder of 2144060 shares of our common stock Under the terms

of Stock Purchase Agreement between XRS Corporation and JDSTG as amended JDSTG has certain rights with

respect to corporate actions including the right to nominate and replace up to three members of our Board of

Directors

As of December 13 2013 TCV held substantial portion of our outstanding shares of Series Preferred Stock

representing the right to vote 9166666 shares of our common stock on an as-converted basis Under the terms of

our Certificate of Designation of Preferences of Series Preferred Stock TCV as the majority holder of our

outstanding Series Preferred Stock has the right to nominate replace and vote as separate class with respect to

member of our Board of Directors In addition TCV has certain rights of first refusal on certain new equity

issuances by us which is intended to provide TCV with an opportunity to maintain its current ownership Voting
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Agreement between us TCV and JDSTG is in place to further support certain of TCVs rights

As of December 13 2013 Trident Capital held all of our outstanding shares of Series Series and Series

Preferred Stock and portions of our outstanding shares of Series and Series Preferred Stock representing the

right to vote 7077348 shares of our commons stock on an as-converted basis Under the terms of our Certificate of

Designation of Preferences of Series Preferred Stock Trident Capital as the sole holder of our outstanding shares

of Series Preferred Stock has the right to nominate replace and vote as separate class with respect to up to two

members of our Board of Directors In addition Trident Capital has certain rights of first refusal on certain new

equity issuances by us which is intended to provide Trident Capital with an opportunity to maintain its current

ownership An Amended and Restated Voting Agreement among us JDSTG and Trident Capital is in place to

further support certain of Trident Capitals rights

The beneficial ownership and additional rights held by JDSTG TCV and Trident Capital enable these shareholders

both individually and collectively to exercise significant influence over the Company

We may need additional capitaL

If we do not generate anticipated cash flow levels our predictions regarding cash needs may prove inaccurate and

we may require additional financing If we require additional financing and we are unable to obtain such financing

on favorable terms our financial condition and results of operations may be materially and adversely affected

We have significant goodwill and definite-lived intangible assets and future impairment ofour goodwill and

definite-lived intangible assets could have material negative impact on our financial results

We test our goodwill for impairment on an annual basis or more frequently if triggering events are identified We

test our definite-lived intangible assets for impairment if triggering event is identified that indicates the carrying

value of the asset may not be recoverable Existence of impairment for both our goodwill and definite-lived

intangible assets is determined by comparing the estimated fair value of each asset to their respective carrying

values on the balance sheet In June 2012 we recorded charge of $3.5 million for impairment to certain intangible

assets related to our 2008 acquisition of Geologic Solutions Inc At September 30 2013 our goodwill and

intangible assets were $21.2 million and represented 43 percent of our total assets Long-term declines in projected

future cash flows could result in future goodwill and intangible asset impairments Because of the significance of

our goodwill and intangible assets any future impairment of these assets could have material adverse effect on our

financial results

Our common stock could be delisted due to failure to satisfy continued listing rule or standard

The NASDAQ Stock Market Rules require that we maintain minimum of $35.0 million in market value of listed

securities $2.5 million in shareholder equity or $0.5 million of net income from continuing operations for the most

recently completed fiscal year or two of the three most recently completed fiscal years In addition the closing bid

price of the listed securities must not be less than $1.00 per share for any consecutive 30-day period Failure to meet

these requirements could result in our common stock being delisted from the NASDAQ Capital Market If our

common stock is delisted the value of our common stock may decrease and it may be more difficult to sell shares of

our common stock

The market for our common stock is limited and you may not be able to sell the shares of our common stock that

you hold

Our common stock is thinly traded the market for purchases and sales of our common stock is limited and the sale

of limited number of shares could cause volatile stock price Accordingly it may be difficult to sell shares of our

common stock quickly without significantly depressing the value of the stock
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We may issue additional stock without shareholder consent

We have authorized 100000000 shares of common stock of which 10926142 shares were issued and outstanding

as of December 13 2013 The Board of Directors has authority without action or vote of the shareholders to issue

all or part of the authorized but unissued shares Additional shares may be issued in connection with future

financing acquisitions or otherwise Any such issuance will dilute the percentage ownership of existing

shareholders We are also currently authorized to issue up to 50000000 shares of preferred stock As of December

13 2013 there were 2394000 shares of Series Preferred Stock 1269000 shares of Series Preferred Stock

1567000 shares of Series Preferred Stock 1340000 shares of Series Preferred Stock and 10067000 shares

of Series Preferred Stock that were issued and outstanding The Board of Directors can issue additional preferred

stock in one or more series and fix the terms of such stock without shareholder approval Preferred stock may

include the right to vote as series on particular matters preferences as to dividends and liquidation conversion and

redemption rights and other preferential provisions The issuance of preferred stock could adversely affect the rights

of the holders of common stock and reduce the value of the common stock In addition specific rights granted to

holders of preferred stock could be used to restrict our ability to merge with or sell our assets to third party

Our directors liability is limited under Minnesota law and under certain agreements

Our Articles of Incorporation as amended and restated state that our directors are not liable for monetary damages

for breach of fiduciary duty except for breach of the duty of loyalty for acts or omissions not in good faith or

which involve intentional misconduct or knowing violation of law for dividend payments or stock repurchases

illegal under Minnesota law or for any transaction in which the director derived an improper personal benefit In

addition our bylaws provide that we shall indemnify our officers and directors to the fullest extent permitted by

Minnesota law for all expenses incurred in the settlement of any actions against them in connection with their

service as officers or directors of the Company In addition we have entered into indemnification agreements with

TCV and Trident Capital and their representatives who serve as directors on our Board which may supplement the

indemnification provisions available to them under Minnesota law

Effrctive internal controls are necessary for us to provide reliable financial reports If we fail to establish and

maintain effrctive control over financial reporting our ability to accurately and timely report our financial

results could be adversely affected

Our management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting

Internal control over financial reporting is process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the

reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements in accordance with U.S generally

accepted accounting principles material weakness is deficiency or combination of deficiencies in internal

control over financial reporting such that there is reasonable possibility that material misstatement of annual or

interim financial statements will not be prevented or detected on timely basis

Although we are committed to continuing to improve our internal control processes and although we will continue

to diligently and vigorously review our internal control over financial reporting any control system regardless of

how well designed operated and evaluated can provide only reasonable not absolute assurance that its objectives

will be met Therefore we cannot be certain that in the future material weakness or significant deficiency will

not exist or otherwise be discovered If our efforts to address the weakness identified are not successful or if other

deficiencies occur these weaknesses or deficiencies could result in misstatements of our results of operations

additional restatements of our consolidated financial statements decline in our stock price and investor confidence

or other material effects on our business reputation results of operations financial condition or liquidity
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Item lB Unresolved Staff Comments

None

Item Properties

The following table sets forth the significant real property that we own or lease as of September 30 2013

Size in

Location Function Sq Feet Commitment

Eden Prairie Minnesota Corporate offices 26791 Leased expiring December 2014

Burnsville Minnesota Distribution warehouse 15760 Leased expiring April 2014

Oakville Ontario Office space 3850 Leased expiring April 2016

Reston Virginia Communications 2424 Leased expiring April 2015

warehouse and office

space

Buffalo New York Office space 2500 Leased expiring November

2014

For financial information regarding obligations under leases see Note 11 of the Notes to the Consolidated Financial

Statements

Item Le2al Proceedings

Refer to Note 11 Commitments and Contingencies in Part II Item of this form 10-K

Item Mine Safety Disclosures

None

16



PART II

Item Market for Registrants Common Equityg Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity

Securities

The following table sets forth the quarterly high and low sales prices for our common stock as reported by the

NASDAQ Capital Market for fiscal
years

2013 and 2012 There is no market for our Series Series Series

Series or Series Preferred Stock

Fiscal 2013 Fiscal 2012

Low High Low High

First Quarter 0.50 0.82 0.49 1.65

Second Quarter 0.57 1.99 1.16 1.63

Third Quarter 1.50 2.72 0.75 1.34

Fourth Quarter 2.18 3.00 0.49 1.15

As of December 13 2013 our common stock was held by 99 holders of record

Dividend Policy

Except for the 8.0 percent Convertible Preferred Stock dividends paid to the holders of Series from issuance in

May 1999 until conversion in full in August 2000 we have never paid cash dividends on any of our securities We

have retained any earnings for use in our operations Our Board of Directors will determine future dividend

payments if any based upon our earnings capital needs and other relevant factors

In February 2012 the Company entered into two-year Loan and Security Agreement with Silicon Valley Bank

which contains among other customary representations warranties covenants and events of default including

without limitation covenants restricting the Companys ability to declare and pay cash dividends

On December 2003 we issued 1613000 shares of Series Preferred Stock that pays cumulative dividend of

4.0 percent of the original issue price per annum payable semi-annually The dividend is payable in additional

shares of Series Preferred Stock or cash at the option of the holders The Series Preferred Stock provides that

we cannot pay dividends to the holders of any other capital stock unless and until we have paid dividends accrued

on the Series Preferred Stock The holders of the Series Preferred Stock elected to receive dividends due and

payable on May 31 and November 30 annually in additional shares of Series Preferred Stock rather than cash

Accordingly we issued total of 97802 and 81227 shares of Series Preferred Stock for payment of accrued

dividends in fiscal 2013 and 2012 respectively

Sale of Unregistered Securities

None

Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

None

Item Selected Financial Data

Not applicable
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Item Mana2ements Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

The following discussion should be read in conjunction with the Consolidated Financial Statements and Notes

thereto and Risk Factors in this Annual Report on Form 0-K Annual Report This Annual Report contains

forward-looking statements that involve risks and uncertainties Our actual results could differ materially from those

in such forward-looking statements as result of many factors including those discussed in Risk Factors and

elsewhere in this Annual Report

Overview

XRS Corporation and its wholly owned subsidiary Turnpike Global Technologies Inc collectively XRS

Corporation the Company we our us delivers compliance and fleet management solutions to the commercial

trucking industry Our solutions enable customers to improve compliance with United States Department of

Transportation DOT regulations optimize the utilization of their assets and enhance the productivity of fleet

operations across the entire supply chain resulting in decreased costs We are leading the commercial trucking

industrys migration to mobile devices for collecting and analyzing DOT compliance and management data through

our continued focus on leveraging the latest technology with our solutions

The Companys mobile solutions include

XRS The XRS solution is mobile fleet optimization and compliance solution built with the scalability of

cloud-based infrastructure and the functionality to support North Americas largest fleets down to an

individual owner/operator It harnesses the power of mobility transforming driver and truck data into an

easy to use dashboard of information which is shared in real-time between drivers dispatchers and fleet

owners XRS uses monthly subscription model with no upfront hardware costs

Turnpike Turnpike is the Companys first generation mobile fleet optimization and compliance solution

which uses monthly subscription model with no upfront hardware costs

The Companys legacy solutions include

XataNet fleet optimization and compliance solution utilizing traditional on-board computer

integrated communications and SaaS platform used by fleet managers with broad functionality for

enterprise customers seeking to maximize performance and minimize compliance risks

MobileMax traditional on-board communication solution for the for-hire trucking market with

integrated back-office systems

With over 1300 customers representing over 110000 active truck subscriptions XRS Corporation has strong

foundation as an industry leader in delivering Federal Motor Carrier Safety Administration compliant electronic

logging devices with track record of empowering fleet owners to leverage truck data to radically reduce costs

XRS Corporation has sales and distribution partnerships with various third-party resellers supporting the U.S and

Canadian commercial trucking industries
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Operating Results

XRS Corporation operates as single business segment and believes the information presented in its Managements

Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations provides an understanding of its

business operations and financial condition The following table sets forth detail related to revenue cost of goods

sold and gross margins in thousands except percentage data

For the Year Ended September 30

2013 2012

45675 47455

12365 13043

33310 34412

72.9 72.5

9340 13893

7640 15287

1700 1394
18.2 10.0%

1181 1741

2263 2327

1082 586
91.6% 33.7%

56196 63089

22268 30657

33928 32432

60.4 51.4

In the above chart the revenue and cost of goods sold detail for categories listed are defined as follows

Software revenue includes monthly subscriptions from the XataNet XRS and Turnpike solutions monthly

fees from the MobileMax solution and activation fees

Hardware systems revenue includes hardware with embedded firmware and for the XataNet solution

software that can be hosted by the customer warranty and repair revenue

Services revenue includes installation implementation training and professional services revenue

Software cost of goods sold consists of communication costs hosting costs depreciation of Relay and

RouteTracker assets where the customer selected the no upfront hardware cost option and direct personnel

costs related to network infrastructure as well as technical support for the XRS and Turnpike solutions

Hardware systems cost of goods sold consists of direct product costs warranty costs and product repair

costs as well as direct personnel costs and technical support for the XataNet and MobileMax solutions

Services cost of goods sold consists of third-party vendor costs and direct costs related to services

personnel

Software

Revenue

Cost of goods sold

Gross margin

Gross margin

Hardware systems

Revenue

Cost of goods sold

Gross margin deficit

Gross margin deficit

Services

Revenue

Cost of goods sold

Gross deficit

Gross deficit

Total

Revenue

Cost of goods sold

Gross margin

Gross margin

19



Comparison of Fiscal 2013 Operating Results to Fiscal 2012

Fiscal 2012 Impairment and Business Realignment Charges

During fiscal 2012 the Company recorded $6.0 million of impairment and business realignment charges as it

accelerated its transition to mobile solutions from hardware-based solutions The fiscal 2012 business realignment

charges included $0.9 million in personnel expenses from workforce reduction $0.4 million in accelerated

depreciation of fixed assets $0.8 million to write off excess and obsolete inventory and $0.4 million in estimated

costs to terminate inventory purchase commitments The Company also recorded non-cash impairment charge of

$3.5 million associated with intangible assets that were originally recorded in fiscal 2008 in conjunction with the

acquisition of Geologic Solutions Inc

Revenue

The continued adoption of the Companys no upfront hardware cost mobile solutions during fiscal 2013 drove

10.9 percent decrease in total revenue from $63.1 million in fiscal 2012 to $56.2 million in fiscal 2013

Mobile software revenue grew 19.6 percent over fiscal 2012 as customers continued to respond to the increased use

of mobile applications within the commercial trucking industry Legacy software revenue was impacted by the shift

in new customers selecting the Companys mobile solutions as well as by attrition in the legacy subscription base

As result overall software revenue was $45.7 million in fiscal 2013 compared to $47.5 million in fiscal 2012

Software revenue represented 81.3 percent of total revenue in fiscal 2013 compared to 75.2 percent in fiscal 2012

Hardware systems revenue decreased 32.8 percent to represent 16.6 percent of total revenue in fiscal 2013

compared to 22.0 percent in fiscal 2012 This decline is attributable to decreased sales of XataNet hardware systems

as adoption of the Companys mobile solutions which have no upfront hardware costs to customers continues to

increase

Cost of Goods Sold and Gross Margin

Total cost of goods sold decreased 27.4 percent to $22.3 million for fiscal 2013 compared to $30.7 million in fiscal

2012 Overall gross margin percentage increased 9.0 percentage points to 60.4 percent of revenue for fiscal 2013

compared to 51.4 percent of revenue in fiscal 2012 Overall gross margins for the year ended September 30 2013

benefited from improvements in both software and hardware systems gross margins and the continued shift to

software revenue comprising larger portion of overall revenue Overall gross margins for the year ended

September 30 2012 include $1.6 million of business realignment charges

Software cost of goods sold of$12.4 million decreased 5.2 percent in fiscal 2013 compared to $13.0 million in

fiscal 2012 Software gross margin improved to 72.9 percent for fiscal 2013 compared to 72.5 percent of revenue

for fiscal 2012 which reflects the Companys transition from legacy to mobile solutions as well as $0.4 million of

business realignment charges recorded in fiscal 2012

Hardware systems cost of goods sold of $7.6 million decreased 50.0 percent in fiscal 2013 compared to $15.3

million in fiscal 2012 However hardware systems gross margins increased 28.2 percentage points to 18.2 percent

in fiscal 2013 compared to negative 10.0 percent
in fiscal 2012 Hardware system margins for the year ended

September 30 2013 improved as result of favorability in warranty activity and higher margin parts sales

representing larger portion of total hardware systems revenue Fiscal 2012 hardware systems gross margins

include $1.2 million of business realignment charges

Selling General and Administrative Expenses

Selling general and administrative expenses consist of personnel costs for the Companys sales marketing client

management and administration functions sales commissions marketing and promotional expenses executive and

administrative costs and accounting and professional fees Selling general and administrative expenses were $21.1
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million or 37.5 percent of revenue for fiscal 2013 compared to $24.5 million or 38.8 percent in fiscal 2012

decrease in personnel expenses coupled with lower amortization as result of the fiscal 2012 third quarter

intangible asset impairment charge have driven the decreased selling general and administrative expenses in fiscal

2013 Fiscal 2012 selling general and administrative expenses were impacted by $0.8 million in employee

separation costs related to the business realignment

Research and Development Expenses

Research and development expenses consist of personnel costs and expenses related to development of new

solutions and added functionality on existing solutions Research and development expenses were $11.7 million or

20.9 percent of revenue for fiscal 2013 compared to $14.8 million or 23.5 percent of revenue for fiscal 2012

During fiscal 2013 the Company capitalized $0.4 million or 3.0 percent of total research and development

expenditures of software development costs associated with the Companys XRS mobile solution Continued

investment in the development and enhancement of the XRS mobile solutions functionality as well as maintenance

releases to the Companys legacy solutions to ensure compliance with continually changing governmental

regulations drove the research and development expenses recorded in fiscal 2013

Net Interest and Other Expense

Net interest and other expense was $0.1 million in fiscal 2013 compared to net interest and other expense of $0.3

million in fiscal 2012 As of September 30 2013 the Company utilized increased cash provided by operations to

maintain debt-free balance sheet compared to debt of $2.3 million as of September 30 2012 For the year ended

September 30 2013 the decrease in net interest and other expense was attributable to lower interest expense

resulting from lower average outstanding debt balances

Income Taxes

The Companys effective tax rate was 14.1 percent for fiscal 2013 compared to 5.1 percent for fiscal 2012 The

higher tax rate for fiscal 2013 was attributable to improved results from operations

The Company does not have objectively verifiable positive evidence of future taxable income accordingly the

Company concluded that recording valuation allowance to the extent of the Companys deferred tax assets is

appropriate The realization of the deferred tax assets is dependent on future taxable income during the periods

when deductible temporary differences and carryforwards are expected to be available to reduce taxable income

The amount of the net deferred tax asset considered realizable could be increased in the future if the Company

maintains profitability and it becomes more likely than not that these amounts would be realized As of

September 30 2013 the Company had federal net operating loss carryforwards and tax credit carryforwards

available for use of $39.7 million and $3.0 million respectively

Net Income Loss to Common Shareholders

Net income to common shareholders was $0.6 million for fiscal 2013 compared to net loss to common

shareholders of $10.2 million for fiscal 2012 Net income loss to common shareholders reflects preferred stock

dividends and preferred stock deemed dividends of $0.2 million for fiscal 2013 and 2012 Fiscal 2012 net loss to

common shareholders was impacted by $6.0 million of impairment and business realignment charges

Liquidity and Capital Resources

In February 2012 the Company entered into two-year Loan and Security Agreement with Silicon Valley Bank

consisting of $8.0 million revolving line of credit bearing interest at floating rate equal to either 1.0 percent over

the prime rate provided certain liquidity conditions are met or 1.5 percent over the prime rate Interest is paid

monthly and the entire amount of any outstanding principal is due at maturity on February 24 2014 Amounts

borrowed under the revolving line of credit are secured by substantially all of the personal property of the Company

and generally may be repaid and reborrowed at any time before maturity In conjunction with the signing of the
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Loan and Security Agreement the Company was required to repay all outstanding capital lease obligations under

the Master Lease Agreements with Buffalo City Center Leasing LLC and retire the Master Lease Agreements

The Loan and Security Agreement contains customary representations warranties covenants and events of default

including without limitation covenants restricting the Companys ability to incur indebtedness and liens to declare

and pay cash dividends and to merge or consolidate with another entity and also contains lockbox arrangement

and subjective acceleration clause The Loan and Security Agreement also includes financial covenants requiring

the Company to maintain minimum tangible net worth and adjusted quick ratio The Company was in compliance

with these covenants as of September 30 2013

Operating activities provided $9.5 million of cash for fiscal 2013 compared to use of cash by operating activities

of $0.9 million in fiscal 2012 Net income of $0.9 million for fiscal 2013 compared to net loss of $10.0 million in

fiscal 2012 and improvements in working capital driven by reduced inventory levels consistent with the Companys

transition to offering mobile solutions from hardware-based solution served as the primary contributors to the

increase

Cash used in investing activities was $3.9 million for fiscal 2013 compared to $2.9 million for fiscal 2012

Consistent with the Companys mobile strategy purchases of equipment used in the Companys mobile solutions

and capitalization of software development costs related to development of the XRS mobile solution served as the

primary investing activities for fiscal 2013 For fiscal 2012 cash used in investing activities reflected investment in

the Companys SaaS infrastructure as well as purchases of equipment used in the Companys mobile solutions

Cash used in financing activities was $2.3 million for fiscal 2013 which reflects the Companys payoff of all

outstanding debt facilities resulting in debt-free balance sheet as of September 30 2013 The Company recorded

$1.4 million in cash used in financing activities in fiscal 2012 which represented early extinguishment of the capital

lease facility then used to finance certain equipment used in the Companys mobile solutions as well as the payment

of financing costs offset by draws on the Companys revolving line of credit

Non-GAAP Financial Measures

The Company recorded free cash flow of $5.6 million for fiscal 2013 an increase of $9.5 million as compared to

negative free cash flow of $3.8 million for fiscal 2012 The increase in free cash flow was driven by net income of

$0.9 million for fiscal 2013 compared to net loss of $10.0 million for fiscal 2012

The following table is reconciliation of free cash flow from net cash provided by used in operating activities and

net cash used in investing activities which are the most directly comparable financial measures calculated in

accordance with GAAP in thousands

For the Year Ended September 30

Net cash provided by used in operating activities

Net cash used in investing activities

Purchase of equipment and leasehold improvements

Purchase of Relay and RouteTracker assets

Capitalized software development

Proceeds from the sale of equipment

Net cash used in investing activities

Free cash flow

2013 2012

9474 906

513 2012

3013 931

355
16

3865 2941

5609 3847

The improvement in free cash flow contributed to $3.4 million increase in working capital to $13.0 million as of

September 30 2013 compared to $9.6 million as of September 30 2012
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Current assets

Current liabilities

Net current assets

Current portion of deferred revenue net of deferred costs

Working capital

The following table is reconciliation of working capital from current assets and current liabilities which are the

most directly comparable financial measures calculated in accordance with GAAP in thousands

September 30

2013 2012

21061 20942

9331 12882

11730 8060

1261 1544

12991 9604

Free cash flow and working capital are non-GAAP financial measures that management uses to assess the

Companys performance Management believes free cash flow and working capital provide useful information to

management and investors by presenting measurements of cash generated from operations that are available to fund

operations invest in solution and infrastructure development and repay debt Calculations of working capital and

free cash flow may not be comparable to similarly titled measures reported by other companies

The Company believes that the cash flow from operations existing funds availability on revolving line of credit

and vendor terms will provide adequate cash to fund operating needs for the foreseeable future If the Company

does not generate anticipated cash flow levels predictions regarding cash needs may prove inaccurate and

additional financing may be required

The Company anticipates to have similar revolving line of credit in place upon the expiration of the existing Loan

and Security Agreement

XRS Corporation Series Preferred Stock prohibits payment of dividends to the holders of any other capital stock

unless and until the Company has paid dividends accrued on the Series Preferred Stock which pays cumulative

dividend of 4.0 percent per annum of the original issue price payable semi-annually At the option of the Series

Preferred Stockholders such dividends are payable in additional shares of Series Preferred Stock or cash In fiscal

2013 and 2012 the Company issued 97802 and 81227 shares respectively of Series Preferred Stock for

payment of accrued dividends

Critical Accounting Policies

Accounting policies methods and estimates are an integral part of the Companys consolidated financial statements

and are based upon managements current judgments Certain accounting policies methods and estimates are

particularly important because of their significance to the consolidated financial statements Note of the Notes to

the Consolidated Financial Statements includes summary of the significant accounting policies and methods used

by the Company The following is discussion of what the Company believes to be the most critical of these

policies and methods

Revenue Recognition

The Company derives its revenue from sales of software which includes monthly subscriptions from the

XataNet Turnpike and XRS solutions monthly fees from the MobileMax solution and activation fees ii
hardware systems which includes hardware with embedded software and software that can be hosted by customer

warranty and repair revenue and iii services which includes installation implementation training and

professional services revenue

The Company sells its solutions using two methods direct sales and channel sales The Companys direct sales

approach uses direct sales force that includes sales development representatives inside sales national and regional

sales account executives and client managers to sell all of the Companys solutions into fleet operators and logistics

providers The Companys channel sales are driven by Company personnel working in tandem with third-party

resellers to sell the Companys XRS and Turnpike solutions to variety of fleet sizes and types
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The Companys XataNet and MobileMax customers enter into multi-year agreements with automatic renewal

features however in certain circumstances operate under month-to-month contracts Turnpike customers have

historically operated under month-to-month contracts allowing them the ability to terminate the agreement upon

providing 30-day notice Beginning in fiscal 2013 the Companys XRS customers have begun to enter into multi-

year agreements

General Revenue Recognition Criteria

The Company recognizes revenue when persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists delivery has occurred the

sales price is fixed or determinable and collection is probable solution is considered delivered to the customer

once it has been shipped and title and risk of loss has been transferred For most of the Companys hardware

systems and services sales these criteria are met at the time the hardware system is shipped and/or the services are

provided For the Companys software subscriptions these criteria are met over the term of the customers

agreement and therefore revenue is recognized over the term of the agreement

Revenue Recognition for Multiple-Element Arrangements

XRS Corporation generally enters into arrangements with customers that include the purchase of software

subscription non-software-related hardware systems and services from the Company at the same time or within

close proximity of one another referred to as multiple-element arrangements

The Company has identified three deliverables in arrangements involving the sale of its XataNet and MobileMax

solutions The first deliverable is the hardware system which includes embedded software that is essential to the

functionality of the hardware system and software that is or can be hosted by the customer The second deliverable

is the software subscription which covers hosting fees continued support and communication charges The final

deliverable includes certain services requested by the customer that are deemed essential to the functionality of the

hardware such as installation implementation andlor training

The Company has identified two deliverables in arrangements involving the sale of its Turnpike and XRS solutions

The first deliverable is the software subscription including the use of Relay or RouteTracker asset where the

customer selected the no upfront hardware cost option and direct personnel costs related to network infrastructure

as well as technical support The second deliverable includes certain services requested by the customer that are

deemed essential to the functionality of the software subscription

Each element within multiple-element arrangement is accounted for as separate unit of accounting provided the

following criteria are met the delivered hardware systems or services have value to the customer on standalone

basis and for an arrangement that includes general right of return relative to the delivered products or services

delivery or performance of the undelivered product or service is considered probable and is substantially controlled

by the Company XRS Corporation considers deliverable to have standalone value if the product or service is sold

separately by the Company another vendor or could be resold by the customer Further the Companys revenue

arrangements generally do not include general right of return relative to the delivered products Where the

aforementioned criteria for separate unit of accounting are not met the deliverable is combined with the

undelivered elements and treated as single unit of accounting for the purposes of allocation of the arrangement

consideration and revenue recognition For those units of accounting that include more than one deliverable but are

treated as single unit of accounting the Company generally recognizes revenues over the delivery period which

generally coincides with the customers contract term

For multiple-element arrangements in which separate units of accounting are identified the Company allocates

revenue to each element based on their relative selling prices In such circumstances the Company uses hierarchy

to determine the selling price to be used for allocating revenue to deliverables vendor specific objective

evidence VSOE of fair value if available ii third-party evidence TPE of selling price if VSOE is not available

and iii best estimate of the selling price ESP if neither VSOE nor TPE is available description as to how the

Company determined VSOE TPE and ESPs is provided below The Company limits the amount of revenue

recognized for delivered elements to an amount that is not contingent upon future delivery of additional products or

services or the meeting of any specified performance conditions
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The Companys process for determining its ESPs for each deliverable considers multiple factors that may vary

depending upon the unique facts and circumstances related to each deliverable Key factors considered by the

Company in developing the ESPs include prices charged by the Company for similar offerings historical pricing

practices pricing of competitive alternatives if they exist adjusted for differences in product specifications

product-specific business objectives and the life cycle of the solution The Company may modify its pricing

practices in the future which could result in changes to the determination of VSOE TPE and ESPs As result the

Companys future revenue recognition for multiple-element arrangements could differ materially from its results in

the current period ESPs are analyzed on an annual basis or more frequently if circumstances warrant

Other Revenue Recognition Policies Applicable to Software and Non-software Elements

The Company accounts for arrangements that consist only of software or software-related products including

certain of the Companys add-on product offerings in accordance with industry specific accounting guidance for

software and software-related transactions

Certain of the Companys customers engage the Company to purchase add-on product offerings as well as to

perform installation implementation training and professional services These revenues are accounted for

separately from multi-element revenue recognition because they qualify as standalone software or services

transactions as defined by industry specific accounting guidance for software and software-related transactions The

significant factors considered in determining whether the revenues should be accounted for separately include the

nature of services i.e consideration of whether the software or services are essential to the functionality of the

hardware system or software subscription degree of risk availability of services from other vendors timing of

payments and impact of milestones Revenues generated from add-on product offerings are recognized ratably over

the agreement as it is delivered to the customer Revenue generated from service transactions are recognized after

the services are performed assuming all other revenue recognition criteria noted above have been met

Finally the Company has entered into agreements with third-party providers to extend the benefits of solutions

throughout the customers supply chain The Company recognizes revenue generated under the aforementioned

agreements in accordance with the terms of each partnership agreement and accounting guidance governing

principal agent considerations

Deft rred Revenue Costs

The deferred revenue reflected in the accompanying consolidated balances sheets consists of the unearned portions

of items invoiced in accordance with the terms and conditions of an arrangement but that do not meet all the criteria

for revenue recognition Based on the nature of the transaction recognition of deferred revenue occurs as the

revenue recognition criteria are met on straight-line basis over the term of the related agreement over the

estimated life of customer or as services are provided The Company defers and recognizes costs associated with

the deferred revenue as the deferred revenue is recognized as revenue

Allowance for Doubfu1 Accounts

Accounts receivable are stated at amounts net of an allowance for doubtful accounts The Company grants credit to

customers in the normal course of business based on an evaluation of customers financial condition Balances are

typically due within 30 days consequently balances outstanding for period longer than contractual payment terms

are considered past due Estimates used in determining the allowance for doubtful accounts are based on historical

collection experience current trends aging of accounts receivable and periodic credit evaluations of the customers

financial condition The Company reserves for accounts receivable when they are determined to be uncollectible by

increasing the allowance for doubtful accounts and bad debt expense which is included in selling general and

administrative expense in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations Payments subsequently

received or otherwise determined to be collectible are treated as recoveries that reduce bad debt expense
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Goodwill and Definite-Lived Intangible Assets

As of September 30 2013 the carrying value of the Companys goodwill and identifiable intangible assets was

$21.2 million and represented 43.2 percent of total assets If the Company experiences revenue declines continuing

operating losses or does not meet operating forecasts the Company may be subject to future impairments

Additionally changes in assumptions regarding the future performance of the Companys business or significant

declines in the stock price or the market as whole could result in additional impairment indicators Because of the

significance of the Companys goodwill and identifiable intangible assets any future impairment of these assets

could have material and adverse effect on the Companys financial results

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of acquired businesses over the fair value of identifiable tangible net

assets and identifiable intangible assets purchased Goodwill is tested at least annually for impairment or more

frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate the asset might be impaired

The impairment test is performed using two-step process In the first step the fair value of the reporting unit is

compared with the carrying amount of the reporting unit including goodwill If the estimated fair value is less than

the carrying amount of the reporting unit an indicator of goodwill impairment exists and the second step must be

completed in order to determine the amount of the goodwill impairment if any that should be recorded In the

second step an impairment loss is recognized for any excess of the carrying amount of the reporting units goodwill

over the implied fair value of that goodwill The implied fair value of goodwill is determined by allocating the fair

value of the reporting unit in manner similar to purchase price allocation

The fair value of the Companys single reporting unit was determined using review of XRS Corporations market

capitalization and discounted cash flow analysis Use of the market capitalization approach consisted of

comparison of the value of the ownership interest that the shareholders maintain in the Company to the recorded

value of shareholders equity

In developing the discounted cash flow analysis assumptions about future revenues and expenses capital

expenditures and changes in working capital are based on the annual operating plan and long-term business plan for

the Companys single reporting unit These plans take into consideration numerous factors including historical

experience anticipated future economic conditions changes in raw material prices and growth expectations for the

industries and end markets in which XRS Corporation participates These assumptions are determined over five-

year long-term planning period Revenues and operating profit beyond fiscal 2018 are projected to grow at

perpetual growth rate of 3.0 percent Discount rate assumptions considered the Companys assessment of risks

inherent in the future cash flows of the reporting unit and its weighted average cost of capital discount rate of

17.5 percent was used in determining the discounted cash flows in the fair value analysis Actual results may differ

from those used in the Companys valuations

The Company completed its annual impairment test on the first day of the fourth quarter of fiscal 2013 and

concluded no indicators of impairment existed

Definite-Lived Intangible Assets

The Companys definite-lived intangible assets include customer and reseller relationships acquired technology and

trademark The Company amortizes its definite-lived intangibles with finite lives on straight-line basis over their

expected lives

Definite-lived intangible assets are evaluated for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances occur

that indicate that the carrying value of the asset or asset group may not be recoverable An impairment loss is

recognized whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate the carrying amount of an asset is not recoverable

Recoverability of these assets is measured by comparison of their carrying amounts to future undiscounted cash

flows the assets are expected to generate If certain definite-lived intangibles are considered to be impaired the
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impairment to be recognized equals the amount by which the carrying value of the assets exceeds their fair market

value as determined using an income approach The inputs used in the income approach include the use of Level

discount rate and Level forecasted cash flows inputs as discussed in the fair value hierarchy below

As result of the continued decline in the estimated fair value of the acquired customer contracts originally

recorded in conjunction with the acquisition of Geologic Solutions Inc Geologic the Company reviewed its

definite-lived intangible assets for impairment during fourth quarter of fiscal year 2013 and concluded there were

indicators of impairment Consequently the Company performed an undiscounted cash flow analysis concluding

that the future undiscounted cash flows the definite-lived intangible assets were expected to generate were in excess

of the carrying value of the asset therefore no impairment charge was recorded

During the third quarter of fiscal 2012 the Company recorded an impairment charge of $3.5 million as result of

the impairment review The impairment charge was associated with decline in the estimated fair value of acquired

customer contracts originally recorded in conjunction with the acquisition of Geologic driven by reductions in

expected future cash flows The fair value for the acquired customer contracts for which the carrying amount was

not deemed to be recoverable was determined using the future discounted cash flows the assets were expected to

generate

Warranties

The Company provides warranty on its solutions Liability under the warranty policies is based upon review of the

number of units sold historical and anticipated claim experience and cost per claim Adjustments are made to

accruals for warranties as claim data and historical experience warrant

As of September 30 2013 and 2012 the Company had accruals for warranties of $0.4 million and $0.7 million

respectively These amounts are included in accrued expenses in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets

Income Taxes

The Company accounts for income taxes using the asset and liability method Under this method deferred tax assets

and liabilities are recognized for the estimated future tax consequences attributable to differences between the

financial statement carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases and operating

loss and tax credit carryforwards The effect on deferred tax assets and liabilities of change in tax rates is

recognized in the consolidated statements of operations in the period when the change is enacted valuation

allowance is recorded to reduce the carrying amounts of deferred tax assets if it is more likely than not that such

assets will not be realized Changes in valuation allowances from period to period are included in income tax

expense benefit in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations in the period of change

The Company recognizes the effect of income tax positions only if those positions are more likely than not to be

sustained Recognized income tax positions are measured at the largest amount that is greater than 50 percent likely

of being realized Changes in recognition or measurement are reflected in income tax benefit in the accompanying

consolidated statements of operations in the period in which the change in judgment occurs Interest and penalties

related to income tax matters are recognized in net interest and other expense and income tax benefit respectively

in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

None

Recently Issued Accounting Standards

See Note in the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements located in Part II Item of this Report
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Item 7A Ouantitative and qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk

Not applicable
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Item Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

Board of Directors and

Shareholders of XRS Corporation

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of XRS Corporation Minnesota corporation and

subsidiary the Company as of September 30 2013 and 2012 and the related consolidated statements of

operations comprehensive income loss changes in shareholders equity and cash flows for the years
then ended

Our audits of the basic consolidated financial statements included the financial statement schedule listed in the

index appearing under Item 5a2 These financial statements and financial statement schedule are the

responsibility of the Companys management Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial

statements and financial statement schedule based on our audits

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board

United States Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about

whether the financial statements are free of material mis-statement The Company is not required to have nor were

we engaged to perform an audit of its internal control over financial reporting Our audits included consideration of

internal control over financial reporting as basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the

circumstances but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Companys internal

control over financial reporting Accordingly we express no such opinion An audit also includes examining on

test basis evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements assessing the accounting

principles used and significant estimates made by management as well as evaluating the overall financial statement

presentation We believe that our audits provide reasonable basis for our opinion

In our opinion the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly in all material respects the

financial position of XRS Corporation and subsidiary as of September 30 2013 and 2012 and the results of their

operations and their cash flows for the years then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted

in the United States of America Also in our opinion the related financial statement schedule when considered in

relation to the basic consolidated financial statements taken as whole presents fairly in all material respects the

information set forth therein

Is Grant Thornton LLP

Minneapolis Minnesota

December 20 2013
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XRS Corporation

Consolidated Balance Sheets

In thousands

ASSETS

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents

Accounts receivable less allowances of $151 at September 30 2013

and $314 at September 30 2012

Inventories

Deferred product costs

Prepaid expenses and other current assets

Total current assets

Equipment leased equipment and leasehold improvements net

Intangible assets net

Goodwill

Deferred product costs net of current portion

Other assets

Total assets

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS EQUITY

Current liabilities

Revolving line of credit

Accounts payable

Accrued expenses

Deferred revenue

Total current liabilities

Deferred revenue net of current portion

Deferred tax liabilities

Other long-term liabilities

Total liabilities

Shareholders equity

Preferred stock no par 50000 shares authorized shares designated

17500 at September 30 2013 and 16750 at September 30 2012

shares issued and outstanding 16590 at September 30 2013 and

16493 at September 30 2012

Common stock par value $0.01 per share 100000 shares authorized

shares issued and outstanding 10900 at September 30 2013 and

10808 at September 30 2012

Additional paid-in capital

Accumulated deficit

Accumulated other comprehensive income

Total shareholders equity

Total liabilities and shareholders equity

September 30

2013 2012

10445 7120

6864 7835

1710 3811

625 770

1417 1406

21061 20942

5980 7313

4578 6487

16640 17288

213 425

667 351

49139 52806

2300

2885 3436

4560 4832

1886 2314

9331 12882

496 1077

62 314

9889 14282

44524 44292

109 108

50674 49979

56688 57319

631 1464

39250 38524

49139 52806

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidatedfinancial statements
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XRS Corporation

Consolidated Statements of Operations

For the Year Ended September 30

In thousands except per share data 2013 2012

Revenue

Software 45675 47455

Hardware systems 9340 13893

Services 1181 1741

Total revenue 56196 63089

Costs and expenses

Cost of goods sold 22268 30657

Selling general and administrative 21057 24459

Research and development 11734 14798

Impairment of intangible asset 3500

Total costs and expenses 55059 73414

Operating income loss 1137 10325
Net interest and other expense 116 264

Income loss before income taxes 1021 10589

Income tax expense benefit 155 550

Net income loss 866 10039

Preferred stock dividends 235 227
Preferred stock deemed dividends 50

Net income loss to common shareholders 631 10216

Net income loss per common share

Basic 0.06 0.95

Diluted 0.03 0.95

Weighted average common and common share equivalents

Basic 10844 10734

Diluted 28028 10734

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements
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XRS Corporation

Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income Loss

In thousands ________________

Net income loss

Foreign currency translation adjustments ________________

Comprehensive income loss

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements

For the Year Ended September 30

2013 2012

866 10039

833 1092

33 8947
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XRS Corporation

Consolidated Statements of Changes in Shareholders Equity

in thousands

Balance as of September 30 2011

Contingent Accumulated

Preferred Stock Common Stock Common Additional Other

Stock Paid-In Accumulated Comprehensive
Shares Amount Shares Amount Earn-Out Capital Deficit Income Total

16426 44149 10681 107 1912 47249 47103 372 46686

866 833 33

16590 44524 10900 109 50674 56688 631 39250

Stock-based compensation

Issuance of common stock for share-based

compensation awards

Reversal of unearned common stock portion of

contingent earn-out

Conversion of Series preferred stock into

common stock

Preferred stock dividends

Preferred stock deemed dividends

Comprehensive loss

Balance as of September 30 2012

Stock-based compensation

Issuance of common stock for share-based

compensation awards

Preferred stock dividends

Exercise of options

Comprehensive income

Balance as of September 30 2013

789 789

113

1912 1912

14 30 14 30

81 223 227

50 50

10039 1092 8947
16493 44292 10808 108 49979 57319 1464 38524

644 644

61

97 232 235
31 51 51

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements



XRS Corporation

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Investing activities

Purchases of equipment

Capitalized software development

Proceeds from the sale of equipment

Net cash used in investing activities

956

2062

356

171

657

513

1004
9474

10039

8013

3500

32

617
76

789

51

1298

437
810

48
1787

519

1926

906

Financing activities

Revolving line of credit

Payments on debt obligations

Deferred financing costs

Proceeds from exercise of options

Net cash used in financing activities

Effects of exchange rate on cash

Increase decrease in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents

Beginning

Ending

2300 2300

3627

50 97
51

2299 1424

15 16

3325 5287

7120 12407

10445 7120

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements

For the Year Ended September 30

2013 2012

866

6783

81

80

644

In thousands

Operating activities

Net income loss

Adjustments to reconcile net income loss to net cash provided by used in

operating activities

Depreciation and amortization

Impairment of intangible asset

Amortization of deferred financing costs

Deferred income taxes

Loss on sale or disposal of equipment and leased equipment

Stock-based compensation

Reversal of unearned cash portion of contingent earn-out liability

Changes in assets and liabilities

Accounts receivable net

Inventories net

Deferred product costs

Prepaid expenses and other assets

Accounts payable

Accrued expenses and other liabilities

Deferred revenue

Net cash provided by used in operating activities

3526

355
16

3865

2943

2941
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Note Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

XRS Corporation and its wholly owned subsidiary Turnpike Global Technologies Inc collectively XRS
Corporation or the Company delivers compliance and fleet management solutions to the commercial trucking

industry The Companys solutions enable customers to improve compliance with United States Department of

Transportation DOT regulations optimize the utilization of their assets and enhance the productivity of fleet

operations across the entire supply chain resulting in decreased costs XRS Corporations continued focus on

leveraging the latest technology within its solutions has resulted in the Company contributing to the trucking

industrys migration to mobile devices for collecting and analyzing DOT compliance and management data through

our continued focus on leveraging the latest technology with our solutions

Basis ofPresentation and Preparation

The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and its wholly owned

subsidiary Intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated The preparation of these consolidated

financial statements in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in the U.S GAAP requires

management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in these consolidated financial

statements and accompanying notes Actual results could differ materially from those estimates In the opinion of

management all adjustments necessary for fair presentation of the consolidated results of operations and financial

position for the interim periods have been made Certain prior period amounts in the consolidated financial

statements and notes thereto have been reclassified to conform to the current periods presentation

Revenue Recognition

The Company derives its revenue from sales of software which includes monthly subscriptions from the

XataNet Turnpike and XRS solutions monthly fees from the MobileMax solution and activation fees ii
hardware systems which includes hardware with embedded software and software that can be hosted by customer

warranty and repair revenue and iii services which includes installation implementation training and

professional services revenue

The Company sells its solutions using two methods direct sales and channel sales The Companys direct sales

approach uses direct sales force that includes sales development representatives inside sales national and regional

sales account executives and client managers to sell all of the Companys solutions into fleet operators and logistics

providers The Companys channel sales are driven by Company personnel working in tandem with third-party

resellers to sell the Companys XRS and Turnpike solutions to variety of fleet sizes and types

The Companys XataNet and MobileMax customers enter into multi-year agreements with automatic renewal

features however in certain circumstances operate under month-to-month contracts Turnpike customers have

historically operated under month-to-month contracts allowing them the ability to terminate the agreement upon
providing 30-day notice Beginning in fiscal 2013 the Companys XRS customers have begun to enter into multi-

year agreements

General Revenue Recognition Criteria

The Company recognizes revenue when persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists delivery has occurred the

sales price is fixed or determinable and collection is probable solution is considered delivered to the customer

once it has been shipped and title and risk of loss has been transferred For most of the Companys hardware

systems and services sales these criteria are met at the time the hardware system is shipped and/or the services are

provided For the Companys software subscriptions these criteria are met over the term of the customers

agreement and therefore revenue is recognized over the term of the agreement
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Revenue Recogn ition for Multiple-Element Arrangements

XRS Corporation generally enters into arrangements with customers that include the purchase of software

subscription
non-software-related hardware systems and services from the Company at the same time or within

close proximity of one another referred to as multiple-element arrangements

The Company has identified three deliverables in arrangements involving the sale of its XataNet and MobileMax

solutions The first deliverable is the hardware system which includes embedded software that is essential to the

functionality of the hardware system and software that is or can be hosted by the customer The second deliverable

is the software subscription which covers hosting fees continued support and communication charges The final

deliverable includes certain services requested by the customer that are deemed essential to the functionality of the

hardware such as installation implementation and/or training

The Company has identified two deliverables in arrangements involving the sale of its Turnpike and XRS solutions

The first deliverable is the software subscription including the use of Relay or RouteTracker asset where the

customer selected the no upfront hardware cost option and direct personnel costs related to network infrastructure

as well as technical support The second deliverable includes certain services requested by the customer that are

deemed essential to the functionality of the software subscription

Each element within multiple-element arrangement is accounted for as separate unit of accounting provided the

following criteria are met the delivered hardware systems or services have value to the customer on standalone

basis and for an arrangement that includes general right of return relative to the delivered products or services

delivery or performance of the undelivered product or service is considered probable and is substantially controlled

by the Company XRS Corporation considers deliverable to have standalone value if the product or service is sold

separately by the Company another vendor or could be resold by the customer Further the Companys revenue

arrangements generally do not include general right of return relative to the delivered products Where the

aforementioned criteria for separate unit of accounting are not met the deliverable is combined with the

undelivered elements and treated as single unit of accounting for the purposes of allocation of the arrangement

consideration and revenue recognition For those units of accounting that include more than one deliverable but are

treated as single unit of accounting the Company generally recognizes revenues over the delivery period which

generally coincides with the customers contract term

For multiple-element arrangements in which separate units of accounting are identified the Company allocates

revenue to each element based on their relative selling prices In such circumstances the Company uses hierarchy

to determine the selling price to be used for allocating revenue to deliverables vendor specific objective

evidence VSOE of fair value if available ii third-party evidence TPE of selling price if VSOE is not available

and iii best estimate of the selling price ESP if neither VSOE nor TPE is available description as to how the

Company determined VSOE TPE and ESPs is provided below The Company limits the amount of revenue

recognized for delivered elements to an amount that is not contingent upon future delivery of additional products or

services or the meeting of any specified performance conditions

The Companys process for determining its ESPs for each deliverable considers multiple factors that may vary

depending upon the unique facts and circumstances related to each deliverable Key factors considered by the

Company in developing the ESPs include prices charged by the Company for similar offerings historical pricing

practices pricing of competitive alternatives if they exist adjusted for differences in product specifications

product-specific business objectives and the life cycle of the solution The Company may modify its pricing

practices in the future which could result in changes to the determination of VSOE TPE and ESPs As result the

Companys future revenue recognition for multiple-element arrangements could differ materially from its results in

the current period ESPs are analyzed on an annual basis or more frequently if circumstances warrant

Other Revenue Recognition Policies Applicable to Software and Non-software Elements

The Company accounts for arrangements that consist only of software or software-related products including

certain of the Companys add-on product offerings in accordance with industry specific accounting guidance for

software and software-related transactions
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Certain of the Companys customers engage the Company to purchase add-on product offerings as well as to

perform installation implementation training and professional services These revenues are accounted for

separately from multi-element revenue recognition because they qualify as standalone software or services

transactions as defined by industry specific accounting guidance for software and software-related transactions The

significant factors considered in determining whether the revenues should be accounted for separately include the

nature of services i.e consideration of whether the software or services are essential to the functionality of the

hardware system or software subscription degree of risk availability of services from other vendors timing of

payments and impact of milestones Revenues generated from add-on product offerings are recognized ratably over

the agreement as it is delivered to the customer Revenue generated from service transactions are recognized after

the services are performed assuming all other revenue recognition criteria noted above have been met

Finally the Company has entered into agreements with third-party providers to extend the benefits of solutions

throughout the customers supply chain The Company recognizes revenue generated under the aforementioned

agreements in accordance with the terms of each partnership agreement and accounting guidance governing

principal agent considerations

Deftrred Revenue Costs

The deferred revenue reflected in the accompanying consolidated balances sheets consists of the unearned portions

of items invoiced in accordance with the terms and conditions of an arrangement but that do not meet all the criteria

for revenue recognition Based on the nature of the transaction recognition of deferred revenue occurs as the

revenue recognition criteria are met on straight-line basis over the term of the related agreement over the

estimated life of customer or as services are provided The Company defers and recognizes costs associated with

the deferred revenue as the deferred revenue is recognized as revenue

Shipping and Handling Costs

Amounts billed to customers for shipping and handling are recorded as hardware systems revenue in the

accompanying consolidated statements of operations Shipping and handling costs incurred by the Company for the

delivery of goods to customers are included as cost of goods sold in the accompanying consolidated statements of

operations

Research and Development

The Company conducts research and development activities which consist of the development of new solutions and

enhancements to functionality of existing solutions in an effort to meet the Companys customers current and

anticipated future needs Research and development costs are expensed as incurred During fiscal 2013 and 2012

research and development expenditures were $11.7 million and $14.8 million respectively

Advertising Costs

Advertising costs consist of combination of integrated marketing activities including email marketing media

relations social media and trade shows along with web-based campaigns to gain exposure build awareness and

drive sales activity Advertising costs which are expensed as incurred and included in selling general and

administrative expenses in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations were $1.7 million and $1.6

million in fiscal 2013 and 2012 respectively

Stock-Based Compensation

The Company accounts for stock-based employee compensation plans on fair value basis in accordance with the

accounting guidance relative to the Companys stock-based compensation plans The estimated grant date fair value

of each option award is recognized in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations on straight-line

basis over the requisite service period generally the vesting period The estimated fair value of each option award

is calculated using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model Restricted stock awards and restricted stock units are
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recorded as compensation cost on straight-line basis over the requisite service periods
based on the market value

of the award on the date of grant

Cash Equivalents

All highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less when purchased are classified as cash

equivalents

Allowance for DoubtfulAccounts

Accounts receivable are stated at amounts net of an allowance for doubtful accounts The Company grants credit to

customers in the normal course of business based on an evaluation of customers financial condition Balances are

typically due within 30 days consequently balances outstanding for period longer than contractual payment terms

are considered past due Estimates used in determining the allowance for doubtful accounts are based on historical

collection experience current trends aging of accounts receivable and periodic credit evaluations of the customers

financial condition The Company reserves for accounts receivable when they are determined to be uncollectible by

increasing the allowance for doubtful accounts and bad debt expense which is included in selling general and

administrative expense in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations Payments subsequently

received or otherwise determined to be collectible are treated as recoveries that reduce bad debt expense

Concentration of Credit Risk

Financial instruments potentially subject to concentrations of credit risk consist primarily of cash and cash

equivalents and accounts receivable The Companys cash and cash equivalents may at times exceed Federal

Deposit Insurance Corporation insurance limits The Company has not experienced any losses in such accounts

The majority of the Companys accounts receivable is due from companies with fleet trucking operations in

variety of industries In general the Company does not require collateral or other security to secure accounts

receivable The risk with respect to accounts receivable is mitigated by credit evaluations performed on customers

the short duration of payment terms for the majority of the Companys customer contracts and the industry diversity

within the customer base As of September 30 2013 no single customers receivable balance exceeded 10.0 percent

of total net receivable balances As of September 30 2012 one single customers receivable balance was 12.6

percent of total net receivable balances

Major Customers

The Company sells to all sizes of fleets however may be dependent upon few major customers each year whose

volume of purchases is significantly greater than that of other customers During fiscal 2013 and 2012 no single

customer accounted for 10.0 percent or more of the Companys total revenues

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost computed using the average cost method which approximates the first-in

first-out method or market Inventories are comprised of various components and finished goods
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Equipment Leased Equipment and Leasehold Improvements

Purchased equipment and equipment under capital lease are stated at historical cost Depreciation is computed on

straight-line basis based on the following estimated useful lives

Years

Engineering and SaaS equipment to

Office furniture and equipment to

Relay and RouteTracker assets to

Leasehold improvements to

Significant improvements that extend the lives of assets are capitalized Costs for repairs and maintenance are

charged to expense as incurred When an asset is retired or otherwise disposed o1 the cost and related accumulated

depreciation are removed from the accounts and any related gains or losses are included in the same financial

statement line item as the related depreciation expense had been previously recorded

The Company evaluates the recoverability of long-lived assets when events or changes in circumstances occur that

indicate that the carrying value of the asset or asset group may not be recoverable The assessment of possible

impairment is based on the Companys ability to recover the carrying value of the asset or asset group from the

expected future pretax cash flows undiscounted and without interest charges of the related operations If these cash

flows are less than the carrying value of the asset or asset group an impairment loss is recognized for the difference

between estimated fair value and carrying value The measurement of impairment requires the Company to estimate

future cash flows and the fair value of long-lived assets

Goodwill and Definite-Lived Intangible Assets

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of acquired businesses over the fair value of identifiable tangible net

assets and identifiable intangible assets purchased Goodwill is tested at least annually for impairment or more

frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate the asset might be impaired

The impairment test is performed using two-step process In the first step the fair value of the reporting unit is

compared with the carrying amount of the reporting unit including goodwill If the estimated fair value is less than

the carrying amount of the reporting unit an indicator of goodwill impairment exists and the second step must be

completed in order to determine the amount of the goodwill impairment if any that should be recorded In the

second step an impairment loss is recognized for any excess of the carrying amount of the reporting units goodwill

over the implied fair value of that goodwill The implied fair value of goodwill is determined by allocating the fair

value of the reporting unit in manner similar to purchase price allocation

The fair value of the Companys single reporting unit was determined using review of XRS Corporations market

capitalization and discounted cash flow analysis Use of the market capitalization approach consisted of

comparison of the value of the ownership interest that the shareholders maintain in the Company to the recorded

value of shareholders equity

In developing the discounted cash flow analysis assumptions about future revenues and expenses capital

expenditures and changes in working capital are based on the annual operating plan and long-term business plan for

the Companys single reporting unit These plans take into consideration numerous factors including historical

experience anticipated future economic conditions changes in raw material prices and growth expectations for the

industries and end markets in which XRS Corporation participates These assumptions are determined over five

year long-term planning period Revenues and operating profit beyond fiscal 2018 are projected to grow at

perpetual growth rate of 3.0 percent Discount rate assumptions considered the Companys assessment of risks

inherent in the future cash flows of the reporting unit and its weighted average cost of capital discount rate of
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17.5 percent was used in determining the discounted cash flows in the fair value analysis Actual results may differ

from those used in the Companys valuations

The Company completed its annual impairment test on the first day of the fourth quarter of fiscal 2013 and

concluded no indicators of impairment existed

Definite-Lived Intangible Assets

The Companys definite-lived intangible assets include customer and reseller relationships acquired technology and

trademark The Company amortizes its definite-lived intangibles with finite lives on straight-line basis over their

expected lives

Definite-lived intangible assets are evaluated for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances occur

that indicate that the carrying value of the asset or asset group may not be recoverable An impairment loss is

recognized whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate the carrying amount of an asset is not recoverable

Recoverability of these assets is measured by comparison of their carrying amounts to future undiscounted cash

flows the assets are expected to generate If certain definite-lived intangibles are considered to be impaired the

impairment to be recognized equals the amount by which the carrying value of the assets exceeds their fair market

value as determined using an income approach The inputs used in the income approach include the use of Level

discount rate and Level forecasted cash flows inputs as discussed in the fair value hierarchy below

As result of the continued decline in the estimated fair value of the acquired customer contracts originally

recorded in conjunction with the acquisition of Geologic Solutions Inc Geologic the Company reviewed its

definite-lived intangible assets for impairment during fourth quarter of fiscal year 2013 and concluded there were

indicators of impairment Consequently the Company performed an undiscounted cash flow analysis concluding

that the future undiscounted cash flows the definite-lived intangible assets were expected to generate were in excess

of the carrying value of the asset therefore no impairment charge was recorded

During the third quarter of fiscal 2012 the Company recorded an impairment charge of $3.5 million as result of

the impairment review The impairment charge was associated with decline in the estimated fair value of acquired

customer contracts originally recorded in conjunction with the acquisition of Geologic driven by reductions in

expected future cash flows The fair value for the acquired customer contracts for which the carrying amount was

not deemed to be recoverable was determined using the future discounted cash flows the assets were expected to

generate

Capitalized Software Development

Research and development costs are expensed as incurred except for certain costs which are capitalized in

connection with the development of the Companys software Costs incurred in the preliminary stages of

development are expensed as incurred The Company capitalizes eligible costs that are incurred subsequent to the

determination that the project will be completed and the software will be used to perform the function intended

Capitalization ceases upon completion of all substantial testing performed to ensure the product is ready for its

intended use Maintenance and training costs are expensed as incurred Capitalized software development costs

which are included in other assets in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets are amortized to cost of goods

sold beginning when the software is made available to the general public Amortization is computed on straight-

line basis over the estimated economic life of the related solution

In addition the Company capitalizes costs related to development of software to be sold or otherwise marketed as

part of solution which are incurred after establishing technological feasibility Capitalized software development

costs are amortized to cost of goods sold beginning when the product is released for sale to the general public

Amortization is computed using the greater of the ratio of current units of the solution sold to the total of current

and anticipated future unit sales or the straight-line method over the estimated economic life of the related solution

two to five years
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As of September 30 2013 and 2012 there were $0.5 million and $0.3 million of capitalized development costs net

of accumulated depreciation respectively included in other assets in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets

Amortization of capitalized product development costs of $0.2 million and $0.1 million was recorded as cost of

goods sold in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations for fiscal
years ended 2013 and 2012

respectively

Warranties

The Company provides warranty on its solutions Liability under the warranty policies is based upon review of the

number of units sold historical and anticipated claim experience and cost per claim Adjustments are made to

accruals for warranties as claim data and historical experience warrant

As of September 30 2013 and 2012 the Company had accruals for warranties of $0.4 million and $0.7 million

respectively These amounts are included in accrued expenses in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets

Fair Value

Certain assets and liabilities are measured at fair value in the consolidated financial statements on both recurring

and non-recurring basis Fair value is defined as the price that would be received from selling an asset or paid to

transfer liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date Fair value is

estimated by applying the following hierarchy which prioritizes the inputs used to measure fair value into three

levels and bases the categorization within the hierarchy upon the lowest level of input that is available and

significant to the fair value measurement

Level Quoted prices for identical assets or liabilities in active markets

Level Observable inputs other than quoted prices in active markets for identical assets and liabilities quoted

prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities in inactive markets or other inputs that are observable or can be

corroborated by observable market data for substantially the full term of the assets or liabilities or

Level Inputs that are generally unobservable and typically reflect managements estimate of assumptions that

market participants would use in pricing the asset or liability

Income Taxes

The Company accounts for income taxes using the asset and liability method Under this method deferred tax assets

and liabilities are recognized for the estimated future tax consequences attributable to differences between the

financial statement carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases and operating

loss and tax credit carryforwards The effect on deferred tax assets and liabilities of change in tax rates is

recognized in the consolidated statements of operations in the period when the change is enacted valuation

allowance is recorded to reduce the carrying amounts of deferred tax assets if it is more likely than not that such

assets will not be realized Changes in valuation allowances from period to period are included in income tax

expense benefit in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations in the period of change

The Company recognizes the effect of income tax positions only if those positions are more likely than not to be

sustained Recognized income tax positions are measured at the largest amount that is greater than 50 percent likely

of being realized Changes in recognition or measurement are reflected in income tax benefit in the accompanying

consolidated statements of operations in the period in which the change in judgment occurs Interest and penalties

related to income tax matters are recognized in net interest and other expense and income tax benefit respectively

in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations
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Segment Reporting

The Company operates as single operating segment Factors used to identif the single operating segment include

the financial information available for evaluation by the chief operating decision maker in making decisions about

how to allocate resources and assess performance

Turnpike Global Technologies Inc the Companys Canadian subsidiary accounted for 4.3 percent
and 3.7 percent

of the Companys total revenue as of September 30 2013 and 2012 respectively Turnpike Global Technologies

Inc had $15.5 million and $17.4 million of long-lived assets as of September 30 2013 and 2012 respectively

Foreign Currency Translation

The financial statements of Turnpike Global Technologies Inc the Companys wholly owned Canadian subsidiary

are measured using the local currency as the functional currency Assets and liabilities of this subsidiary are

translated at the rates of exchange as of the balance sheet date Income and expense items are translated using the

average exchange rates during the period The resultant foreign currency translation adjustments are included in the

accompanying consolidated statements of comprehensive income loss

Correction of Immaterial Errors Related to Prior Periods

During the first quarter of fiscal 2013 the Company determined that its previously issued consolidated financial

statements contained an immaterial error related to the recording of forfeitures of equity awards on our stock-based

compensation expense

The Company concluded that the error was not material to any of its prior period financial statements Although the

error was immaterial to prior periods the impact of the error to the statement of operations was corrected in the

second and third quarter of fiscal 2013 The Company did however correct the error in the consolidated balance

sheet and statement of shareholders equity as of September 30 2012 by revising certain account balances The total

effect of this revision to prior period consolidated financial statements was decrease to additional paid-in capital

and accumulated deficit in the accompanying consolidated balance sheet and statement of shareholders equity of

$247000 over the amounts previously reported in the consolidated financial statements as of September 30 2012

The following tables summarize the effect of these revisions in thousands

September 30 2012

As Reported Adjustment As Revised

Consolidated Balance Sheet

Additional paid-in capital 50226 247 49979

Accumulated deficit 57566 247 573 19

For the Year Ended September 30 2012

As Reported Adjustment As Revised

Consolidated Statement of Operations

Selling general and administrative expense 24706 247 24459

Operating loss 10572 247 10325

Loss before income taxes 10836 247 10589

Net loss 10286 247 10039

Net loss to common shareholders 10463 247 10216

Net loss per common share

Basic 0.97 0.02 0.95

Diluted 0.97 0.02 0.95
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Recently IssuedAccounting Standards

Comprehensive Income In February 2013 the FASB issued new guidance relative to the reporting of

reclassifications out of accumulated other comprehensive Income Specifically the new guidance requires an entity

to report the effect of significant reclassifications out of accumulated other comprehensive income on the respective

line items in net income if the amount being reclassified is to be reclassified in its entirety to net income For other

amounts that are not required to be reclassified from accumulated other comprehensive income to net income in the

same reporting period an entity is required to cross-reference other disclosures required that provide additional

detail about those amounts

The provisions of the new guidance noted above was effective for fiscal years and interim periods within those

years beginning after December 15 2012 Accordingly the Company adopted the guidance and it did not impact the

Companys financial condition or results of operations

Note Net Income Loss Per Common Share

Basic net income loss per common share is computed by dividing net income loss applicable to common
shareholders by the weighted average number of common shares outstanding for the period Generally net income

per diluted common share reflects the potential dilution that could occur if securities or other obligations to issue

common stock such as options restricted stock units warrants or convertible preferred stock were exercised or

converted into common stock that then shared in the earnings of the Company Net loss per diluted common share is

equal to net loss per basic common share because the effect of including such securities or obligations would be

antidilutive

The calculation of net income loss per common share is summarized in the following table in thousands except

per share data

For the Year Ended

September 30

2013 2012

Net income loss per common share

Basic 0.06 0.95
Diluted 0.03 0.95

Numerator basic

Net income loss to common shareholders 631 10216
Denominator basic

Weighted average common shares basic 10844 10734

Numerator diluted

Net income loss to common shareholders 631 10216
Preferred stock dividends 235

Numerator diluted 866 10216
Denominator diluted

____________

Weighted average common shares basic 10844 10734

Effect of dilutive securities

Effect of stock options 327

Effect of restricted stock units 302

Effect of warrants 18

Effect of preferred stock 16537

Weighted average common and common share

equivalents diluted 28028 10734
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There were no potentially dilutive securities excluded from the computation of net income per
diluted common

share for the year ended September 30 2013 Potentially dilutive securities representing 16.5 million shares of

common stock outstanding for the year ended September 30 2012 were excluded from the computation of net loss

per diluted common share because their effect would have been antidilutive

Note Revenue and Cost of Goods Sold Information

Revenue and cost of goods sold recorded in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations consist of in

thousands

For the Year Ended September 30

2013 2012

Revenue

Software 45675 47455

Hardware systems
9340 13893

Services
1181 1741

Total revenue 56196 63089

Cost of goods sold

Software 12365 13043

Hardware systems
7640 15287

Services
2263 2327

Total cost of goods sold 22268 30657

Software revenue includes monthly subscriptions from the XataNet XRS and Turnpike solutions monthly fees

from the MobileMax solution and activation fees Hardware systems revenue includes hardware with embedded

firmware and for the XataNet solution software that can be hosted by the customer warranty and repair revenue

Services revenue includes installation implementation training and professional services revenue

Cost of software consists of communication costs hosting costs depreciation
of Relay and RouteTracker assets

where the customer selected the no upfront hardware cost option and direct personnel costs related to network

infrastructure as well as technical support for the XRS and Turnpike solutions Cost of hardware systems consists

of direct product costs warranty costs and product repair costs as well as direct personnel costs and technical

support for the XataNet and MobileMax solutions Cost of services consists of third-party vendor costs and direct

costs related to services personnel
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Note Supplemental Cash Flow and Non-Cash Information

Supplemental cash flow information

Cash paid for interest

Cash paid for income taxes

Supplemental non-cash information

RouteTracker assets acquired under capital lease

obligation

Preferred stock deemed dividends

Preferred stock dividends

Preferred stock dividends paid

Conversion of Series Preferred Stock into common stock

Reversal of unearned common stock portion of contingent earn-out

Note Equipment Leased Equipment and Leasehold Improvements

For the Year Ended September 30

2013 2012

Equipment leased equipment and leasehold improvements consist of in thousands

Equipment leased equipment and leasehold improvements

Engineering and SaaS equipment

Relay and RouteTracker assets

Leasehold improvements

Office furniture and equipment

Assets not placed in service

Equipment leased equipment and leasehold improvements gross

Accumulated depreciation

Equipment leased equipment and leasehold improvements net

September 30

2013 2012

11523 11434

9461 7089

2686 2678

1028 900

630 102

25328 22203

19348 14890
5980 7313

Depreciation recorded in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations consists of in thousands

For the Year Ended September 30

2013 2012

Depreciation recorded in

Cost of goods sold

Selling general and administrative expense

Research and development expense

Total depreciation of equipment leased equipment and leasehold

improvements

2784 3514

1366 1633

749 328

4899 5475

The total amount of assets under capital lease and held by the Company included in equipment leased equipment

and leasehold improvements in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets was $30000 and $31000 as of

September 30 2013 and 2012 respectively Related accumulated depreciation for these assets was $30000 and

$24000 as of September 30 2013 and 2012 respectively

The following table summarizes supplemental cash flow and non-cash information in thousands

23 377

108 51

546

50
235 227

232 223

30

1912
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Note Goodwill and Definite-Lived Intangible Assets

The following table summarizes the changes in goodwill in thousands

Balance as of September 30 2011

Foreign currency translation adjustment

Balance as of September 30 2012

Foreign currency translation adjustment

Balance as of September 30 2013

Definite-lived intangible assets subject to amortization were as follows as of September 30 2013 in thousands

Weighted

Average

Life

Years Cost

Foreign

Currency

Accumulated Translation

Amortization Adjustment Net

Definite-lived intangible assets subject to amortization were as follows as of September 30 2012 in thousands

Definite-lived intangible assets

Acquired customer

contracts

Acquired technology

Reseller relationships

Trademark

Other definite-lived

intangibles

Total

7.8 14900

2700

1500

10 900

97 3500 3170

1742

858

700

Amortization of definite-lived intangible assets recorded in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations

consists ofin thousands

For the Year Ended September 30

2013 2012

Amortization recorded in

Cost of goods sold

Selling general and administrative expense

Total amortization of definite-lived intangible assets

404 407

1316 2055

1720 2462

16474

814

17288

648

16640

Definite-lived intangible assets

Acquired customer contracts

Acquired technology

Reseller relationships

Trademark

Other definite-lived intangibles

Total

7.8 11400 9281 61 2180

2700 1554 113 1259

1500 1007 65 558

10 900 363 35 572

49 40
7.7 16549 12245 274 4578

Weighted

Average

Life Accumulated

Years Cost Amortization

Foreign

Currency

Translation Impairment

Adjustment Charge Net

8327

1151

746

268

193

104

68

49 32 17

7.7 20049 10524 462 3500 6487
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Future amortization expense of definite-lived intangible assets as of September 30 2013 is expected to be as

follows in thousands

Years ending September 30

2014 1706

2015 1701

2016 810

2017 159

2018 93

Thereafter 109

Total 4578

Note Financing Arrangements

Note Stock-Based Compensation

Effective February 24 2012 the Company entered into two-year Loan and Security Agreement with Silicon

Valley Bank consisting of $8.0 million revolving line of credit bearing interest at floating rate equal to either 1.0

percent over the prime rate provided certain liquidity conditions are met or 1.5 percent over the prime rate Interest

is paid monthly and the entire amount of any outstanding principal is due at maturity on February 24 2014

Amounts borrowed under the revolving line of credit are secured by substantially all of the personal property of the

Company and generally may be repaid and re-borrowed at any time before maturity The balance of the revolving

line of credit in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets was $0 and $2.3 million as of September 30 2013

and 2012 respectively

Amounts available under the line of credit are subject to borrowing base formula Changes in the assets within the

borrowing base formula can impact the amount of availability Based on the facilitys borrowing base and other

requirements at such dates we had excess availability of $4.0 million and $2.0 million at September 30 2013 and

2012 respectively

The Loan and Security Agreement contains customary representations warranties covenants and events of default

including without limitation covenants restricting the Companys ability to incur indebtedness and liens to declare

and pay cash dividends and to merge or consolidate with another entity and also contains lockbox arrangement

and subjective acceleration clause The Loan and Security Agreement also includes financial covenants requiring

the Company to maintain minimum tangible net worth and adjusted quick ratio The Company was in compliance

with these covenants as of September 30 2013

The Company anticipates to have similar revolving line of credit in place upon the expiration of the existing Loan

and Security Agreement

In February 2007 the Company adopted the 2007 Long Term Incentive and Stock Option Plan the 2007 Plan The

2007 Plan permits the granting of incentive stock options meeting the requirements of Section 422 of the Internal

Revenue Code of 1986 as amended and nonqualified options that do not meet the requirements of Section 422

Stock appreciation rights restricted stock awards and restricted stock units may also be granted under the 2007

Plan total of 500000 shares of the Companys common stock were originally reserved for issuance pursuant to

equity awards under the 2007 Plan Subsequently 1000000 shares were approved for addition to the 2007 Plan at

the 2010 Annual Shareholders Meeting The 2007 Plan also has an evergreen provision in which the maximum

number of shares that may be issued under the 2007 Plan shall be cumulatively increased on January 2008 and on

each January thereafter for nine years by the lesser of 500000 common shares ii 3.0 percent of the

Companys outstanding common shares on an as-converted basis as of the preceding December 31 and iii

number of common shares determined by the Board of Directors or Compensation Committee The Company has

412967 shares authorized and available for future equity awards as of September 30 2013
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Stock Options

The Company grants
stock options as part of its long-term incentive compensation to employees and directors The

Company accounts for all stock-based payment awards to employees and directors on fair value basis Generally

the options that are granted under the 2007 Plan are exercisable for period of ten years from the date of grant and

vest over period of up to three years from the date of grant

The following table summarizes information related to stock option grants number of options in thousands

For the Year Ended September 30

2013 2012

Stock option grants ________________ ________________

Number of shares granted 1182 763

Weighted-average grant date fair value 0.54 0.55

The fair value of each option is estimated on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option-pricing
model using

the following weighted-average assumptions for grants

For the Year Ended September 30

2013 2012

Weighted average assumptions for grants

Risk-free interest rate 1.28% 1.34%

Expected stock price volatility
54.11% 41.51%

Expected lives in years 6.0 5.9

Expected dividend yield

The Company estimates the volatility of the common stock at the date of grant
based on historical volatility rate

The decision to use historical volatility was based upon the lack of traded common stock options In addition the

expected term is estimated consistent with the simplified method for share-based awards granted during fiscal 2013

and 2012 The simplified method calculates the expected term as the average of the vesting and contractual terms of

the award The risk-free interest rate assumption is based on observed interest rates appropriate for the term of the

options The Company uses historical data to estimate prevesting option forfeitures and records share-based

compensation expense only for those awards that are expected to vest The fair value of options is amortized over

the vesting period of the awards utilizing straight-line method

The following tables summarizes information relating to stock option activity in thousands except per option and

weighted average remaining contractual life data

Weighted

Weighted Average

Average Remaining Aggregate

Number of Exercise Contractual Intrinsic

Options Price Life Years Value

Options outstanding at September 30 2012 2104 2.78 7.2

Granted 1182 1.04

Exercised 31 1.66

Expired 59 2.66

Forfeited 241 1.18
_____________ _____________

Options outstanding at September 30 2013 2955 2.23 7.3 2808

Options exercisable at September 30 2013 1551 3.12 5.7 591

Options expected to vest after September 30 2013 1404 1.24 8.9 2217

The weighted average exercise price of stock options granted during fiscal 2012 was $1.34 Total intrinsic value of

options exercised in fiscal 2013 was $25000 there were no options exercised in fiscal 2012 Aggregate intrinsic
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value represents the Companys closing stock price on the last trading day of the fiscal period in excess of the

exercise prices multiplied by the number of options outstanding exercisable or expected to vest

The following table summarizes stock option information by exercise price range as of September 30 2013 number
of options in thousands

Options Outstanding Options Exercisable

Weighted Weighted

Average Weighted Average Weighted

Remaining Average Remaining Average
Contractual Exercise Number of Contractual Exercise

______________ ____________
Life Years Price Options Life Years Price

9.3 0.81 0.0

68

8.7 1.50 300 8.5 1.43

6.3 2.67 785 6.1 2.65

5.5 3.35 68 5.5 3.35

35 2.9 4.64 35 2.9 4.64

363 2.9 5.35 363 2.9 5.35

2955 7.3 2.23 1551 5.7 3.12

As of September 30 2013 there was $0.6 million of total unrecognized compensation costs related to stock option
awards The Company will recognize this cost over the remaining vesting periods of these options The weighted

average period over which the costs will be recognized is 1.6 years

The Company grants restricted shares of common stock as part of its long-term incentive compensation to directors

Fair market values of restricted stock awards are determined based on the closing market price on the date of grant
Restricted stock awards granted to directors vest immediately and stock may be sold once vested Restricted stock

awards granted to directors vest immediately

The following table summarizes information
relating to restricted stock activity number of shares in thousands

Weighted

Average

Grant Date

_________________
Fair Value

As of September 30 2013 there were no unrecognized compensation costs related to restricted stock awards

The Company grants restricted units of common stock as part of its long-term incentive compensation to employees
Restricted stock units vest over period of three years Restricted stock units entitle employees once vested and

settled to receive shares of the Companys common stock Settlement occurs after the earliest of the following to

occur five years from the date of issuance ii termination of employment or iii change in control as defined

Restricted Stock Awards

Restricted Stock Units

Number of

Options

736

874

879

Range of

exercise price

$0.69 $0.85

$1.20 -$1.85

$2.00 $2.99

$3.00 $3.94

$4.33 $4.88

$5.03 $5.40

Restricted stock unvested and outstanding at September 30 2012

Granted

Vested

Restricted stock unvested and outstanding at September 30 2013

Number of

Shares

25 1.82

25 1.82

The weighted average grant date fair value of restricted stock awards granted during fiscal 2012 was $1.33 The
total fair value of restricted stock awards vested during the fiscal year 2013 and 2012 was $46000 and $55000
respectively
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in the Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreements The fair value of restricted stock units is determined based on the

closing market price of the Companys stock on the date of grant

The following table summarizes information relating to restricted stock unit activity in thousands except per
unit

data

Weighted

Average Aggregate

Number of Grant Date Intrinsic

Units Fair Value Value

Restricted stock units outstanding at September 30 2012 426 1.95

Granted
368 1.01

Settled
36 2.50

Forfeited
80 1.24

______________

Restricted stock units outstanding at September 30 2013 678 1.50 1911

Restricted stock units vested and unsettled at September 30 2013 190 2.16 535

Restricted stock units expected to vest after September 30 2013 488 1.24 1376

Aggregate intrinsic value represents the Companys closing stock price on the last trading day of the fiscal period

multiplied by the number of restricted stock units outstanding vested and unsettled or expected to vest

In fiscal 2013 131000 units vested but remained unsettled The total fair value of restricted stock units vested

during fiscal years
2013 and 2012 was $0.1 million and $0.2 million respectively As of September 30 2013 there

were $0.4 million of total unrecognized compensation costs related to restricted stock units The Company will

recognize these costs over the remaining vesting periods of these units The weighted average period over which the

costs will be recognized is 1.5 years

Common Stock Warrants

The Company has issued warrants for the purchase of common stock to consultants placement agents and in

connection with the sale of preferred stock and debt facilities Compensation expense associated with the warrants

has not been material and has been recorded as expense at the fair value of the warrants

The following table summarizes information relating to common stock warrant activity number of warrants in

thousands

Weighted Weighted

Average Average

Number of Exercise Remaining

Warrants Price Life Years

Common stock warrants outstanding at September 30 2012 4362 3.05 3.6

Expired
457

______________

Common stock warrants outstanding at September 30 2013 3905 3.02 3.0

Note Shareholders Equity

Common Stock

The Company is authorized to issue up to 100000000 shares of common stock

Preferred Stock

The Company has authorized an undesignated class of preferred stock of 50000000 shares The Board of Directors

can issue preferred stock in one or more series and fix the terms of such stock without shareholder approval
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Preferred stock may include the right to vote as series on particular matters preferences as to dividends and

liquidation conversion and redemption rights and other preferential provisions Each share of preferred stock is

convertible into one share of the Companys common stock

The following table summarizes information related to each of the Companys designated series of preferred stock

number of shares in thousands

Shares Issuance or

Designated Sale Price

Designated shares of preferred stock

Series 3000 2.54

Series 1400 3.94

Series 1600 3.83

Series 1400 2.22

SeriesG 10100 3.00

Total preferred stock 17500

Series

Shares Issued and Outstanding

September 30 September 30

2013 2012

2347 2250

1269 1269

1567 1567

1340 1340

10067 10067

16590 16493

In December 2003 the Companys Board of Directors designated 2250000 shares as Series Preferred Stock In

March 2013 in conjunction with the Companys annual shareholder meeting the shareholders of the Company
approved the designation of an additional 750000 shares of Series Preferred Stock Pursuant to Stock Purchase

Agreement entered into in December 2003 with Trident Capital Management-y LLC and its affiliates collectively
Trident Capital the Company sold 1613000 shares of Series Preferred Stock for $4.1 million or $2.54 per share
Each share of the Preferred Stock is convertible into one share of the Companys common stock The price per share

of the Series Preferred Stock and the conversion price for the common stock were equal to the market value of the

common stock as defined in the NASDAQ Stock Market Rules on the date of execution of the definitive

agreements The Series Preferred Stock pays cumulative dividend of 4.0 percent of the original issue price per
annum payable semi-annually on each

outstanding share of Series Preferred Stock The dividend is payable in

additional shares of Series Preferred Stock or cash at the option of the holders and maintains
non-participating

preferred liquidation right equal to the original issue price plus accrued unpaid dividends The Series Preferred

Stock provides that the Company cannot pay dividends to the holders of any other capital stock unless and until the

Company has paid dividends accrued on the Series Preferred Stock

In the fiscal
years ended 2013 and 2012 the Company issued 97000 and 81000 shares respectively of Series

Preferred Stock to Trident Capital for payment of accrued dividends Based on the market value of the Companys
common stock on the date of the dividend payment the payment of the dividend in additional shares of Series

Preferred Stock resulted in non-cash dividend of $0.2 million for both fiscal 2013 and 2012

The Series Preferred Stock is redeemable at the option of Trident Capital at 100 percent of the original purchase

price plus accrued and unpaid dividends at any time after five years from the date of issuance or at any time if there

is significant adverse judgment against the Company the Company defaults on its debts files for bankruptcy or in

the event of change of control However the Company may decline to redeem any or all of the Preferred Stock at

its sole option and discretion and in that case the annual cumulative dividend on the Series Preferred Stock will

increase from 4.0 percent to 10.0 percent In the event that upon change of control the Company does not have
sufficient funds to redeem any or all of the Series Preferred Stock the annual cumulative dividend on the Series

Preferred Stock will increase from 4.0 percent to 6.0 percent The Company may redeem the Series Preferred

Stock at its option after five years from the date of issuance at the original issue price plus accrued unpaid
dividends if the market price of its common stock is at least three times the then effective conversion price for

specified period

51



Series

In August 2005 the Companys Board of Directors designated 1400000 shares as Series Preferred Stock through

private placement Pursuant to Stock Purchase Agreement entered into in September 2005 with Trident Capital

the Company sold 1269000 shares of Series Preferred Stock for $5.0 million or $3.94 per share Each share of

the Series Preferred Stock is convertible into one share of the Companys common stock The price per share of

Series Preferred Stock and the conversion price for the common stock are equal to the market value of the

common stock as defined in the NASDAQ Stock Market Rules on the date of execution of the definitive

agreements The Series Preferred Stock does not pay dividend unless the Company declines to redeem the stock

upon demand of the holders after an Acceleration Event as defined in the Certificate of Designation of the Series

Preferred Stock In that case the Series Preferred Stock pays cumulative dividend of 4.0 percent
of the original

issue price per
annum on each outstanding share of Series Preferred Stock payable in cash The Series

Preferred Stock has non-participating liquidation right equal to the original issue price plus accrued unpaid

dividends which are senior to the Companys common stock and junior to the Series Preferred Stock The

Company may redeem the Series Preferred Stock at its option after five years
from the date of issuance at the

original issue price plus accrued unpaid dividends if the market value of its common stock is at least three times

the then effective conversion price for specified period

Additionally the Company issued Trident Capital five-year warrants to purchase 375000 shares of its common

stock at an exercise price of $3.94 per share The aggregate fair value of the warrants was $47000 The warrants

permit cashless exercise Subsequently in connection with the sale of the Companys Series Preferred Stock

the Company extended the term of each common stock warrant issued in connection with the purchase of the

Companys Series Preferred Stock by two years All unexercised warrants expired in fiscal 2012

Series

In May 2007 the Companys Board of Directors designated 1600000 shares as Series Preferred Stock Pursuant

to Stock Purchase Agreement entered into in June 2007 with Trident Capital the Company sold 1567000 shares

of Series Preferred Stock for $6.0 million or $3.83 per share Each share of the Series Preferred Stock is

convertible into one share of the Companys common stock The price per share of Series Preferred Stock and the

conversion price for the common stock are equal to the market value of the common stock as defined in the

NASDAQ Stock Market Rules on the date of execution of the definitive agreements The Series Preferred Stock

does not pay dividend unless the Company declines to redeem the stock upon demand of the holders after an

Acceleration Event as defined in the Certificate of Designation of the Series Preferred Stock In that case the

Series Preferred Stock pays cumulative dividend of 4.0 percent
of the original

issue price per annum on each

outstanding share of Series Preferred Stock payable in cash The Series Preferred Stock has non

participating liquidation right equal to the original issue price plus accrued unpaid dividends which are senior to the

Companys common stock and junior to the Series and Series Preferred Stock The Company may redeem the

Series Preferred Stock at its option after five years
from the date of issuance at the original issue price plus

accrued unpaid dividends if the market value of its common stock is at least three times the then effective

conversion price for specified period

Additionally the Company issued Trident Capital five-year warrants to purchase 470000 shares of its common

stock at an exercise price of $3.83 per
share The aggregate fair value of the warrants was $59000 The warrants

permit cashless exercise Subsequently in connection with the sale of the Companys Series Preferred Stock

the Company extended the term of each common stock warrant issued in connection with the purchase of the

Companys Series Preferred Stock by two years

Series and Series

In February 2009 the Companys Board of Directors designated 1400000 shares as Series Preferred Stock

Concurrently the Company sold 1355857 shares of Series Preferred Stock for $3.0 million or $2.22 per share

Each share of the Series Preferred Stock was converted into one share of the Series Preferred Stock in April

2009 and the Certificate of Designation for the Series Preferred Stock was canceled Each share of Series
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Preferred Stock is convertible into one share of the Companys common stock The price per share of Series

Preferred Stock and the conversion price for the common stock are equal to the market value of the common stock

as defined in the NASDAQ Stock Market Rules on the date of execution of the definitive agreements The

Series Preferred Stock does not pay dividend unless the Company declines to redeem the stock upon demand of

the holders after an Acceleration Event as defined in the Certificate of Designation of the Series Preferred Stock
In that case the Series Preferred Stock pays cumulative dividend of 4.0 percent of the original issue price per
annum on each outstanding share of Series Preferred Stock payable in cash The Series Preferred Stock has

non-participating liquidation right equal to the original issue price plus accrued unpaid dividends which is senior to

the Companys common stock and the Series Series and Series Preferred Stock The Company may redeem

the Series Preferred Stock at its option after five years from the date of issuance at the original issue price plus
accrued unpaid dividends if the market value of its common stock is at least three times the then effective

conversion price for specified period

Additionally the Company issued seven-year warrants to purchase 406759 shares of its common stock at an
exercise price of $2.22 per share Also in connection with this transaction the Company extended by two years the

term of each common stock warrant issued in connection with the purchase of the Companys Series and Series

Preferred Stock The aggregate fair value of the warrants was $0.5 million of which $0.1 million related to the

modification of the Series and Series warrants The warrants permit cashless exercise

In fiscal 2012 13514 shares of Series Preferred Stock were converted to common stock In fiscal 2013 there

were no shares of Series Preferred Stock converted to common stock

Series

In December 2009 in connection with
financing the acquisition of Turnpike Global Technologies Inc the

Company issued convertible debt totaling $30.2 million In February 2010 the Companys Board of Directors

designated 10100000 shares as Series Preferred Stock The convertible debt was converted into 10066663
shares of Series Preferred Stock on February 19 2010 subsequent to shareholder approval The price per share of

Series Preferred Stock and the conversion price for the common stock was $3.00 The price per share of Series

Preferred Stock and the conversion price for the common stock are equal to the market value of the common stock

as defined in the NASDAQ Stock Market Rules on the date of execution of the definitive agreements Each share

of Series Preferred Stock is convertible into one share of the Companys common stock The Series Preferred

Stock does not pay dividend unless the Company declines to redeem the stock upon demand of the holders after

five years from the date of issuance change in control or an Acceleration Event as defined in the Certificate of

Designation of the Series Preferred Stock In that case the Series Preferred Stock pays cumulative dividend

of 4.0 percent of the original issue price per annum on each outstanding share of Series Preferred Stock payable
in cash The Series Preferred Stock has non-participating liquidation right equal to the original issue price plus

accrued unpaid dividends which is senior to the Companys common stock and the Series Series Series and

Series Preferred Stock The Company may redeem the Series Preferred Stock at its option after five years from

the date of issuance at the original issue price plus accrued unpaid dividends if the market value of its common
stock is at least three times the then effective conversion price for specified period

Additionally as part of the debt conversion the Company issued seven-year warrants to purchase 3019995 shares

of its common stock at an exercise price of $3.00 per share The aggregate fair value of the warrants was 3.9

million The warrants permit cashless exercise

Contingent Common Stock Earn-Out

In connection with the acquisition of Turnpike Global Technologies Inc the Company committed to pay total earn-

outs up to an additional 2500000 shares of common stock upon the achievement of certain performance goals for

the 2010 2011 and 2012 fiscal years The Company determined that the fiscal 2010 performance goals were

achieved and as result the Company issued 809993 shares of common stock to the former shareholders of

Turnpike Global Technologies Inc with the value of the remaining 23340 shares being settled in cash of $70000
paid to non-accredited U.S holders
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The Company determined that the fiscal 2011 and fiscal 2012 performance goals were not achieved As result the

value of the 809993 shares of common stock pertaining to each fiscal 2011 and fiscal 2012 performance goals
that

were to be issued was reclassified within shareholders equity in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets as

of September 30 2012 and 2011 respectively In addition the portion scheduled to be settled in cash of $5 1000

was recorded as income in fiscal years 2012 in net interest and other expense in the accompanying consolidated

statements of operations

Note 10 Fair Value

The Company maintained certain assets which were measured at fair value on recurring and non-recurring basis as

of September 30 2013 There were no material transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy for the fiscal

years
ended September 30 2013 and 2012

Assets Measured at Fair Value on Non-Recurring Basis

Assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value on nonrecurring basis relate primarily to our tangible
fixed

assets goodwill and intangible assets which are remeasured when the fair value is below carrying value on our

consolidated balance sheets For these assets we do not periodically adjust carrying
value to fair value except in the

event of impairment When we determine that impairment has occurred the carrying value of the asset is reduced to

fair value and the difference is recorded within operating income in our consolidated statements of operations

The following table summarizes the fair value remeasurements recorded on non-recurring basis as of

September 30 2012

Significant

Unobservable

Inputs

Total Loss Level

Acquired customer contracts
3500 2369

Acquired Customer Contracts The fair value remeasurements included in the table above were based on

significant
unobservable inputs Level Acquired customer contract fair values were derived using discounted

cash flow model to estimate the present value of net cash flows that the asset group was expected to generate The

key inputs to the discounted cash flow model generally included our forecasts of expected future cash flows

generated from the asset group and the discount rate applied

The following table summarizes the change in the net balance of the acquired customer contracts classified as

Level and included in intangible assets net in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets in thousands

Balance as of September 30 2011
7313

Amortization
1444

Impairment charge
3500

Balance as of September 30 2012
2369

Amortization
711

Balance as of September 30 2013
1658

See Note Summary of Significant Accounting Policies for more information on the application
of fair value

methodology to measure definite-lived intangible assets
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Note 11 Commitments and Contingencies

Total

Retirement Plans

Purchase Commitments

Legal

863

Operating Lease Commitments

The Company leases its offices warehouse and certain office equipment under noncancelable operating leases

which generally have escalating rentals over the term of each lease The facility leases require that the Company pay

portion of the real estate taxes maintenance utilities and insurance collectively common area costs

Future minimum lease commitments under these noncancelable operating leases excluding common area costs as

of September 30 2013 are as follows in thousands

Years ending September 30

2014 624

2015 204

2016 35

Rental expense including common area costs was $1.1 million and $1.0 million for the fiscal years ended

September 30 2013 and 2012 respectively

The Company offers 40 1k plan covering substantially all U.S employees In fiscal 2012 the Company instituted

registered retirement savings plan covering substantially all Canadian employees Both plans are operated on

calendar year basis For both the U.S and Canadian plans the Company provides an employer matching

contribution equal to 50.0 percent of an employees contribution for employee deferrals of up to 6.0 percent of their

compensation Matching contributions totaled $0.4 million for both fiscal 2013 and 2012

From time to time in the ordinary course of the business the Company enters into purchase commitments for

inventory third-party software licenses etc The Company evaluates these commitments on quarterly basis to

evaluate whether all commitments made will be realized in the ordinary course of business given the terms of the

commitment and whether any event has occurred that has impaired such commitment

In the third quarter of fiscal 2012 in conjunction with business realignment the Company determined that certain

inventory purchase commitments with remaining terms of less than one year would not be realized Refer to Note

13 Impairment and Business Realignment for discussion of costs recognized As of September 30 2012 $0.1

million was recorded in accrued expenses in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets for remaining estimated

costs to terminate these inventory purchase commitments

As of September 30 2013 the Company believes that all purchase commitments made will be achieved over the

terms established except as disclosed above In addition as of September 30 2013 the Company had no

unconditional purchase obligations with remaining terms in excess of one year

The Company is the subject of various pending or threatened legal actions and proceedings including those that

arise in the ordinary course of business Such matters are subject to many uncertainties and to outcomes that are not

predictable with assurance and that may not be known for extended periods of time The Company records

liability in its consolidated financial statements for costs related to claims including settlements and judgments
where the Company has assessed that loss is probable and an amount can be reasonably estimated
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On December 16 2009 eight plaintiffs filed lawsuit in the U.S District Court for the Western District of North

Carolina Durkee C.H Robinson Worldwide Inc et al against eleven defendants including Xata Corporation

now XRS Corporation seeking damages arising from motor vehicle collision that occurred on July 2008 On

June 2010 second case pertaining to this motor vehicle collision was filed in the same court Bailey Estate of

Carroll Jett et al against twelve defendants including the Company The plaintiffs in both of these cases alleged

that the motor vehicle collision and the resulting personal injuries and other damages were caused by the driver of

truck who was texting with MobileMax device supplied by the Company The plaintiffs in both cases sought joint

and several liability from each defendant for alleged personal injury damages in an unspecified amount In January

2011 the U.S District Court dismissed all of the claims in both cases against the Company on the grounds that the

supplier of mobile communication device is not liable for damages caused by an admittedly negligent driver using

that device On October 2013 the plaintiffs exhausted their appeals The Companys insurance carrier accepted

coverage of the Company throughout the Durkee and Bailey cases

Note 12 Income Taxes

The income tax expense benefit consisted of the following in thousands

September 30

Currently payable

Federal

State

International

Deferred

Federal

State

International

Total income tax expense benefit

Reconciling items

Statutory federal rate applied to income loss before income taxes

State income tax expense benefit

Stock-based compensation

Meals and entertainment

Change in valuation allowance

Research and development credit

Net operating loss and research development credit expiration

State net operating loss true up

Other

Total income tax expense benefit

2013 2012

48

114 58

162 58

608

608
155 550

The reconciliation of the statutory income tax rate to the Companys effective tax rate is as follows in thousands

September 30

2013 2012

347 3658
54 213
56 189

49 71

552 1301

361 354

146 1953

180

236 162

155 550

Deferred taxes arise because of different treatment between financial statement accounting and tax accounting

known as temporary differences The Company records the tax effect of these temporary differences as deferred tax

assets generally items that can be used as tax deduction or credit in future periods and deferred tax liabilities
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generally items for which the Company receives tax deduction but the tax impact has not yet been recorded in the

accompanying consolidated statements of operations

Deferred taxes were classified in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets as follows in thousands

September 30

Current deferred tax assets

Inventory and warranty reserve

Accrued expenses deferred revenue and other

Accounts receivable and sales reserve

Non-current deferred tax assets

Depreciation and amortization

Tax credit carryforwards

Net operating loss carryforwards

Definite-lived intangible assets

Total deferred tax assets gross

Valuation allowance

Total deferred tax liabilities net

2013 2012

622 751

729 636

66 121

1417 1508

1286 1506

2992 2757

14604 15658

1377 1958
17505 17963

18922 19471

18922 19480

The Company does not have objectively verifiable positive evidence of future taxable income accordingly the

Company concluded that recording valuation allowance to the extent of the Companys deferred tax assets is

appropriate as of September 30 2013 and 2012 The realization of the deferred tax assets is dependent on future

taxable income during the periods when deductible temporary differences and carryforwards are expected to be
available to reduce taxable income The amount of the net deferred tax asset considered realizable could be
increased in the future if the Company maintains profitability and it becomes more likely than not that these

amounts would be realized

As of September 30 2013 the Company had
gross federal net operating loss carryforwards of $52.3 million which

are scheduled to expire from 2014 through 2032 Net operating loss carryforwards of $3 1.1 million were acquired
with the acquisition of GeoLogic The usage of the acquired net operating losses is limited in accordance with the

provisions of Section 382 of the Internal Revenue Code IRC Accordingly only $18.6 million of the acquired net

operating loss carryforwards are available for use Therefore of the $52.3 million of net operating loss

carryforwards the Company may be able to utilize $39.7 million from 2014 through 2032 As of September 30
2013 the Company had gross state net operating loss carryforwards of $10.6 million which are scheduled to expire
from 2014 through 2032

As of September 30 2013 the Company also had tax credit carryforwards of $3.0 million

In fiscal 2013 and 2012 the Company recognized no tax benefit or liabilities for uncertainties related to prior and
current year income tax positions which were determined to be immaterial The Company currently has no income
tax payable balance for unrecognized tax benefits and accordingly there is no interest or penalties recorded on the

accompanying consolidated balance sheets for such items

As discussed above the value of GeoLogic net operating loss carryforwards have been reduced by $12.5 million

based on limitations on their use pursuant to Section 382 of the IRC The Company is currently open to audit under

the statute of limitations by the Internal Revenue Service and the appropriate state income taxing authorities from

2000 to 2012 due to the net operating loss carryforwards from those years The utilization of net operating loss
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carryforwards and tax credit carryforwards may also be subject to annual limitations in the event of future changes

in ownership pursuant to the requirements of Section 382 of the IRC Such limitations could result in the expiration

of net operating loss and tax credit can-yforwards before utilization Currently the Company is undergoing study to

determine whether Section 382 limitation applies to XRS Corporations net operating loss carryforwards

Note 13 Impairment and Business Realignment Charges

In fiscal 2012 the Company incurred total of $6.0 million in impairment and business realignment charges related

to the transition to mobile-based solutions The business realignment involved the elimination of 29 positions

The following table summarizes the impairment and business realignment charges recorded in fiscal 2012 in

thousands

Included in cost of goods sold

Write-off of excess and obsolete inventory
836

Accelerated depreciation of RouteTracker assets
404

Inventory purchase commitment termination costs
398

Included in selling general and administrative expenses

Employee separation costs
781

Included in research and development expenses

Employee separation costs
80

Impairment of intangible asset
3500

Total impairment and business realignment costs
5999

Business realignment accrual activity included in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets was as follows in

thousands

Balance as of September 30 2011

Costs incurred
1259

Cash payments and other
759

Balance as of September 30 2012
500

Costs incurred

Cash payments and other
500

Balance as of September 30 2013
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Item Chances In and Disa2reements with Accountants on Accountin2 and Financial Disclosure

None

Item 9A Controls and Procedures

Evaluation ofDisclosure Controls and Procedures

The Companys management with the participation of our Chief Executive Officer and our Chief Financial Officer
evaluated the effectiveness of the design and operation of our disclosure controls and procedures as of the fiscal

year ended September 30 2013 pursuant to Rule 3a- 15b of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 the Exchange
Act Based upon their evaluation our Chief Executive Officer and our Chief Financial Officer concluded that our
disclosure controls and procedures were effective as of the fiscal year ended September 30 2013 to ensure that

information required to be disclosed by us in the reports we file or submit under the Exchange Act is recorded

processed summarized and reported within the time periods specified in the Securities and Exchange
Commissions rules and forms and to ensure that information required to be disclosed by us in the

reports we file or
submit under the Exchange Act is accumulated and communicated to our management including our principal
executive and principal financial officers as appropriate to allow timelydecisions regarding required disclosures

Managementc Annual Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting as
such term is defined in Exchange Act Rule 3a- 15f Under the supervision and with the participation of our

management including the Certifing Officers we conducted an evaluation of the effectiveness of our internal

control over financial reporting based on the framework in the 1992 Internal Control Integrated Framework issued

by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission Based on this evaluation our

management concluded that our internal control over financial reporting was effective as of the fiscal year ended

September 30 2013

Due to its inherent limitations internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements

Also projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may
become inadequate due to changes in conditions or that the degree of compliance with the policies and procedures
may deteriorate

Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting

There were no changes in our internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the quarter ended

September 30 2013 that have materially affected or are reasonably likely to materially affect our internal control

over financial reporting

Item 9B Other Information

None
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FART III

Item 10 Directors Executive Officers and Corporate Governance

The Companys current executive officers as of December 20 2013 and their positions
and ages are as follows

John Coughlan Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer Mr Coughlan age 55 has

served as Chairman President and Chief Executive Officer since joining
XRS in October 2006 Prior to joining

XRS he was involved in business consulting practice Through June 2005 he served as president and CEO of

Lawson Software Minnesotas largest
software company Mr Coughlan joined Lawson Software in 1987 and

became CEO in February 2001 prior to the Lawsons initial public offering in December 2001 In addition to his

responsibilities at XRS Mr Coughian is an active regional
business advocate and serves on the board of directors

for the local organization Minnesota Adult and Teen Challenge

Brendan Reidy President Chief Operating Officer and Chief Technology Officer Mr Reidy age 59

joined XRS in March 2013 as president
and chief operating officer and added Chief Technology Officer to his role

in October 2013 Mr Reidy oversees the development product management long-term product strategy product

marketing information systems quality assurance customer support supply chain and human resources

departments Mr Reidy was hired to focus on scalability and growth as XRS launches its new mobile strategy and

platform He came to XRS with deep background as leader of technology companies and ventures Mr Reidy

will driver operational improvement and put in place processes and systems that will enable XRS to achieve the

scale of growth we expect and aim for Mr Reidy is the former chairman and CEO of Clams Systems in Redwood

City CA He has held executive-level positions at Qwest Communications/US West Litton Integrated Automation

and Software Alliance Corp In addition he has served as director of several technology companies including

eGistics Arantech Evolving Systems and Greenbrier Russel In addition he is venture partner
at Trident

Capital Mr Reidy received an A.B in Political Science from Stanford University and an MBA from the Wharton

School at the University of Pennsylvania

Michael Weber Chief Financial Officer Mr Weber age 48 was appointed our Chief Financial Officer

in October 2012 Mr Weber joined the Company as Director of Finance and Controller in April 2007 and was

appointed Vice President of Finance in March 2011 Since July 2012 he has served as our Principal Financial and

Principal Accounting Officer Mr Weber brought significant
financial and compliance expertise to the Company

having served as the director of compliance and external reporting and controller at CNS INC In addition Mr

Weber served as vice president and chief financial officer for the consumer brands division of Schwans Sales

Enterprises Inc Mr Weber obtained B.S in Accounting and Business from St Johns University

James DeSocio Executive Vice President Field Operations Mr DeSocio age 58 joined XRS in

January 2013 as Executive Vice President Field Operations Mr DeSocio most recently held the position of

Executive Vice President of Sales and Business Development at Antenna Software Inc where from December

2007 until June 2012 he was responsible
for international sales and business development for this cloud-based

mobility software company From June 2004 until July 2007 Mr DeSocio was Chief Executive Officer for

Riskclick Inc provider of cloud-based underwriting solutions for the property and casualty insurance market

From 1991 until June 2004 he held several sales leadership positions with Lawson Software Inc an enterprise

software provider most recently serving as Lawsons Executive Vice President for the retail industry market and for

Lawsons global field operations

Each officer is elected by and serves at the pleasure of the Board of Directors There is neither family relationship

between any of the officers named and any other executive officer or member of the Board of Directors nor any

arrangement or understanding pursuant to which any person was selected as an officer

Information required under this Item with respect to directors and executive officers and regarding compliance with

Section 16a of the Exchange Act is incorporated by reference from our definitive proxy statement including the

information under the headings Proposal Election of Directors Board Meetings and Committees and Section 16

Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance for the Annual Meeting of Stockholders
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Our Board of Directors has adopted XRS Corporations Code of Business Conduct and Ethics and designated it as

the code of ethics for the Companys Chief Executive Officer and senior financial officers The Code of Business

Conduct and Ethics also applies to all employees and directors copy of XRS Corporations Code of Business

Conduct and Ethics has been posted on our website at http//xrscorp.comlmedialdocs/code-of-conduct-xrs

feb-2009.pdf We intend to satisfy the disclosure requirements regarding amendments to or waivers from XRS
Corporations Code of Business Conduct and Ethics by promptly posting such information on our website

We are not including the information contained on our webs ite as part of or incorporating it by reference into this

report

Item 11 Executive Compensation

Information required under this Item is incorporated by reference from our definitive proxy statement including the

information under the heading Executive Compensation for the Annual Meeting of Stockholders

Item 12 Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Mana2ement and Related Stockholder

Matters

Information required under this Item is incorporated by reference from our definitive proxy statement including the

information under the headings Equity Compensation Plan Information and Principal Shareholders and Ownership

of Management for the Annual Meeting of Stockholders

Item 13 Certain Relationships and Related Transactions Director Independence

Information required under this Item is incorporated by reference from our definitive proxy statement including the

information under the headings Certain Relationships and Related Person Transactions and Proposal Election of

Directors for the Annual Meeting of Stockholders

Item 14 Principal Accountant Fees and Services

Information required under this Item is incorporated by reference from our definitive proxy statement including the

information contained under the headings Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm Audit Fees Audit

Related Fees Tax Fees All Other Fees and Audit Fees Pre-approval Policy for the Annual Meeting of Stockholders
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PART IV

Item 15 Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules

List of documents filed as part of this report

Financial Statements

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

Consolidated Balance Sheets as of September 30 2013 and 2012

Consolidated Statements of Operations for the Years Ended September 30 2013 and 2012

Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income Loss for the Years Ended September 30 2013 and

2012

Consolidated Statements of Changes in Shareholders Equity for the Years Ended September 30 2013 and

2012

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the Years Ended September 30 2013 and 2012

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Financial Statement Schedules

Schedule II Valuation and Qualifying Accounts

All other schedules for which provision is made in the applicable accounting regulations of the Securities

and Exchange Commission have been omitted because they are not applicable or the required information is

shown in the financial statements or notes thereto

Exhibits

The exhibits of this Annual Report on Form 10-K included herein are set forth on the attached

Exhibit Index
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SIGNATURES

In accordance with Section 13 or 15d of the Exchange Act the Registrant has duly caused this report to be signed

on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized

XRS Corporation

Dated December 20 2013 By Is John Coughlan

John Coughian Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Principal Executive Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 this report has been signed below by the

following persons on behalf of the Company and in the capacities and on the dates indicated

Dated December 20 2013 By Is John Coughlan

John Coughlan Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Principal Executive Officer

Dated December 20 2013 By Is/ Mark Claeys

Mark Claeys Director

Dated December 20 2013 By /sI Donald Dixon

Donald Dixon Director

Dated December 20 2013 By Is/ Thomas Hudson

Thomas Hudson Director

Dated December 20 2013 By Is Christopher Marshall

Christopher Marshall Director

Dated December 20 2013 By /s/ Michael Paxton

Michael Paxton Director

Dated December 20 2013 By Is Karen Van Lith

Karen Van Lith Director

Dated December 20 2013 By Is Michael Weber

Michael Weber Chief Financial Officer Principal Financial

and Accounting Officer
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Schedule II

XRS Corporation

Valuation and Qualifying Accounts

in thousands

Balance at Charged to

beginning of costs and Balance at

Description
period expenses Deductions end of period

Year ended September 30 2012 deducted from

asset accounts

Allowance for doubtful accounts 378 64 314

Business realignment reserves 1259 759 500

Year ended September 30 2013 deducted from

asset accounts

Allowance for doubtful accounts 314 163 151

Business realignment reserves
500 500

See Note 13 in the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements located in Part II Item of this Report
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Exhibit

No Description of Exhibits

3.1 Fourth Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation as amended through August 13 2012

3.2 Bylaws as amended through August 13 2012

4.1 Common Stock Warrant issued to Partners for Growth II L.P dated as of January 31 2008

4.2 Common Stock Warrant issued to Silicon Valley Bank dated as of January 31 2008

4.3 Amended and Restated Investor Rights Agreement by and among the Company Trident Capital Fund
L.P Trident Capital Fund-V Affiliates Fund L.P Trident Capital Fund-V Affiliates Fund L.P

Trident Capital Fund-V Principals Fund L.P and Trident Capital Parallel Fund-V C.V dated as of
February 12 2009

4.4 Form of Warrants issued to each of Trident Capital Fund-V L.P Trident Capital Fund-V Affiliates

Fund L.P Trident Capital Fund-V Affiliates Fund L.P Trident Capital Fund-V Principals Fund
L.P Trident Capital Parallel Fund-V C.V GW 2001 Fund L.P Weber Capital Partners II L.P and
certain members of the Companys management

10.1 Indemnification Agreement by and among the Company Trident Capital Inc Trident Capital Fund-V
L.P Trident Capital Fund-V Affiliates Fund L.P Trident Capital Fund-V Affiliates Fund L.P
Trident Capital Fund-V Principals Fund L.P and Trident

Capital Parallel Fund-V C.V dated as of
December 2003

10.2 Director Indemnification Agreement dated as of December 2003

10.3 Stock Purchase Agreement with John Deere Special Technologies Group Inc dated August 302000

10.4
Registration Rights Agreement with John Deere Special Technologies Group Inc dated August 30200010

10.5 Amendment No to Stock Purchase Agreement dated as of October 31 2000 11

10.6 Side Agreement with John Deere Special Technologies Group Inc dated December 28 2000 12

10.7 Second Amendment to Stock Purchase Agreement with John Deere Special Technologies Group Inc
dated December 2009 13

10.8 2002 Long-Term Incentive and Stock Option Plan

10.9 Form of Non-Qualified Stock Option Agreement for Directors pursuant to 2002 Long-term Incentive
and Stock Option Plan 15

10.10 Incentive Stock Option Agreement with John Coughlan dated October 2006 16

10.11 2007 Long-term Incentive and Stock Option Plan as amended and restated February 2009

10.12 Form of Non-Qualified Stock Option Agreement for Directors pursuant to 2007 Long-term Incentive
and Stock Option Plan

18

10.13 Form of Incentive Stock Option Agreement for Employees pursuant to 2007 Long-term Incentive and
Stock Option Plan 19

10.14 Form of Directors Stock Award Agreement pursuant to 2007 Long-Term Incentive and Stock Option
Plan 20

10.15 Form of Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement pursuant to 2007 Long-Term Incentive and Stock
Option Plan 21

10.16 Non-Qualified Stock Option Agreement with David Gagne dated January 2007 22

10.17 Executive Employment Agreement with John Coughlan dated October 2006 23

10.18 Severance Agreement with David Gagne dated May 2009 24

10.19 Severance Agreement with Scott Christian dated April 21 201125

10.20 Severance Agreement with Odell Tuttle dated September 12 2011 26

10.21 Severance Agreement with Steve Chamberlain dated January 31 2012 27

10.22 Severance Agreement with Michael Weber dated October 2012
28

10.23 International Value Added Reseller Agreement with Orbcomm Inc dated July 31 2006 29

10.24 Second Amendment to Custom Service Agreement with Sprint Solutions Inc dated October 26
2006 30
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Exhibit

No Description of Exhibits

10.25 Common Stock Warrant and Series Preferred Stock Purchase Agreement by and among the

Company Trident Capital Fund-V L.P Trident Capital Fund-V Affiliates Fund L.P Trident Capital

Fund-V Affiliates Fund L.P Trident Capital
Fund-V Principals Fund L.P Trident Capital

Parallel Fund-V C.V Weber Capital
Partners II L.P GW 2001 Fund L.R and certain members of the

Companys management dated as of February 12 2009
31

10.26 Equity Purchase Agreement by and among the Company Turnpike Global Technologies Inc Turnpike

Global Technologies LLC the stockholders of Turnpike Global Technologies Inc the members of

Turnpike Global Technologies LLC and Brendan Staub as Sellers Representative dated December

2009
32

10.27 Note Purchase Agreement by and among the Company and TCV VII L.P TCV VII L.P TCV

Member Fund L.R Trident Capital Fund-V L.P Trident Capital
Fund-V Affiliates Fund L.P Trident

Capital Fund-V Affiliates Fund L.P Trident Capital Fund-V Principals Fund L.P Trident Capital

Parallel Fund-V C.V and GW 2001 Fund L.P dated December 2009 33

10.28 Investor Rights Agreement by and among the Company TCV VII L.P TCV VIIA L.P and TCV

Member Fund L.R dated December 2009 34

10.29 Indemnification Agreement by and among the Company TCV VII L.P TCV VIIA L.P and TCV

Member Fund L.P dated December 2009 35

10.30 Amended and Restated Voting Agreement by and among the Company John Deere Special

Technologies Group Inc Trident Capital Fund-V L.P Trident Capital Fund-V Affiliates Fund L.P

Trident Capital Fund-V Affiliates Fund L.P Trident Capital
Fund-V Principals Fund L.P and

Trident Capital Parallel Fund-V C.V dated December 2009
36

10.31 Voting Agreement by and among the Company John Deere Special Technologies Group Inc TCV

VII L.R TCV VII L.P and TCV Member Fund L.P dated December 2009
37

10.32 Loan and Security Agreement between Silicon Valley Bank and Xata Corporation dated as of February

24 2012
38

10.33 Severance Agreement with James DeSocio dated January 28 2013 39

10.34 Severance Agreement with Brendan Reidy dated March 11 2013
40

21 List of Subsidiaries

23 Consent of Grant Thornton LLP independent registered public accounting firm

24 Powers of Attorney

31.1 Certification pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

31.2 Certification pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

32.1 Certification pursuant to 18 U.S.C Section 1350 as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes

Oxley Act of 2002

32.2 Certification pursuant to 18 U.S.C Section 1350 as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes

Oxley Act of 2002

101 The following materials from XRS Corporations Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended

September 30 2012 are furnished herewith formatted in XBRL Extensible Business Reporting

Language the Consolidated Statements of Operations for the years
ended September 30 2012 and

2011 ii the Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income for the years
ended September 30

2012 and 2011 iii the Consolidated Balance Sheets as of September 30 2012 and 2011 iv the

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the years
ended September 30 2012 and 2011 the

Consolidated Statements of Changes in Shareholders Equity for the years
ended September 30 2012

and 2011 and vi the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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Unless otherwise indicated all documents incorporated into this Annual Report on Form 10-K by reference to document filed with the SEC
pursuant to the Exchange Act are located under file number 0-27166

Management contract compensatory plan or arrangement required to be filed as an exhibit

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to Current Report on Form 8-K filed August 13 2012
Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.2 to Current Report on Form 8-K filed August 13 2012
Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.3 to Current Report on Form 8-K filed February 2008
Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.2 to Current Report on Form 8-K filed February 2008
Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to Current Report on Form 8-K filed February 18 2009
Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.2 to Current Report on Form 8-K filed February 18 2009
Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.30 to Current Report on Form 8-K filed December 2003
Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.31 to Current Report on Form 8-K filed December 2003
Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.15 filed to Current Report on Form 8-K filed September 200010
Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.16 filed to Current Report on Form 8-K filed September 2000
Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.17 to Current Report on Form 8-K filed November 200012
Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.18 to Annual Report on Form 0-KSB for the fiscal year ended September 30 2000
Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.10 to Current Report on Form 8-K filed December 10 200914
Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.14 to Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended September 30 200715
Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.9 to Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended September 30 201216
Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.42 to Current Report on Form 8-K filed October 2006 In connection with the sale of the
Companys Series Preferred Stock the Company extended the term of every incentive stock option agreement then outstanding tomaximum often years

17
Incorporated by reference to Appendix to the Companys Proxy Statement filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on
December 22 2008

18
Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.18 to Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended September 30 200719
Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.19 to Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended September 30 200720
Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.14 to Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended September 30 201221
Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.15 to Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal

year ended September 30 201222
Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.52 to Current Report on Form 8-K filed January 200723
Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.41 to Current Report on Form 8-K filed October 200624
Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Current Report on Form 8-K filed May 11 200925
Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.35 to Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended September 30 201126
Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.20 to Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal

year ended September 30 201227
Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.21 to Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended September 30 201228
Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Current Report on Form 8-K filed October 10 201229
Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.49 to Annual Report on Form l0-KSB for the fiscal year ended September 30 200630
Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.50 to Annual Report on Form l0-KSB for the fiscal year ended September 30 200631
Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Current Report on Form 8-K filed February 18 200932
Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Current Report on Form 8-K filed December 10 200933
Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to Current Report on Form 8-K filed December 10 200934
Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.6 to Current Report on Form 8-K filed December 10 200935
Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.7 to Current Report on Form 8-K filed December 10 200936
Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.8 to Current Report on Form 8-K filed December 10 200937
Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.9 to Current Report on Form 8-K filed December 10 200938
Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.1 to Current Report on Form 8-K filed March 201239
Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Quarterly Report on Form l0-Q for the period ended March 31 201340
Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to Quarterly Report on Form l0-Q for the period ended March 31 2013
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Exhibit 23

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

We have issued our report dated December 20 2013 with
respect to the consolidated financial statements and

financial statement schedule included in the Annual Report of XRS Corporation on Form 10-K for the year ended

September 30 2013 We hereby consent to the
incorporation by reference of said

report
in the Registration

Statements of XRS Corporation on Forms S-8 File Nos 333-158785 333-140741 333-132247 333-113025
333-85584 333-592 14 333-28337 333-03670 33-94006 33-89222 and 33-74 148 and Forms S-3 File Nos
333-158776 333-145279 333-132246 333-113016 333-111798 and 333-111797

Is Grant Thornton LLP

Minneapolis Minnesota

December 20 2013
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Exhibit 31.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEy ACT OF 2002

John Coughian certify that

have reviewed this Annual Report the Report of XRS Corporation the Company on Form 10-K
Based on my knowledge this Report does not contain any untrue statement of material fact or omit to
state material fact necessary to make the statements made in light of the circumstances under which such
statements were made not misleading with

respect to the period covered by this report

Based on myknowledge the consolidated financial statements and other financial information included in
this report fairly present in all material

respects the financial condition results of operations and cash flows
of the registrant as of and for the periods presented in this report

The registrants other certifying officers and are responsible for
establishing and maintaining disclosure

controls and procedures as defined in Exchange Act Rules 3a- 15e and 5d- 15e and internal control
over financial

reporting as defined in Exchange Act Rules 3a- 15f and 5d- 15f for the registrant and
have

Designed such disclosure controls and procedures or caused such disclosure controls and

procedures to be designed under our supervision to ensure that material information
relating to the

registrant including its consolidated subsidiaries is made known to us by others within those

entities particularly during the period in which this
report is being prepared

Designed such internal control over financial reporting or caused such internal control over
financial reporting to be designed under our supervision to provide reasonable assurance regarding
the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external

purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles

Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrants disclosure controls and procedures and presented in

this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures as of
the end of the period covered by this

report based on such evaluation and

Disclosed in this report any change in the registrants internal control over financial
reporting that

occurred during the registrants most recent fiscal quarter the registrants fourth fiscal
quarter in the

case of an annual report that has materially affected or is reasonably likely to materially affect the

registrants internal control over financial reporting and

The registrants other certifying officers and have disclosed based on our most recent evaluation of
internal control over financial reporting to the registrants auditors and the audit committee of the

registrants board of directors or persons performing the equivalent functions

All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control
over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrants ability to

record process summarize and
report financial information and

Any fraud whether or not material that involves management or other employees who have

significant role in the registrants internal control over financial reporting

December 20 2013

By Is John Coughian

John Coughlan

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer



Exhibit 31.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

Michael Weber certify that

have reviewed this Annual Report the Report of XRS Corporation the Company on Form 10-K

Based on myknowledge this Report does not contain any untrue statement of material fact or omit to

state material fact necessary to make the statements made in light of the circumstances under which such

statements were made not misleading with respect
to the period covered by this report

Based on myknowledge the consolidated financial statements and other financial information included in

this report fairly present in all material respects the financial condition results of operations and cash flows

of the registrant as of and for the periods presented in this report

The registrants other certifying officers and are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure

controls and procedures as defined in Exchange Act Rules 3a- 15e and 5d- 15e and internal control

over financial reporting as defined in Exchange Act Rules 3a- 151 and Sd-I 5f for the registrant and

have

Designed such disclosure controls and procedures or caused such disclosure controls and

procedures to be designed under our supervision to ensure that material information relating to the

registrant including its consolidated subsidiaries is made known to us by others within those

entities particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared

Designed such internal control over financial reporting or caused such internal control over

financial reporting to be designed under our supervision to provide reasonable assurance regarding

the reliability of financial reporting
and the preparation

of financial statements for external

purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles

Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrants disclosure controls and procedures and presented in

this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures as of

the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation and

Disclosed in this report any change in the registrants
internal control over financial reporting that

occurred during the registrants most recent fiscal quarter the registrants fourth fiscal quarter
in the

case of an annual report that has materially affected or is reasonably likely to materially affect the

registrants
internal control over financial reporting and

The registrants
other certifying officers and have disclosed based on our most recent evaluation of

internal control over financial reporting to the registrants
auditors and the audit committee of the registrants

board of directors or persons performing the equivalent functions

All significant
deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control

over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrants ability to

record process summarize and report
financial information and

Any fraud whether or not material that involves management or other employees who have

significant
role in the registrants

internal control over financial reporting

December 20 2013

By Is Michael Weber

Michael Weber

Chief Financial Officer



Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C SECTION 1350 AS ADOPTED
PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of XRS Corporation the Company on Form 10-K for the fiscal

year ended September 30 2013 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof the
Report the undersigned Chief Executive Officer of the Company hereby certifies pursuant to 18 U.S.C 1350
as adopted pursuant to 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 that based on his knowledge the Report fully

complies with the requirements of Section 13 or 15d of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and the

information contained in the Report fairly presents in all material respects the financial condition and results of

operations of the Company as of and for the periods covered in the Report

By Is John Coughlan

John Coughlan

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Dated December 20 2013

signed original of this written statement required by Section 906 or other document authenticating

acknowledging or otherwise adopting the signature that appears in typed form within the electronic version of this

written statement required by Section 906 has been provided to XRS Corporation and will be retained by XRS
Corporation and furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commission or its staff upon request



Exhibit 32.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C SECTION 1350 AS ADOPTED

PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of XRS Corporation the Company on Form 10-K for the fiscal

year ended September 30 2013 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof the

Report the undersigned Chief Financial Officer of the Company hereby certifies pursuant to 18 U.S.C 1350

as adopted pursuant to 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 that based on his knowledge the Report fully

complies with the requirements of Section 13 or 15d of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and the

information contained in the Report fairly presents in all material respects the financial condition and results of

operations of the Company as of and for the periods
covered in the Report

By Is Michael Weber

Michael Weber

Chief Financial Officer

Dated December 20 2013

signed original of this written statement required by Section 906 or other document authenticating

acknowledging or otherwise adopting the signature that appears in typed form within the electronic version of this

written statement required by Section 906 has been provided to XRS Corporation and will be retained by XRS

Corporation and furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commission or its staff upon request
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XRS CORPORATION

965 Prairie Center Drive

Eden Prairie MN 55344

952 707-5600

January 10 2014

Dear Shareholder

You are cordially invited to attend the Annual Meeting of Shareholders of XRS Corporation to be held on

Thursday February 20 2014 at Hilton Minneapolis/Bloomington 3900 American Boulevard West Bloomington

Minnesota 55437 at 330 p.m

This year you are presented with the following proposals

To elect seven directors

To ratify the appointment of Grant Thornton LLP as our independent registered public accounting firm

for the fiscal year ending September 30 2014 and

To transact such other business as may properly come before the meeting or any adjournments thereof

Whether or not you plan to attend the Annual Meeting it is important that your shares be represented

regardless of the number of shares that you hold Accordingly you are requested to sign and date the enclosed

proxy and mail it in the envelope provided at your earliest convenience

Very truly yours

John Coughlan

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer



XRS CORPORATION
965 Prairie Center Drive

Eden Prairie MN 55344

952 707-5600

NOTICE OF ANNUAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS
TO BE HELD THURSDAY FEBRUARY 20 2014

To the Shareholders of XRS Corporation

The Annual Meeting of Shareholders Annual Meeting of XRS Corporation XRS or the Company or we
or our or us will be held on Thursday February 20 2014 at Hilton Minneapolis/Bloomington 3900 American
Boulevard West Bloomington Minnesota 55437 at 330 p.m for the following purposes

To elect seven directors to serve for one-year term expiring when their successors are elected and

qualified at the Annual Meeting in 2015

Only of the directors will be elected by the holders of our common and Preferred Stock The
two remaining directors will be elected by the holders of our Series and Series Preferred

Stock each voting as class

To ratify the appointment of Grant Thornton LLP as our independent registered public accounting firm

for the fiscal year ending September 30 2014 and

To transact such other business as may properly come before the meeting or any adjournments
thereof

We have fixed the close of business on January 2014 as the record date for the determination of

shareholders entitled to receive notice of and to vote at the Annual Meeting Our transfer books will not be closed
Whether or not you expect to be present personally at the Annual Meeting please complete date sign and return

the accompanying proxy in the enclosed self-addressed envelope at your earliest convenience This will ensure

your participation in the decisions to be made by the shareholders

By Order of the Board of Directors7z
January 10 2014 Michael Weber

Secretary
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XRS CORPORATION
965 Prairie Center Drive

Eden Prairie MN 55344

952 707-5600

PROXY STATEMENT FOR
ANNUAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS

TO BE HELD THURSDAY FEBRUARY 20 2014

GENERAL INFORMATION

This proxy statement is furnished to shareholders by the Board of Directors of XRS Corporation XRS or

the Company or we or our or us for solicitation of proxies for use at the Annual Meeting of Shareholders Annual

Meeting to be held on Thursday February 20 2014 at Hilton Minneapolis/Bloomington 3900 American

Boulevard West Bloomington Minnesota 55437 at 330 p.m and at all adjournments thereof The purposes of

the meeting and the matters to be acted upon are set forth in the preceding Notice of Annual Meeting of

Shareholders We are not currently aware of any other matters that will come before the meeting

copy of our Annual Report which includes our report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended

September 30 2013 is enclosed for your information It is not part of the proxy solicitation material The

Annual Report describes the financial condition of the Company as of and for the fiscal year ended September 30
2013 This proxy statement and the Annual Report are being mailed to shareholders beginning on or about

January 15 2014

We have asked brokerage houses and other custodians nominees and fiduciaries to send proxies and

proxy materials to the beneficial owners of our common stock and we will reimburse them for their expenses in so

doing To ensure adequate representation at the meeting our officers agents and employees may communicate

with shareholders banks brokerage houses and others by telephone facsimile or in person to request that proxies

be furnished We will bear all expenses incurred in connection with this solicitation

Important Notice Regarding the Availability of Proxy Materials for the Annual Meeting of Shareholders to

Be Held on Thursday February 20 2014

This proxy statement is available at www.proxvdocs.com/xrscorp

The following proxy materials and related information are available for you to review online at

www.proxydocs.com/xrscorp

The Companys Notice of Annual Meeting of Shareholders and Proxy Statement

The Companys Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended September 30 2013
The Form of Proxy

The Letter to Shareholders and

Directions to the Annual Meeting of Shareholders



RECORD DATE AND VOTING

Our Board of Directors the Board has fixed January 2014 as the record date for the determination of

shareholders entitled to receive notice of and to vote at the Annual Meeting As of the close of business on the

record date we had issued and outstanding 10996686 shares of our common stock par value $0.01 per share

2394887 shares of our Series Preferred Stock 1269036 shares of our Series Preferred Stock 1566580

shares of our Series Preferred Stock 1340091 shares of our Series Preferred Stock and 10066663 shares of

our Series Preferred Stock The Series Series Series Series and Series Preferred Stock are referred

to collectively as the Preferred Stock herein Each share of common stock and Preferred Stock is entitled to one

vote on each proposal to be presented at the meeting and one vote in each applicable class vote on such proposal

In addition the Series and Series Preferred Stock vote separately each as class with respect to the election

of two of the seven nominees for election as directors and certain other proposals requiring separate class votes of

our common stock and each series of the Preferred Stock There is no right of cumulative voting

The presence at the Annual Meeting in person or by proxy of the holders of majority of the outstanding

shares entitled to vote constitutes quorum for the transaction of business All shareholders are entitled to one

vote for each share of our common stock or Preferred Stock held as of the record date Similarly the presence at

the Annual Meeting in person or by proxy of majority of the outstanding shares of series of our Preferred

Stock is required before class vote of any such series of our Preferred Stock may be conducted

HOW TO VOTE By signing
and returning the enclosed proxy card you will be giving your

proxy to our Chairman and Chief Executive Officer CEO and our Chief

Financial Officer CFO and authorizing either of them to vote your shares

REQUIRED VOTES Election of Directors Five of the directors are elected by plurality of the

voting power of the outstanding shares of our common stock and Preferred

Stock present and entitled to vote Shareholders do not have the right to

cumulate their votes in the election of directors Holders of majority of

the outstanding shares of Series Preferred Stock voting as separate

class are entitled to nominate and elect up to two additional directors For

the Annual Meeting the holders of Series Preferred Stock have

nominated only one such director who will be elected by plurality of the

voting power of the outstanding shares of Series Preferred Stock Holders

of majority of the outstanding shares of Series Preferred Stock voting

as separate class are entitled to nominate and elect up to one additional

director For the Annual Meeting the holders of Series Preferred Stock

have nominated one director who will be elected by plurality of the

voting power of the outstanding shares of Series Preferred Stock



REQUIRED VOTES continued Other Proposals The affirmative vote of the holders of the greater of

majority of the voting power of the outstanding shares of our common

stock and Preferred Stock present in person or by proxy and entitled to vote

on the proposal at the Annual Meeting and ii majority of the minimum

number of shares entitled to vote that would constitute quorum for the

transaction of business at the Annual Meeting is required for approval of all

other proposals in this proxy statement shareholder who abstains with

respect to any of these proposals will have the effect of casting negative

vote on that proposal shareholder who does not vote in person or by

proxy on proposal including broker non-vote will have no effect on the

outcome of these proposals

HOW YOUR PROXY WILL BE Unless revoked all properly executed proxies will be voted as specified
VOTED Proxies that are signed but that lack any specification will subject to the

following be voted FOR each director nominee and FOR the other

proposal If any other matters properly come before the Annual Meeting or

if any of the persons named to serve as directors should decline or be

unable to serve then the persons named in the proxy will vote in

accordance with their discretion

All common stock and Preferred Stock of the Company held by you will be

voted in each class and series for which such stock is entitled to vote as

directed in your proxy

HOW TO REVOKE YOUR You have the power to revoke your proxy at any time before the convening
PROXY of the Annual Meeting Revocations of proxy will be honored if received by

us at the Company addressed to the attention of Michael Weber CFO
on or before February 19 2014 In addition on the day of the meeting

prior to the convening thereof revocations may be delivered to the tellers

who will be seated at the door of the meeting room Note that any proxy

received by the Company prior to the Annual Meeting will revoke any prior

proxy given by the shareholder

ABSTENTIONS If you abstain from voting as to any matter your shares shall be deemed

present at the meeting for purposes of determining quorum and for

purposes of calculating the vote with
respect to such matter but shall not be

deemed to have been voted in favor of such matter

BROKER NON-VOTES If broker turns in non-vote proxy indicating lack of voting

instruction by the beneficial holder of the shares and lack of discretionary

authority on the part of the broker to vote on particular matter then the

shares covered by such non-vote proxy will be considered present at the

meeting for purposes of determining quorum but will not be considered to

be represented at the meeting for purposes of calculating the vote required

for approval of such matter

DISSENTERS RIGHTS No shareholders are entitled to any dissenters rights with respect to any

matters to be acted upon at the Annual Meeting



PRINCIPAL SHAREHOLDERS AND OWNERSHIP OF MANAGEMENT

The following table sets forth as of January 2014 the record and beneficial ownership of common

stock held by each person who is known by us to be the beneficial owner of more than 5.0 percent of our

common stock ii each of the current directors and nominees iii each Named Executive Officer as defined in

the section entitled Executive Compensation and iv all of our executive officers and directors as group

Securities reported as beneficially owned include securities over which the named person may

exercise voting power or investment power alone or with others and ii the number of shares that the named

person has the right to acquire within sixty days after January 2014 Unless otherwise noted the address for

each shareholder below is our executive offices

Number of Shares

Owned 1X2X3
Percentage

John Coughlan
56 1586816 13.2%

Mark Claeys
5X67

Donald Dixon 5X6X8 8191374
12 13 42.8%

Thomas Hudson 56 95225

Christopher Marshall 56X9IO 11984266
14I51617 52.3%

Michael Paxton
5X6 74999

Karen Van Lith
56 52500

Brendan Reidy

Michael Weber 166351 1.5

All executive officers current directors and director 22234865 68.6%

nominees as group 10 persons

Technology Crossover Management VII Ltd

528 Ramona Street

Palo Alto CA 94301 11969166
4516 52.2%

Trident Capital Management-V LLC

505 Hamilton Avenue Suite 200

Palo Alto CA 94301 8191374
1213 42.8%

John Deere Special Technologies Group Inc
11

300 Grimes Bridge Road

Roswell GA 30075 2144060 19.5%

Indicates ownership of less than 1.0 percent

Includes shares of common stock issuable under options exercisable within 60 days of January 2014 as follows John Coughlan 928260 shares

Donald Dixon 35000 shares Thomas Hudson 46250 shares Christopher Marshall 60000 shares Michael Paxton 45000 shares

Karen Van Lith 35000 shares Michael Weber 122166 shares all executive officers directors and director nominees as group 1338343

shares

Includes restricted stock units scheduled to vest within 60 days of January 32014 as follows John Coughlan 112179 units Michael Weber

30476 shares all executive officers directors and director nominees as group 159322 shares Restricted stock units are convertible into share of

common stock upon vesting and settlement

Includes shares of common stock issuable upon conversion of Series Preferred Stock and exercise of related warrants as follows John Coughlan

5857 shares all executive officers directors and director nominees as group 5857

Any securities not outstanding that are subject to options warrants rights or conversion privileges are deemed to be outstanding for the purpose of

computing the percentage of outstanding common stock owned by such holder but not outstanding for the purpose of computing the percentage of

common stock owned by any other holder

Currently director

Nominee for election as director

Nominee of John Deere Special Technologies Group Inc



Nominee of the holders of the Series Preferred Stock which is exclusively held by the entities affiliated with Trident Capital Management LLC

collectively Trident Capital who are also the sole holders of our Series and Series Preferred Stock and portion of our Series and Series

Preferred Stock As holders of Series Preferred Stock Trident Capital is entitled to vote for up to two directors as class so long as they hold at least

325000 shares of Series Preferred Stock Trident Capital has designated only one nominee for election at the Annual Meeting

Nominee of holders of the Series Preferred Stock Holders of Series Preferred Stock are entitled to vote for one director as class so long as there

remain at least 2500000 shares of Series Preferred Stock outstanding

10 Mr Marshall is Class Director of Technology Crossover Management VII Ltd collectively Icy Cayman Islands exempted company

Technology Crossover Management VII L.P Cayman Islands exempted limited partnership Management VII is the direct general partner of TCV

VII L.P Cayman Islands exempted limited partnership TCV VII and TCV VII L.P Cayman Islands exempted limited partnership TCV VII

TCV is the direct general partner of Management VII the ultimate general partner of TCV VII and TCV VII and general partner of TCV
Member Fund L.P Cayman Islands exempted limited partnership Member Fund Each of TCV Management VII and Mr Marshall disclaim

beneficial ownership of such securities held by TCV VII TCV VII and Member Fund except to the extent of their respective pecuniary interest

therein

11 Trident Capital has entered into an Amended and Restated Voting Agreement with John Deere Special Technologies Group Inc JDSTG whereby

JDSTG among other things agrees to vote for the Series Preferred Stock nominees for director at such time as Trident Capital no longer holds

sufficient number of shares of Preferred Stock to elect two directors as separate class but only for so long as Trident Capital owns at least 800000

shares of Common Stock directly or by ownership of Preferred Stock on an as-converted to Common Stock basis and ii grants Trident Capital

right of first refusal to acquire portion of the shares of common stock held by JDSTG in the event that JDSTG determine to sell or transfer such

shares in certain situations

12 Includes 7077348 shares issuable upon conversion of Series Series Series Series and Series Preferred Stock and 1024026 shares

issuable upon exercise of related warrants The record holders of the shares underlying Preferred Stock and warrants to purchase common stock are set

forth in the following table

Series Series Series Series Series

Preferred Preferred Preferred Preferred Preferred

Stock Stock Stock Warrants Stock Warrants Stock Warrants

Trident Capital Fund-V L.P 2145426 1136849 1403400 421020 907942 272382 746530 223959

Trident Capital Fund-V Affiliates Fund L.P 12470 6607 8156 2447 5277 1583 4338 1301

Trident Capital Fund-V Affiliates Fund L.P 11899 6305 7783 2335 5036 1511 4140 1242

Trident Capital Fund-V Principals Fund L.P 62097 32905 40620 12186 26279 7884 21607 6482

Trident Capital Parallel Fund-V C.V 162995 86370 106621 31986 68980 20694 56716 17014

13 Includes 12500 shares of common stock awards and 25000 options exercisable for shares of common stock collectively the Trident Awards granted

to Mr Marshall in his capacity as director nominated to the Board of Directors by Trident Capital The Trident Awards are held directly by Mr

Marshall solely for the benefit of Trident Capital pursuant to the terms of Trident Capitals operating agreement Mr Marshall disclaims beneficial

ownership of the Trident Awards and of any shares of common stock that may be received upon the conversion or exercise of any Trident Awards

except to the extent of his pecuniary interest therein

14 Does not include 12500 shares of common stock awards and 25000 options exercisable for shares of common stock together the Trident Awards in

each case beneficially owned by Trident Capital The Trident Awards were granted to Mr Marshall in his capacity as director nominated to the Board

of Directors by holders of Series Preferred Stock The Trident Awards are held directly by Mr Marshall solely for the benefit of Trident Capital

pursuant to the terms of Trident Capitals operating agreement Mr Marshall disclaims beneficial ownership of the Trident Awards and of any shares of

common stock that may be received upon the exercise thereof In addition Mr Marshall is former member of Trident Capital and as such has

continuing indirect interest in the Trident Securities held by Trident Capital Mr Marshall disclaims beneficial ownership of the Trident Securities and

of any shares of common stock that may be received upon the conversion or exercise of any Trident Securities except to the extent of his pecuniary

interest therein

IS Includes 9166666 shares issuable upon conversion of Series Preferred Stock and 2750000 shares issuable upon exercise of related warrants The

record holders of the shares of Series Preferred Stock and warrants to purchase common stock are set forth in the following table

Preferred Stock Warrants

TCV VII L.P 5996276 1798883

TCV VII L.P 3114008 934202

TCV Member Fund L.P 56382 16915

16 Includes 17500 shares of common stock awards and 35000 options exercisable for shares of common stock collectively the TCV Awards in each

case beneficially owned by TCV The TCV Awards were granted to Mr Marshall in his capacity as director nominated to the Board of Directors by

holders of the Series Preferred Stock and the TCV Awards are held directly by Mr Marshall
solely for the benefit of TCV pursuant to the terms of

TCVs operating agreement

17 Includes 15100 shares of common stock owned individually by Mr Marshall



PROPOSAL

ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

All of the nominees named below are current directors of the Company

Name Age Position

John Coughlan 55 Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer

Mark Claeys 51 Director

Donald Dixon 66 Director

Thomas Hudson 67 Lead Director

Christopher Marshall 45 Director

Michael Paxton 67 Director

Karen Van Lith 54 Director

To be voted on by holders of Series Preferred Stock only

To be voted on by holders of Series Preferred Stock only

Four of the seven nominees were selected by the Governance and Nominating Committee of the Board of

Directors These nominees are John Coughian Thomas Hudson Michael Paxton and Karen Van Lith

Under Mr Coughlans employment agreement the Company has agreed to include Mr Coughlan as nominee for

director at each Annual Meeting of Shareholders

John Deere Special Technologies Group Inc JDSTG has the right to nominate three directors Trident

Capital has the right to nominate two directors one of whom must be independent of Trident Capital and

approved by the Governance and Nominating Committee of the Board of Directors if the total number of directors

is seven or less and the holders of the Series Preferred Stock have the right to nominate one director These

rights were negotiated in connection with their respective investments in the Company Mark Claeys is

nominee of JDSTG Donald Dixon is nominee of the holders of the Series Preferred Stock which is

exclusively held by Trident Capital and Christopher Marshall is nominee of the holders of the Series

Preferred Stock Each of JDSTG and Trident Capital has designated just one nominee for election at the Annual

Meeting

Our Board of Directors currently consists of seven directors Our Board of Directors has determined that

six of our current seven directors are independent directors as defined by the NASDAQ Stock Market Rules The

independent directors are Messrs Claeys Dixon Hudson Marshall and Paxton and Ms Van Lith

Members of our Board of Directors are elected at the Companys annual meetings unless otherwise

determined by the Board of Directors or the shareholders Our directors serve one-year term expiring upon the

election of their successors at the next annual meeting In the event any nominee should be unavailable to stand

for election at the time of an annual meeting the proxies may be voted for substitute nominee selected by the

Board of Directors



Director Nominees

John Coughian Mr Coughlans background information is disclosed in the section entitled Executive

Compensation Mr Coughlan has significant prior experience managing software companies and brings broad

expertise in the development marketing and selling of software solutions and services He also provides the

Company with leadership for employee motivation and development

Mark Claeys Director since May 2012 Mr Claeys is the Director of Finance for Deere and

Companys Intelligent Solutions Group and Enterprise Information Technology function Mr Claeys joined Deere

Company in 1988 as an Internal Auditor and completed number of assignments at various Deere facilities in

the finance arena including three
years as Manager in Corporate Business Development Prior to joining Deere

Company Mr Claeys worked as an auditor at the public accounting firm of Deloitte Touche Mr Claeys

holds B.A in Accounting from St Ambrose University and is licensed CPA Currently Mr Claeys serves as

board member for the Deere Employees Credit Union

Mr Claeys brings to the Board strong technology financial and business background Mr Claeys has

extensive experience in the technology industry

DonaldR Dixon Director since February 2010 Mr Dixon is co-founder of Trident Capital and has

been Managing Director since 1993 From 1988 to 1993 Mr Dixon was Co-President of Partech International

private equity fund manager associated with Banque Paribas From 1983 to 1988 Mr Dixon was Managing
Director of Alex Brown Sons Earlier in his career Mr Dixon was Vice President of Morgan Stanley Co
and Senior Account Officer at Citibank N.A

Mr Dixon serves as director of AccountNow Advanced Payment Solutions Amprius eGistics Inc

Infotrieve Neohapsis Odyssey Logistics PAL Qualys RoyaltyShare Solexant and Tiandi Energy He is also on

the investment committee of Mustang Ventures an affiliated China fund of Trident Capital Fund VI Mr Dixons

past directorships include Affiliated Computer Services ACS Anasazi Inc acquired by Pegasus Solutions Inc
BankAmerica Merchant Services Inc BPI BlueStar Solutions acquired by ACS Bytemobile Inc acquired

by Citrix Clams Systems Inc acquired by OPNET Technologies CSG Systems International Inc CSGS
Epicor Software Corporation EPIC Epoch Partners acquired by Goldman Sachs Evolving Systems Inc

EVOL InfoUSA Inc IUSA Merchant e-Solutions acquired by Cielo Pegasus Systems Inc PEGS Signio

acquired by Verisign Sygate Technologies acquired by Symantec and Unison Software Inc acquired by

IBM

Mr Dixon earned his B.S.E in Mechanical and Aerospace Engineering from Princeton University and his

M.B.A from Stanford Graduate School of Business Mr Dixon is Co-Chairman of the Advisory Committee of the

Princeton University School of Engineering and Applied Sciences He also serves on the Advisory Board of the

Harvard Kennedy School Center for Public Leadership

Mr Dixon brings to the Board business leadership corporate strategy and operating expertise and

strong background in the software industry in particular he has extensive experience in growing software

businesses launching new products brand building innovation marketing customers and sales channels Mr
Dixon also lends an investor perspective based on his leadership role as managing director of private equity

group

Thomas Hudson Director since October 2007 Since August 2011 Mr Hudson has been Chief

Executive Officer and member of the board of directors of Municipal Parking Services provider of parking

solutions to cities and municipalities From May 2008 until August 2010 Mr Hudson was Chairman and Chief



Executive Officer of Muve Inc Mayo Clinic IP company that provides tools software SaaS technology and

coaching services to help individuals lose weight Before joining Muve Inc Mr Hudson was the Chief Executive

Officer of Global Capacity start-up company that provides integrated communications logistics software

solutions worldwide Prior to joining Global Capacity in 2005 Mr Hudson has served as Chairman and Chief

Executive Officer of CNT provider of wide area storage networks since 1996 as director during the same

period and as chairman of the board of directors since 1999 From 1993 to 1996 Mr Hudson served as Senior

Vice President of McGraw Hill Companies leading information services provider serving also as General

Manager of its F.W Dodge Division and as Senior Vice President Corporate Development From 1968 to 1993

Mr Hudson served as Vice President and General Manager in number of management positions at IBM

Corporation Mr Hudson is graduate of the University of Notre Dame with bachelors degree in Electrical

Engineering and New York University with an M.B.A in Finance Mr Hudson attended the Harvard Advanced

Management Program in 1990 Mr Hudson also currently serves on the board of ISNS He previously served on

the board of directors of CGSY CNT McData Corp Lawson Software Ciprico Plato Software Incentra

Solutions all publicly traded companies and three private companies Wyndstrom MQSoftware and AltoSoft

Corporation

Mr Hudson brings to the Board business leadership corporate strategy operating expertise and strong

background in software technologies In particular he has extensive experience in launching new technologies

brand building and marketing

Christopher Marshall Director since December 2003 Mr Marshall joined Technology Crossover

Ventures in May 2008 as General Partner and has been in the venture capital industry since 1995 His primary

investment focus is the payments Internet and mobile industries Prior to joining TCV Mr Marshall spent 12

years
at Trident Capital focused on the payments Internet and mobile markets Earlier in his career Mr Marshall

worked for Banque Paribas and the Chase Manhattan Bank Mr Marshall earned his B.A from Hamilton College

and his M.B.A from the Kellogg Graduate School of Management at Northwestern University Mr Marshall

also serves on the board of directors of HomeAway Minted and has been involved in the firms investments in

Facebook Electronic Arts Green Dot Netflix and Groupon

Mr Marshall brings to the Board business leadership corporate strategy and operating expertise and

strong background in the software industry In particular he has extensive experience in growing software

businesses launching new products brand building innovation marketing customers and sales channels Mr

Marshall also lends an investor perspective based on his leadership role as managing director of private equity

group

Michael Paxton Director since May 2008 Mr Paxton is currently Chief Executive Officer of MJP

Growth Advisors privately held consulting firm Mr Paxton is also chairman of the board of directors of

Transport Corporation of America Inc and previously served as that companys CEO and President from 2001 to

2007 Transport America is national truckload carrier and logistics service company based in Eagan Minnesota

From 2009 until May 2012 Mr Paxton was President and Chief Executive Officer of Chamilia Inc leading

designer and manufacturer of high quality personalized jewelry From 1998 to 2001 he was the President and

CEO of the Sunbeam Health and Safety Company subsidiary of Sunbeam Beginning in 1996 he served as

Chairman President and CEO of 0-Cedar Holdings Inc the leading brand of consumer household cleaning

tools in the United States The majority of Mr Paxtons career was spent in senior management positions
with

Pillsbury and Grand Metropolitan PLC Diageo the parent company In 1992 he was appointed as President and

CEO of the Haagen-Dazs Company Prior to Pillsbury Mr Paxton held progressive sales and marketing positions

with Safeco Insurance Company The Drackett Products Company and Miles Laboratories He also currently

serves on the board of directors of Azteca Foods Inc Foster Farms Inc and Gemini Inc



Mr Paxton brings to the Board business leadership corporate strategy and operating expertise and

strong background in consumer-packaged goods Mr Paxton has extensive experience in the transportation

industry as well as launching new products brand building innovation and marketing

Karen Van Lit/i Director since May 2010 Ms Van Lith currently serves as consultant From June

2011 until June 2012 she was Chief Executive Officer and director of Make Music Inc Prior to joining Make

Music Ms Van Lith was consultant serving in the chief executive officer and chief restructuring officer roles at

several companies requiring transformative leadership From 1999 until October 2007 she was President and

CEO of Gelco Information Network software company providing expense management solutions and trade

promotion management services She served in various capacities with Ceridian Corporation and Deluxe

Corporation prior to joining Gelco Information Network Ms Van Lith currently serves on the board of Associated

Banc-Corp

Ms Van Lith provides the Board with overall business and financial experience in various industries Ms
Van Lith has extensive knowledge and experience in the software industry including business to business and

business to consumer software applications and services on premises web and mobile software platforms and

converting legacy software to web and mobile platforms

Our Board of Directors recommends vote FOR Proposal

To elect each director nominee



INFORMATION REGARDING THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Board Leadership Structure

Our Companys Board of Directors does not have current requirement that the roles of Chief Executive

Officer and Chairman of the Board the Chairman be either combined or separated because the Board believes it

is in the best interests of our Company to make this determination based on the position and direction of our

Company and the constitution of the Board and management team The Board of Directors periodically evaluates

whether the roles of Chief Executive Officer and Chairman of the Board should be combined or separated The

Board of Directors has determined that having our Companys Chief Executive Officer serve as Chairman is in the

best interest of our shareholders at this time The Chief Executive Officer is responsible for the day-to-day

management of our Company and the development and implementation of our Companys strategy and has access

to the people information and resources necessary to facilitate Board function The Board of Directors believes

that combining the roles of Chief Executive Officer and Chairman contributes to an efficient and effective Board

Our non-management directors facilitate the Boards independence by meeting frequently as group and

fostering climate of transparent
communication The Board of Directors elected Thomas Hudson to be the

Lead Director for purposes of leading those meetings where Mr Coughlan is not present The high level of

contact between our directors and our Chairman between Board meetings and the specificity contained in the

Boards delegation of authority parameters also serve to foster effective Board leadership

Oversight of Risk Management

Management is responsible for day-to-day risk assessment and mitigation activities and our Companys

Board of Directors is responsible for risk oversight focusing on our Companys overall risk management strategy

our Companys degree of tolerance for risk and the steps management is taking to manage our Companys risks

While the Board as whole maintains the ultimate oversight responsibility
for risk management the committees

of the Board can be assigned responsibility
for risk management oversight of specific areas

The Audit Committee reviews the Companys portfolio of risk discusses with management significant

financial risks in conjunction with enterprise risk exposures the Companys policies with respect to risk assessment

and risk management and the actions management has taken to limit monitor or control financial and enterprise risk

exposure

The Compensation Committee oversees risk management as it relates to our compensation plans policies

and practices relative to the design of our executive compensation programs and review of our incentive compensation

programs for other employees The Committee has reviewed with management whether our compensation programs

may create incentives for our employees to take excessive or inappropriate risks which could have material adverse

effect on the Company

The Governance and Nominating Committee has adopted framework for the oversight of enterprise risk

The Committee works with management to identify categorize and evaluate these risks and also to develop risk

mitigation and response strategies

10



Director Compensation

For fiscal 2013 the non-employee directors received the following total compensation

Fees Earned or Stock Option
Name Paid in Cash Awards Awards 12

Total

Mark Claeys

Donald Dixon 9100 9600 18700

Thomas Hudson 15000 9100 9600 33700

Christopher Marshall 9100 9600 18700

Michael Paxton 15000 9100 9600 33700

Karen Van Lith 15000 9100 9600 33700

Valuation of stock and option awards is based on the aggregate grant date fair value See Note Stock-Based Compensation to the Companys audited

consolidated financial statements included in the Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended September 30 2013 for description of the

valuation assumptions used

Total shares subject to options outstanding at September 30 2013 Donald Dixon 35000 shares Thomas Hudson 46250 shares Christopher

Marshall 60000 shares Michael Paxton 45000 shares and Karen Van Lith 35000 shares

Prior to the 2010 Annual Meeting of Shareholders all options and stock awards were granted to Mr Marshall in his capacity as director nominated to

the Board of Directors by Trident Capital Such options and restricted stock awards are held directly by Mr Marshall solely for the benefit of Trident

Capital pursuant to the terms of Trident Capitals operating agreement Mr Marshall disclaims beneficial ownership of all such options and restricted

stock awards and of any shares of common stock that may be issuable upon the exercise thereof

Non-employee directors except Mr Claeys the JDSTG director Mr Dixon the Series Preferred Stock

director and Mr Marshall the Series Preferred Stock director receive $15000 annually to serve on the Board

of Directors This amount may be prorated based on actual time served on the Board of Directors during the fiscal

year

Each non-employee director except Mr Claeys the JDSTG director receives upon re-election at each

Annual Meeting 10000-share stock option grant and 5000-share stock award both pursuant to the Companys
2007 Long-Term Incentive and Stock Option Plan This amount may be prorated based on actual time served on

the Board of Directors during the fiscal year The stock options are exercisable for ten years commencing at the

date of grant at price equal to the fair market value of the common stock on the date of grant The stock award
and stock options are fully vested at the time of award At its discretion the Company has the ability to offer

cash gross-up to offset the estimated tax liability incurred at the time of the stock award

Each director is reimbursed by the Company for his or her actual out-of-pocket expenses for telephone

travel and miscellaneous items incurred on behalf of the Company

Board Meetings and Committees

During the fiscal year ended September 30 2013 the Board of Directors met eight times The Audit

Committee and the Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors generally meet immediately prior to and
or after quarterly meetings of the Board of Directors No incumbent director attended fewer than 75 percent of the

aggregate of the meetings of the Board of Directors and of the Board committees on which they served The
Board of Directors does not have policy regarding attendance at the Annual Meeting Three directors attended

our Annual Meeting of Shareholders held on March 2013
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The Board of Directors has established an Audit Committee Compensation Committee and Governance

and Nominating Committee During the fiscal year ended September 30 2013 each committee was composed of

independent directors as defined by the NASDAQ Stock Market Rules as follows

Governance and Nominating

Audit Committee Compensation Committee Committee

Michael Paxton Chairman Christopher Marshall Chairman Thomas Hudson Chairman

Mark Claeys Thomas Hudson Michael Paxton

Donald Dixon

Karen Van Lith

Audit Committee

The purpose of the Audit Committee includes annually selecting an independent registered public

accounting firm referred to herein as independent accountants as auditors of the books records and accounts of

the Company ii reviewing the scope of audits made by the independent accountants and iii receiving and

reviewing the audit reports submitted by the independent accountants and taking such action in respect of such

reports as the Audit Committee may deem appropriate to assure that the interests of the Company are adequately

protected Refer to the section entitled Audit Committee Report During the year ended September 30 2013 the

Audit Committee met four times The Company has established an Audit Committee Charter that sets forth the

Audit Committees principal accountabilities This Charter is available on our website www.xrscorp.com

The Board of Directors has determined that all Audit Committee members are financially literate as

defined by the NASDAQ Stock Market Rules and all members qualify as audit committee financial experts as

defined by the Securities and Exchange Commission

Compensation Committee

The purpose of the Compensation Committee is to review and approve compensation plans and

arrangements for the Companys executive officers and to periodically
review and approve managements overall

compensation plans for the Companys employees The Committee reviews and approves incentive plan goals
of

executive officers evaluates the performances of the Chief Executive Officer reviews and approves the Chief

Executive Officers evaluation of other executive officers and approves all elements of executive officer

compensation including salaries annual cash incentives and equity
awards During the year ended September 30

2013 the Compensation Committee met four times The Company has established Compensation Committee

Charter that sets forth the Compensation Committees principal accountabilities This Charter is available on our

website www.xrscorp.com

Governance and Nominating Committee

The purpose of the Governance and Nominating Committee is to oversee corporate governance

matters ii approve director-nominees to be considered for election by shareholders and for election by the Board

of Directors to fill any vacancy or newly created directorship and iiimake recommendations to the Board

concerning the appropriate size and composition of the Board of Directors and each Board committee and the

establishment of new Board committees The Governance and Nominating Committee met one time regarding

fiscal 2013 matters The Company has established Governance and Nominating Committee Charter that sets

forth the Governance and Nominating Committees principal
accountabilities This Charter is available on our

website www.xrscorp.com
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Nomination of Director Candidates

Nominees for election to the Board of Directors of the Company are selected by the Governance and

Nominating Committee subject to the rights of JDSTG and holders of the Series and Series Preferred Stock

refer to Notes and of the table in the Principal Shareholders and Ownership of Management section

above To date all director nominees other than nominees of JDSTG and holders of the Series and Series

Preferred Stock have been identified by current directors or management We do not have formal policy

regarding the consideration of diversity in identifying director nominees The Governance and Nominating

Committee does consider among other things director nominees potential contribution to the diversity of

background and experience of our Board of Directors including with respect to age gender international

background race and specialized experience We have not engaged third party for fee or otherwise to

identify candidates and other than nominees of JDSTG and holders of the Series and Series Preferred Stock
we have not received proposed candidate from source outside of the Company However the Governance and

Nominating Committee would consider any candidate proposed in good faith by shareholder To do so
shareholder should send the candidates name credentials contact information and his or her consent to be

considered as candidate to our Chairman and Chief Executive Officer John Coughlan The proposing

shareholder should also include his or her contact information and statement of his or her share ownership how
many shares owned and for how long The Governance and Nominating Committee evaluates candidates based

on financial literacy knowledge of the Companys industry or other background relevant to the Companys needs
status as stakeholder in the Company independence for purposes of compliance with the rules of the SEC and

NASDAQ and willingness ability and availability for service

Shareholder Communication with the Board

Any matter intended for the Board or for any individual member or members of the Board should be

directed to our Chief Executive Officer or Chief Financial Officer with request to forward the same to the

intended recipient In the alternative shareholders can direct correspondence to the Board to the attention of our

Board Chairman John Coughlan or to the attention of the Chairman of our Audit Committee Michael

Paxton in care of the Company at the Company address All such communications will be forwarded unopened
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PROPOSAL

RATIFICATION OF APPOINTMENT OF OUR INDEPENDENT

REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

Based on the recommendation of the Audit Committee the Board of Directors has selected Grant

Thornton LLP Grant Thornton as our independent registered public accounting firm for the fiscal year that

began October 2013 and has further directed that management submit the selection of Grant Thornton for

ratification by shareholders at the Annual Meeting Grant Thornton has audited our consolidated financial

statements since 1999 representative of Grant Thornton is expected to be present at the Annual Meeting The

representative will have an opportunity to make statement if he or she so desires and will be available to respond

to appropriate questions

None of the provisions of our Bylaws other governing documents or applicable law require shareholder

ratification of the selection of Grant Thornton as our independent registered public accounting firm However the

Board is submitting the selection of Grant Thornton to the shareholders for ratification as matter of good

corporate practice If the shareholders fail to ratify the selection the Board will reconsider whether or not to retain

that firm Even if the selection is ratified the Board in its discretion may direct the appointment of different

independent registered public accounting firm at any time during the year if the Board determines that such

change would be in the best interests of the Company and its shareholders

Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Audit Committee has selected Grant Thornton as our independent registered public accounting firm

referred to herein as independent accountants for the fiscal year ending September 30 2014 Representatives of

Grant Thornton are expected to be present at our 2014 Annual Meeting of Shareholders to be held on February 20

2014 They will have the opportunity to make statement if they desire to do so and are expected to be available

to respond to appropriate questions

Audit Fees

Aggregate fees billed by Grant Thornton in connection with the audit of our consolidated financial

statements for the years
ended September 30 2013 and 2012 included in our report on Form 10-K and for review

of our quarterly consolidated financial statements included in our reports on Form 10-Q during each year totaled

$189000 and $198000 respectively
No leased personnel were utilized by Grant Thornton in connection with

any audit services provided to us

Audit Related Fees

Aggregate fees billed by Grant Thornton for audit related services during each of the fiscal years
ended

September 30 2013 and 2012 totaled $10000 Fees in fiscal 2013 and 2012 related to the audit of the Companys

401k plan

Tax Fees

There were no fees billed by Grant Thornton for tax compliance advisory and/or planning services during

the fiscal years ended September 30 2013 and 2012
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All Other Fees

Aggregate fees billed by Grant Thornton for other products and services during each of the fiscal
years

ended September 30 2013 and 2012 totaled $3000 Fees in fiscal 2013 and 2012 related to the use of an

electronic research tool

Auditor Fees Pre-approval Policy

The Audit Committee has adopted formal policy concerning approval of audit and non-audit services to

be provided by the independent accountants to the Company The policy requires that all services to be provided

by Grant Thornton the Companys independent accountant including audit services and permitted audit-related

and non-audit services in excess of $10000 must be pre-approved by the Committee The Committee approved

all audit and non-audit services provided by Grant Thornton during fiscal 2013

Our Board of Directors recommends vote FOR Proposal

To ratify the appointment of our independent registered public accounting firm
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EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

Executive Officers

The following table sets forth information concerning our executive officers

Name Age Position

John Coughian 55 Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer

Brendan Reidy 60 President Chief Operating Officer and Chief Technology

Officer

Michael Weber 49 Chief Financial Officer and Principal Financial and

Accounting Officer

James DeSocio 58 Executive Vice President of Field Operations

John Coughlan Mr Coughlan has served as Chairman and Chief Executive Officer since joining XRS

in October 2006 Prior to joining XRS he was involved in business consulting practice Through June 2005 he

served as president and CEO of Lawson Software Minnesotas largest software company Mr Coughlan joined

Lawson Software in 1987 and became CEO in February 2001 prior to the Lawsons initial public offering in

December 20W In addition to his responsibilities at XRS Mr Coughian is an active regional business advocate

and serves on the board of directors for the local organization Minnesota Adult and Teen Challenge

Brendan Reidy Mr Reidy joined XRS in March 2013 as President and Chief Operating Officer and

added Chief Technology Officer to his role in October 2013 Mr Reidy is the former chairman and CEO of Clarus

Systems in Redwood City CA He has held executive-level positions at Qwest Communications/US West Litton

Integrated Automation and Software Alliance Corp In addition he has served as director of several technology

companies including eGistics Arantech Evolving Systems and Greenbrier Russel In addition he was

venture partner at Trident Capital Mr Reidy received an A.B in Political Science from Stanford University and

an MBA from the Wharton School at the University of Pennsylvania

Michael Weber Mr Weber was appointed our Chief Financial Officer in October 2012 Mr Weber

joined the Company as Director of Finance and Controller in April 2007 and was appointed Vice President of

Finance in March 2011 Since July 2012 he has served as our Principal Financial and Principal Accounting

Officer Mr Weber brought significant financial and compliance expertise to the Company having served as the

director of compliance and external reporting
and controller at CNS Inc In addition Mr Weber served as vice

president
and chief financial officer for the consumer brands division of Schwans Sales Enterprises Inc Mr

Weber obtained B.S in Accounting and Business from St Johns University and is licensed CPA

James DeSocio Mr DeSocio joined XRS in January 2013 as Executive Vice President Field

Operations Mr DeSocio most recently held the position of Executive Vice President of Sales and Business

Development at Antenna Software Inc where from December 2007 until June 2012 he was responsible for

international sales and business development for this cloud-based mobility software company From June 2004

until July 2007 Mr DeSocio was Chief Executive Officer for Riskclick Inc provider of cloud-based

underwriting solutions for the property and casualty insurance market From 1991 until June 2004 he held several

sales leadership positions with Lawson Software Inc an enterprise software provider most recently serving as

Lawsons Executive Vice President for the retail industry market and for Lawsons global field operations
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Summary Compensation Table

The following table sets forth information about all compensation cash and non-cash awarded to earned

by or paid to our Chief Executive Officer and our two most highly compensated other executive officers who

were serving as executive officers at the end of fiscal 2013 collectively our Named Executive Officers for the

fiscal years ended September 30 2013 and 2012

Non-equity All Other

Stock Option Incentive Plan Compensation
Name and Principal Position Year Salarys Awards Awards Compensation Total

John Coughlan 2013 300000 27190 35226 294000 5272 661688

Chairman and CEO 2012 300000 49507 55447 75000 5272 485226

Brendan Reidy 2013 161539 136500 225000 171500 694539

President Chief Operating

Officer and Chief Technology

Officer

Michael weber5 2013 218273 30543 50222 107800 406838

Chief Financial Officer and

Principal Financial and

Accounting Officer

Stock awards are composed of restricted stock units which vest over 3-year period and whose aggregate grant date fair value is determined by

multiplying the number of restricted stock units granted by the closing sale price of share of the Companys common stock on the NASDAQ stock

market on the date of grant

The aggregate grant date fair value of option awards is calculated by using Black-Scholes option pricing model See Note Stock-Based

Compensation to the Companys audited consolidated financial statements included in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended

September 30 2013 for description of the valuation assumptions used

Refer to the section entitled Annual Performance-Based Variable Compensation below for discussion regarding this incentive compensation

Mr Reidy joined XRS Corporation in March 2013 as President and Chief Operating Officer

Mr Weber first became Named Executive Officer of XRS Corporation in fiscal 2013

Elements of Direct Compensationfor Named Executive Officers

The Company uses combination of cash salary annual performance-based variable compensation

currently paid in the form of cash and
grants of long-term incentives in the form of stock options and restricted

stock units as the three elements of total direct compensation for Named Executive Officers The proportion of

total compensation that is dependent on the Companys business performance or is at risk varies by position

and increases with higher levels of responsibility The methods by which the amounts of fiscal 2013 compensation
for Named Executive Officers were established are described in the following sections for each element of direct

compensation

Salary

The salaries reported in the Summary Compensation Table reflect actual cash paid for the 2013 fiscal

year The salary level for each Named Executive Officer was established by the Compensation Committee

considering both the survey and comparable company data for equivalent positions
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Annual Performance-Based Variable Compensation

Selection of Performance Metrics

For fiscal 2013 the Compensation Committee designed short-term incentive program STIP driven by

three performance measures that it determined were appropriate to drive desired business behavior for XRS

Corporation and would correlate positively
with total shareholder return These measures involved the Companys

targeted goals with respect to $9.2 million in new annualized software contract value ii $46.0 million in

software revenue and iii $5.3 million in non-GAAP earnings

Establishment of Formula-Based STIP Goals and Payout Approach

The Compensation Committee designed the formula-based STIP compensation plan to provide material

payouts if the performance goals were exceeded and no payouts if the threshold levels were not achieved The

factors considered by the Compensation Committee when determining the performance goals included

managements internal operating plan and expected industry performance

Payout Based on Performance Against Goals

For fiscal 2013 the Companys overall performance of 98.2 percent of target as evaluated by the

Compensation Committee led to the determination that STIP performance metrics were achieved and therefore

payouts were made under the STIP compensation plan

Long-Term Incentive Awards

In addition to the above each of the Companys executive officers is eligible to receive equity

compensation in the form of stock options and restricted stock units pursuant to the Companys 2007 Long-Term

Incentive and Stock Option Plan It is believed that through this equity-based plan the economic interests of the

executives are more closely aligned to those of the shareholders It is also believed that this approach will allow

the Company to use equity as an incentive in balanced manner that supports the recruitment and retention of top

talent

The stock option awards granted to the Named Executive Officers in fiscal 2013 vest in equal installments

on the first second and third anniversaries of the date of grant if the recipient is an employee on the vesting date

and expire on the earlier of three months after termination of employment lengthened to 12 months after

termination due to death or disability or ii ten years after the date of grant Those stock options are exercisable

in full immediately before sale of the Company or majority of the Companys common stock unless the

successor provides substitute stock options
after that sale

The restricted stock unit RSU awards granted to the Named Executive Officers in fiscal 2013 vest in

equal installments on the first second and third anniversaries of the date of grant if the recipient is an employee

on the vesting date Once vested RSUs entitle the Named Executive Officers to receive shares of the Companys

common stock upon settlement Settlement occurs after the earliest of the following to occur five years
from

the date of issuance termination of employment or iii change in control of the Company defined as

change in ownership under Treasury Regulation .409A-3i5 which generally includes sale of substantially

all of the Companys assets or sale of majority of the Companys capital stock The portion of the RSU awards

subject to the current vesting period will vest upon the death of recipient or change in control of the Company
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Benefit Plans Available to Named Executive Officers

The Companys practice is to make available to Named Executive Officers essentially the same benefit

plans generally available to other employees in the Company review of comparable company benefits offerings

determined that the Company provides competitive benefit plans

Employment Agreements

The Company executed an employment agreement with John Coughlan on October 2006 This

agreement provides for minimumbase salary and an annual incentive bonus based on revenue profitability and

other objectives The agreement is for period of two years and is automatically renewed for successive two-year

periods unless terminated by ninety-day notice in advance of renewal The agreement automatically renewed on
October 2012 The agreement also contains provisions that prohibit the Company from materially altering

position duties benefit plans or incentive plans The agreement also contains provisions providing for certain

benefits upon termination of employment or change in control of the Company as described in the section

entitled Termination of Employment and Change in Control Arrangements

19



Outstanding Equity Awards as of September 30 2013

The following table sets forth the number of shares representing both exercisable and unexercisable stock

options and vested and unvested stock awards held by each of the Named Executive Officers as of September 30

2013 as follows

Option Awards Stock Awards

Number of Securities Underlying
Number of Units Market Value of

Unexercised Options Option Option of Stock That Units of Stock

Exercise Price Expiration Have Not Vested That Have Not

Name Exercisable Unexercisable Date Vested

John Coughlan 300000
5.40 10/1/2016

46666
2.99 2/6/2018

150000
2.00 2/4/2019

166423
2.89 11/3/2019

11377 56885 2.85 2/2/2021

33604 67209
53

1.33 2/8/2022

81921 0.85 2/6/2023

16234
55

45780

24816 69981

31988 90206

Brendan Reidy 225000 1.82 3/11/2023

75000
595

211500

Michael Weber 15000
4.33 5/14/2017

6667 2.99 2/6/2018

15000
2/4/2019

9150
2.89 11/3/2019

11313 5657
52 2.85 2/2/2021

6348 12695
53

1.33 2/8/2022

50

100000 0.69 11/7/2022

40050 0.85 2/6/2023

1615 4554

4688
565

13220

25000 70500

15639
57 44.102

Consists of restricted stock unit awards which vest over three-year period

Remaining options will vest on February 2014

Remaining options will vest in equal increments on February 82014 and 2015

Options will vest in equal increments on February 620142015 and 2016

Remaining restricted stock units will vest on February 2014

Remaining restricted stock units will vest in equal increments on February 2014 and 2015

Restricted stock units will vest in equal increments on February 620142015 and 2016

Options will vest in equal increments on March 1120142015 and 2016

Restricted stock units will vest in equal increments on March II 2014 2015 and 2016

10 Options will vest in equal increments on November 720132014 and 2015

11 Restricted stock units will vest in equal increments on November 2013 2014 and 2015

12 Market value calculated by multiplying the number of unvested restricted stock units by the closing sale price of share of the Companys common

stock on the NASDAQ stock market on September 30 2013 $2.82 per share
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Termination of Employment and Change-in-Control Arrangements

Under Mr Coughlans employment agreement if the Company terminates his employment without cause

or if he terminates his employment for good reason and neither termination occurs within six months before or

two years after change of control of the Company Mr Coughlan is entitled to receive one year of salary

continuation an annual incentive bonus in the amount of 50 percent of his annual base salary partial acceleration

of vesting of all outstanding equity awards accelerating by the longer of one year or by the remainder of the then

current two-year term of his employment agreement and certain other benefits Under that same agreement if

the Company terminates his employment without cause or if he terminates his employment for good reason and

either of such terminations occurs within six months before or two years after change of control of the

Company Mr Coughian is entitled to receive one year of salary continuation an annual incentive bonus in the

amount of 100 percent of his annual base salary 100 percent acceleration of vesting of all outstanding equity
awards and certain other benefits The agreement restricts Mr Coughlan from competing with the Company
during and for period of one year beyond employment with the Company and restricts Mr Coughian from

disclosing certain confidential information Under Mr Coughlans employment agreement cause generally

means conviction of felony material dishonesty gross negligence or willful misconduct good reason
generally means diminution of position duties salary equity awards or overall benefits and change of

control generally means the sale or transfer of 55 percent or more of the Companys outstanding capital stock
change in the majority of members of the Board of Directors or sale of all or substantially all of the assets of the

Company

The Company has executed severance agreements with Messrs Reidy and Weber which entitle each of

them to one year of salary continuation in addition to certain other benefits in the event that the Company
terminates his employment without cause whether or not change of control of the Company has occurred or

ii he terminates employment for good reason within six months after change of control Under those

agreements cause generally means conviction of felony or gross misdemeanor fraud misappropriation or

breach of material obligations to the Company change of control generally means the sale or transfer of 55

percent or more of the Companys outstanding capital stock change in the majority of members of the Board of

Directors or sale of all or substantially all of the assets of the Company and good reason generally means an

assignment inconsistent with his position duties responsibilities and status

The Companys Named Executive Officers are eligible to participate in the Companys 401k Profit

Sharing Plan on the same basis as all other full-time employees

Section 16a Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance

Section 16a of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 requires the Companys executive officers and

directors and persons who beneficially own more than 10 percent of the Companys common stock to file initial

reports of ownership and reports of changes in ownership with the SEC Executive officers directors and greater
than 10 percent beneficial owners are required by the SEC to furnish the Company with copies of all Section 16

forms they file

Based solely on review of the reports furnished to the Company or written
representations from

reporting

persons that all reportable transaction were reported the Companybelieves that during the fiscal year ended September
302013 the Companys officers directors and greater than 10 percent beneficial owners timely filed all reports they
were required to file under Section 16a
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Indemnification of Directors and Officers

Under Section 302A.52 Minnesota Statutes the Company is required to indemnify its directors

officers employees and agents against liability under certain circumstances including liability under the

Securities Act of 1933 as amended Article of the Companys Bylaws contain substantially
similar provisions

and in addition specifically
authorize adoption of agreements for indemnification to the extent permitted by

statute and purchase of insurance to meet the Companys indemnification obligation The general effect of such

provisions
is to relieve the directors and officers of the Company from personal liability that may be imposed for

certain acts performed in their capacity as directors or officers of the Company except where such persons have

not acted in good faith In addition the Company has entered into indemnification agreements with Trident

Capital and its representatives who serve as directors on our Board of Directors which may supplement the

indemnification provisions
available to them under Minnesota law The Company has also entered into similar

indemnification agreements with the TCV and its representatives
who serve as directors on our Board of

Directors

As permitted under Minnesota Statutes the Articles of Incorporation of the Company provide that

directors shall have no personal liability to the Company or to its shareholders for monetary damages arising from

breach of the directors duty of care in the affairs of the Company Minnesota Statutes do not permit elimination of

liability for breach of directors duty of loyalty to the Company or with respect to certain enumerated matters

including payment of illegal dividends acts not in good faith and acts resulting in improper personal benefit to the

director

Certain Relationships and Related Person Transactions

As of January 2014 JDSTG was the record holder of 2144060 shares of the Companys common

stock Under the terms of Stock Purchase Agreement between the Company and JDSTG as amended JDSTG

has certain rights with respect to corporate actions including the right to nominate and replace up to three

members of our Board of Directors

As of January 2014 TCV held substantial portion
of our outstanding shares of Series Preferred

Stock representing
the right to vote 9166666 shares of our common stock on an as-converted basis Under the

terms of our Certificate of Designation of Preferences of Series Preferred Stock TCV as the majority holder of

our outstanding Series Preferred Stock has the right to nominate replace
and vote as separate class with

respect to member of our Board of Directors In addition TCV has certain rights of first refusal on certain new

equity
issuances by us which is intended to provide TCV with an opportunity to maintain its current ownership

Voting Agreement among us TCV and JDSTG is in place to further support certain of TCVs rights

Christopher Marshall member of our Board of Directors is general partner
of an entity affiliated

with TCV which participated
in the Series Preferred Stock Mr Marshall is also former managing director of

Trident Capital and therefore was affiliated with Trident Capital until 2008 Mr Marshall was named by TCV as

its nominee for election to our Board of Directors at the Annual Meeting

As of January 2014 Trident Capital held all of our outstanding shares of Series Series and Series

Preferred Stock and portions of our outstanding shares of Series and Series Preferred Stock representing

the right to vote 7077348 shares of our commons stock on an as-converted basis Under the terms of our

Certificate of Designation of Preferences of Series Preferred Stock Trident Capital as the sole holder of our

outstanding shares of Series Preferred Stock has the right to nominate replace
and vote as separate

class

with respect to up to two members of our Board of Directors In addition Trident Capital has certain rights of first

refusal on certain new equity issuances by us which is intended to provide Trident Capital with an opportunity to
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maintain its current ownership An Amended and Restated Voting Agreement among us JDSTG and Trident

Capital is in place to further support certain of Trident Capitals rights

Donald Dixon member of our Board of Directors is Managing Director of entities affiliated with

Trident Capital and was named by Trident Capital as its sole nominee for election to our Board of Directors at the

Annual Meeting

Related Person Transactions

We have an unwritten policy of reviewing financial transactions in which we are participant and in

which related person has direct or indirect interest in the transaction involving at least $120000 in value For

purposes of this policy related persons include all of our directors and executive officers any nominee for

director any immediate family member of director nominee for director or executive officer of the Company
and any holder of more than percent of our common stock or an immediate family member of such holder

Generally the Audit Committee of our Board of Directors has responsibility for reviewing such significant related

party transactions However our Board of Directors may instead cause special committee of directors to review

such transaction provided that no member of the special committee has direct or indirect interest in the

transaction under review Such transaction will only be approved if the reviewing committee determines that the

transaction is beneficial to the Company and the terms of the transaction are fair to us in light of all circumstances

surrounding the transaction
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AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT

The Audit Committee the Committee of our Board of Directors is comprised of four directors all of

whom are independent directors as defined by the NASDAQ Stock Market Rules The Board of Directors has

determined that all Audit Committee members are financially literate and each member has financial management

expertise In addition the Board of Directors has determined that all members are qualified audit committee

financial experts as defined in by the SEC

The Committee is responsible for the selection of the Companys independent registered public

accounting firm referred to herein as independent accountants Management is responsible for the Companys

internal controls and the financial reporting process the independent accountants are responsible
for performing

an independent audit of the Companys consolidated financial statements in accordance with generally accepted

auditing standards and for issuing report thereon The Committees responsibility is to monitor and oversee these

processes In this context the Committee has met and held discussions with management and the independent

accountants The Committee is also responsible
for overseeing messages received on the Companys

whistleblower alert line and in that regard the chair of the Committee receives notices of all messages along with

the general counsel and human resources

The Committee has received from the independent accountants the written disclosures and letter required

by applicable requirements of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board regarding the independent

accountants communications with the Committee concerning independence has discussed with the accountants

their independence and has satisfied itself as to the accountants independence

The Committee has discussed with management and the independent accountants the consolidated

financial statements and the quality and adequacy of the Companys internal controls The Committee has also

reviewed with the independent accountants their audit plans audit scope and identification of audit risks

In addition the Committee has discussed and reviewed with the independent accountants all

communications required by generally accepted accounting standards including those described in Financial

Accounting Standards Board Statement on Auditing Standards No 61 as amended Communication with Audit

Committees and with and without management present discussed and reviewed the results of the independent

accountants examination of the consolidated financial statements

Based upon the Committees discussion with management and the independent accountants the

Committees review of the representation
of management and the report

of the independent registered public

accounting firm to the Committee the Committee recommended that the Board of Directors include the audited

consolidated financial statements in the Companys Form 10-K filed with the SEC for the fiscal year ended

September 30 2013

Members of the Audit Committee

Michael Paxton Chairman

Mark Claeys

Donald Dixon

Karen Van Lith
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EQUITY COMPENSATION PLAN INFORMATION

The Company maintains the 2002 Long-Term Incentive and Stock Option Plan and the 2007 Long-Term
Incentive and Stock Option Plan Set forth below is information as of September 30 2013 regarding shares that

may be issued under the plans

Number of

Number of Securities

Securities to Remaining
be Issued Weighted Available for

upon Average Exercise Future Issuance

Exercise of Price of Under Equity

Outstanding Outstanding Compensation
Plan Category Options Options Plans

Equity compensation plans approved by security

holders 2954971 2.23 412967

Equity compensation not approved by security holders

Total 2954971 2.23 412967

The 2007 Long-Term Incentive and Stock Plan the 2007 Plan has an evergreen provision in which the maximum number of shares that may be issued

under the 2007 Plan shall be cumulatively increased on January 2008 and on each January thereafter for nine years by the lesser ofi 500000
Common Shares ii 3.0 percent of the Companys outstanding Common Shares on an as-converted basis as of the preceding December31 and iii
number of common shares determined by the Board of Directors or Compensation Committee
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PROPOSALS FOR THE 2015 ANNUAL MEETING

Shareholder proposals including nominees for election to serve as director of our Company intended to

be included in our proxy materials for our 2015 Annual Meeting of Shareholders must be received by us at our

principal executive office no later than September 22 2014 to be considered for inclusion in the proxy statement

and proxy card for that meeting

Pursuant to our Bylaws any other shareholder proposals to be brought before the 2015 Annual Meeting of

Shareholders must be received no later than November 22 2014 and provide the information required under

Section 2.11 of our Bylaws
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XRS
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Sntlon

To our shareholders fE8 U14

The future has never been brighter for XRS

Washon
This past year we launched our new mobile fleet optimization solution strengthened our field resources and

marketing efforts improved customer support and expanded the industry depth of our management team

solidifying our role as mobile trucking intelligence leader We achieved all of this while maintaining four

consecutive quarters of profitability

XRS solution poised to satisfy upcoming compliance requirements

The Federal legislation requiring trucks to use electronic logging devices is now well on its way to being enacted into

law after 30 years of effort When the law is enacted as expected in early 2015 our market will include more than

three million trucks that will need to be in full compliance by the anticipated two-year deadline We have played

leadership role in getting the law passed and we are preparing to lead the market as trucking companies seek to

comply with the regulation through the use of our solutions

For the past three years we have remained intently focused on our strategy of making compliance reality through

choice and simplicity maximizing efficiency through cloud-based fleet optimization and making trucking easier for

the driver The successful launch of XRS and growing base of customers are bringing that strategy to life

This years launch of our XRS solution was pivotal event XRS represents the commercial trucking industrys first

and only complete mobile platform for compliance and fleet optimization More than just an electronic logging

device our XRS solution combines all the features and benefits of the leading fleet management platforms in single

package that runs on smartphones tablets and other rugged handhelds

As the commercial trucking industry has begun to evaluate the impact of mobile applications on their fleets and

drivers we are leading and shaping the trend by embracing the converging technology trends of mobile social

cloud and information impacting all companies today The mobile revolution is accelerating at breakneck speed with

smartphone and tablet adoption reaching critical masses in the hands of drivers and fleet operators Those same
mobile devices powered with our XRS solution empower fleets to tackle cost and compliance challenges all while

making life easier for the driver By eliminating the need for upfront hardware costs our XRS solution offers fleet

owners the lowest cost of entry and most robust performance of any solution available today

Expansions and adjustments in personnel

In the past year additions to our management team have enhanced our ability to execute our strategy In February

James DeSocio joined as executive vice president field operations He has brought with him more than 20 years of

additional technology software and communications leadership experience

In April Brendan Reidy joined as our president and chief operating officer and later added the title of chief

technology officer He is the former chairman and CEO of Clarus Systems with an extensive background as leader

of technology companies

We also brought in additional talent in development support product management professional services and

finance These changes have demonstrated the ability of XRS to attract top talent and we have quickly seen their

impact through improved levels of product quality and customer support

Impro ved performance in 2013

We were especially gratified to achieve four consecutive quarters of profitability during 2013 notwithstanding

significant personnel transition and investments for the future during the same period



We ended the fiscal year with net income to common shareholders of $0.6 million compared with net loss to

common shareholders of $10.2 million for the same period in the prior year Mobile software revenue increased

20% while total software revenue decreased slightly from fiscal 2012 largely resulting from decreased hardware

revenue as customers continue to adopt mobile solutions with no upfront hardware costs

In fiscal 2013 our non-GAAP earnings increased $6.2 million to $8.6 million $0.31 per diluted share
At year-end we had debt-free balance sheet with $10.4 million in cash and free cash flow was positive $5.6

million for the year compared to negative $3 million for the comparable period in fiscal 2012 Similarly our

working capital had increased $3.4 million to $13.0 million during the year

For fiscal 2014 we plan to continue our transition as we expand our base of new XRS customers extend that

solution to an integrated whole product capable of serving large fleets and assist legacy customers in migrating to

the new solution We also intend to strategically build and expand relationships with third-party providers to better

meet the needs of even the most complex fleets

As we transition from our legacy hardware-based solutions to our no upfront cost mobile solutions we expect soft

overall revenue However we foreseeongofng mobile revenue growth with consistent margins as we will continue

to invest in the development of our XRS solution

At the end of the year we were especially pleased that XRS received the top prize in the Mobile Technologies

category for the 2013 Tekne Awards This award not only recognizes the innovation and quality of our XRS solution

but also the hard work and high competency of our employees of whom Im especially proud

Sincerely

Jay Coughlan

Chairman and ChiefExecutive Officer

Reconciliation of G.4AP to Non-GAAP Financial Measures unaudited

In thousands except per share data

Workino Cnnitnl

September30

2013 2012

Currentassets 21061 20942

Current liabilities 2882

Net current assets 11730 8060

Current
portion

of net deferred revenue and deferred cost 1261 1544

Working capital 12991 9604

Free Cash_Flow

September30

2013 2012

Net cash provided by operating activities 9474 906

Net cash provided by investing activities 3865 2941

Free cash flow 5609 3847

Non-GAAP Earninas

Net income to common shareholders

FY13 FY12

631 10216

Adjustments

Depreciation amortization expense

Impairment of
intangible asset

Stock-based compensation

Net interest expense

Preferred stock dividends and deemed dividends

Income taxes

Other

Total adjustments

6783

644

95

235

155

50

7962

8013

3500

789

320

177

550
400

12649

Non-CAM earnings

Non-GAAP earnings per diluted share

Shares used in ner share calculation

8593

0.31

28028

2.433

0.09

27.260


